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BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements of the Company, which are the basis for data presented in this report, have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) unless otherwrse noted and are presented i milhons of Canadian dollars unless otherwise indicated

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

This report contains some forward-looking statements about the Company, Including its business eperations, strategy and expecied financial performance and conditien
Forward-looking statements include statements that are predicive in nature, depend upon or refer to future events or conditions, or include words such as “expects”,
“anticipates”, “Intends”, "plans”, "believes”, “esumates” and similar expressions or negatve verstons thereof In addition, any statement that may be made concerning
future financial performance (including revenues, earnings or growth rates), ongoing business strategies or prospects, and possible future actions by the Company, including
statements made with respect 10 the expected benefits of acquisitions and divestiiures, are also forward-looking statements Forward-looking statements are based on
expectations and projections about future events that were current at the time of the statements and are inherently subject to, among other things, risks, uncenainties and
assumptions about the Company, economic factors and the financial services industry generally, including the insurance and mutual fund industries They are not guarantees
of future performance, and actual events and results could differ matenally from those expressed or implied by forward-fooking statements Matenial factors and assumptions
that were apphed in fermulating the forward-looking information contained herein include the assumption that the business and economic conditions affecting the Company's
operations will continue substantially In their current state, including withaut hmitation, with respect to market prices for producis provided, sales levels, premum income,
fee income, expense levels, mortality experience, morbidity experience, policy lapse rates, taxes, mflation, mfarmation systems, general economic, political and market factors
in North America and internationatly, interest and foreign exchange rates, global equity and capital markets, business competition, and the Company's ability te complete
strategic transactions and insegrate acquisitions, and that there will be na unplanned material changes to the Company’s facilivies, customer and employee relations or credit
arrangements Many of these assumptions are based on factors and events that are not within the control of the Company and there 15 no assurance that they will prove to be
correct Other important factars that could cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in forward-looking statements include technological change, changes
in local and interationat laws and regulations, changes In accounting policies and the effect of applying future accounting policy changes, unexpected judicial or regulatory
proceedings and catastrophic events The reader 15 cautioned that the foregoing hist of assumptions and factors 15 nat exhaustive, and there may be other factors, including
factors set out In this report under *Finanaial Instruments Risk Management” The reader is also cautioned to consider these and other factors carefully and not to place undue
reliance on forward-looking statements Other than as specifically required by apphcahle law, the Company does not intend 1o update any forward-looking statements whether
as a result of new information, future events or otherwise

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING NON-IFRS FINANCIAL MEASURES

This report contains some non-IFRS financial measures Terms by which non-1FRS financial measures are dentified include, but are not limited to, “operating earmings”,
“constant currency basis”, “premiums and deposits*, “sales”, and other similar expressions Non-IFRS financial measures are used to provide management and investors
with additional measuses of performance However, non-IFRS financial measures do not have standard meanings prescribed by IFRS and are not directly comparable to
similar measures used by other companies Please refer te the appropriate reconciliations of these non-IFRS financial measures to measuies prescribed by IFRS
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CORPORATE PROFILE

Great-West Life 15 a leading Canadian insurer, with interests in Iife insurance, health insurance, investment, savings and retirement
Income and reinsurance businesses, pnmarnly in Canada and Europe

In Canada, Great-West Life and its subsidianies, London Life and Canada Life, offer a broad portfolio of financial and benefit plan
solutions and serve the financial secunity needs of more than 12 milhon people

Great-West Life’s products include a wide range of investment, savings and retirement mcome plans, payout annutties, as well as life,
disability, cnitical iliness and health insurance for sndividuais and families These products and services are distnbuted through a diverse
network of financial secunty advisors and brokers associated with Great-West Life, financial secunty advisors associated with London
Life’s Freedom 55 Financial™ division and the Wealth & Estate Planning Group, and the distribution channels Canada Life supports,
ncluding independent advisors assoctated with managing general agencies, as well as national accounts including Investors Group
For large and small businesses and organizations, Great-West Life offers a vanety of group benefit plan solutions featuring options
such as life, healthcare, dentalcare, critical iliness, disability and wellness, international benefits plans, plus convenient online services
The Company also offers group retirement and savings plans that are tailored to the vnigue needs of businesses and organizations
These products and services are distributed through financial secunity advisors associated with our compantes, as well as independent
advisers, brokers and consultants

In Europe, Great-West Life has operations in the Umited Kingdom, Isle of Man, Germany and Ireland through Canada Life and Insh Life

Canada Life and Insh Life provide individuals and their families with a broad range of protection and wealth management products
These include payout annuities, investment products and group Insurance in the United Kingdom, investment products and individual
insurance in the Isle of Man, insurance, pension and investment products to individuals, employers and affinity groups in Ireland, and
pension products, critical illness and disability insurance in Germany

Asset management services are provided through Canada Life Investments, lnsh Life Investment Managers and Setanta
Asset Management

Great-West Life participates in international reinsurance markets through Canada Life Reinsurance and London Retnsurance Group,
providing hfe, iongewity, and property and casualty retnsurance n the United States and in international markets

Great-West Life has $341 biliron* in consoldated assets under administration and 1s a subsidiary of Great-West Lifeco Inc
For more infermation on Great-West Life, including current ratings, visit www greatwesthife com
A member of the Power Financial Corporation group of compantes ™

*as of Decernber 31, 2013
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO SHAREHOLDERS

In 2013 Great-West Life and 1its subsidianies in Canada and Europe
continued 1o delwver strong performance Our conservative investment
practices and disaphned approach to introducing new products and
managing expenses have served us well over the long term and positon us
well for organic growth

Performance measures
Measures of Great-West Life’s performance in 2013 include
« Premiums and deposits remained strong, at $37 5 bilheon
+ Common shareholder net earmings of $2 2 billien, compared to
$1 7 billion at December 31, 2012
* General account asseis were $133 2 billion, an increase of 11% over
December 31, 2012
+ Segregated fund net assets were $132 6 billion, up 62% from
December 31, 2012
+ Policyholder dividends remained strong at $1 1 billion
The Company’s capital position remains very strong Great-West Life
reported a Mimimum Conunuing Capital and Surplus Requirements
(MCCSR) ratic of 223% at December 31 2013, compared to 207% at
December 31, 2012 This measure of capital strength 1s shghtly ligher than
the upper end of Great-West Life’s target operaung range of 175%-215%
It does not include any benefit from the approximately $0 6 billion of net
proceeds from capital transactions held by s parent, Great-West Lifeco

We have a high quality bond portfolio, with 99% rated investment grade at
December 31, 2013

Canada - leading market positions

In Canada Great-West Life, together with London Life and Canada Life,
maintaimed leading market positions 1in our individual and group businesses
This was achieved by focusing on three broad geals 1n 2013 improving
products and services for chents and advisors, maintaining strong financial
discipline, and improving tools, mformanon and processes to enable greater
productivity and effectiveness

The Group retirement services business recorded strong growth, the group
insurance busincss had strong sales in all segments while conuinuing te
experience excellent persistency, and the indviduoal segregated fund and
mutual fund businesses mamntained positive net cash flows Indmdual
msurance sales in Canada remaimned constant and sales of proprietary retail
investment funds increased 4 9% year over year

Group businesses

In recent years, Great-West Life has established 1tself as a leader 1n the drug
benefits marketplace By finding common ground with other concerned
parties, such as pharmacy and natonal retail chans, were able to offer
emplovers innovauve options to help control plan costs and better support
employee health One example 15 the management of chromc conditions
In 2013 we worked with Canada’s largest pharmacy chain to offer diabetes
counselling and testing to all eligihle plan members across the country By
helping people wdenufy and manage diabetes early, we beheve we can help
reduce the significant and costly impact 1t has on indmvduals and on the
workplace Options such as this, part of our DrugSolufions offering, can help
employers sustain or enhance their benefit plans

The strategy of looking beyond the traditional approaches to identify
win-win solutions has also spurred our use of convenient and sustainable
service technologies Our pioneering work on eClaims has continued to
lead to new service options For example, with our two-way text messaging
service niroduced n 2013, plan members now have plan information
Literally at their ingertips This and other technologies under development
will continue to streamhine and sumphfy tradittonal process and paper
heavy activities, such as plan installation They wll alse help us improve
environmental sustainability by continuing to reduce paper consumption
i our operations and those of our customers
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The Canadian operations offer group retirement and savings plans that are
tailored to the unique needs of small, medum and large businesses and
organizations Group capital accumulanion plans are a core business for
Great-West Life Providing an engaging experience for our plan members
conunues to be a top prionty for this business We are focused on providing
seamless enrolment for our members online and reducing our need for
paper-based matenals We are commutted to the development of innovative
new digital expeniences that will educate plan members at any age and
stage of retirement plannuing Dunng the year we launched updates to the
public-facing sign-1n pages of our GRS Access website and a Grear-West Life
Group Retirement Services YouTube channel

Great-West Life continues to offer an important perspecuve on pension
reform to help ensure Canadians save adequately and effectively for thewr
reurement The federal governments framework for Pooled Registered
Penston Plans 1s an important development in helping working Canadians
save for retirement

Individual businesses

Together, Great-West Life, London Life and Canada Life remain Canada’s
number one provider of individual insurance solutions From term,
universal and participating Iife insurance to individual disabihty and
critical iflness insurance, our broad range of producis gives adwvisors choice
and flexibality in meeung chents diverse individual needs Qur compantes
are the leading provider of participating hfe insurance and continue to
focus on excellence in managing and growing our participating business

Within our group of companies participating products have been continuously
offered since 1847 and policyholder dividends have been paid every year
With over 70 years’ experience n the individual disabihity insurance market,
Great-Wesi Life, together with Canada Life, 1s a leading provider of indrvidual
disabihity and criical illness insurance 1n Canada as weil

In individual Insurance, the companies continued 1o mprove service to
advisors and customers

Great-West Life, London Life and Canada Life offer a broad choice of
mvestment, savings and income products These mclude segregated funds,
as well as mutual funds offered through Quadrus Investment Services Ltd ,
a mutual fund dealer affihated with Great-West Life

In the retal investment business, the companies improved the
competitiveness of the investment fund shelf including the expansion of
segregated fund fixed income options and the additon of a U § dividend
fund The mutual fund offering was improved with an additional corporate
class fund, pnecing enhancements and fund manager changes During
the year ExpressSuite was launched 1n certain distribution channels to
signaficantly improve the advisor experience and reduce the ume required
to set up new investment fund accounts and place investment fund orders

Products and distribution

The Canadian operations continued to focus on distribution support and
development 1n 2013, both 1n the exclusive and independent distribution
channels The important relationships we have with advisors support the
very strong persistency of our business, provide a strategic advantage for us
and contribute to strong market share across our multiple hnes of business

Europe

In Europe, Great-West Life, through its Canada Life and Insh Life
subsidianes, has operations n the United Kingdom Isle of Man, Germany
and Ireland




UK

In the U K, Canada Lafe successfully launched a range of funds ained at
the retail mutual fund market and continued durning the year to build 1ts
footprint 1 this part of the investment marketplace The Company also
complemented 115 Isle of Man wealth management business by launcling
a similar offering of investment products aimed at the U K high net-worth
investor from a Dublim base The Company benefited from the recovery in the
U K marker i 2013 with increases in its offshore wealth management new
busmess sales and 1n its group nisk sales of group life and income protectton
praducts Onshare bond sales were down as a resuit of a change n legislaton
affecting distnbution whrch came into force at the start of the year

Payout annuity sales during the year were very strong, and Canada Life
began to focus on the enhanced annuity market where prospective
policyholders are medically underwnitten before acceptance

Ireland
In fuly 2013, Great-West Life completed the acquisttion of Insh Life

The closing of this transaction marked a s:gmificant mulestone for our
companies in Ireland Combining the businesses of Insh Life and Canada
Life in Ireland under the Insh Life brand name will help ensure that the new
Irish Life maintains and builds on us leading postuions in the life, pensions
and investiment management sectors in Ireland

Integration 1s well underway and on target for compleuon in mid-2015

With a contunued focus on delivening outstanding service, 1n 2013, Insh Life
business continued to grow Sales across all businesses outperformed the
market and the Company gained markes share All business units continue
to perform well

Germany

In Germany, Canada Life continues to be one of the leading insurers for
unit-hnked products mn the independent broker segment The Company
has maintained 1ts excellent competitive position following the repncing
of 1ts product range to meet gender neutral pricing requirements Canada
Life remains the leading provider of serious ilness and guaranteed
mumimum withdrawal benefit products to the German market, and received
recogmtion for its new 'Garantierter Rentenplan’ product range Canada
Life was awarded first place in the annual Charta broker survey of German
hfe insurers recewving particular praise for 1ts product range, customer
service and distribution technology platform Canada Life continued to
grow assets under management during 2013 helped by the strong fund
performance of our flagship Uninised With Profit fund

Reinsurance

Great-West Life participates in international reinsurance markets through
Canada Life Reinsurance and london Reinsurance Group, providing
hfe, longevity, and preperty and casualty remsurance in the US and in
international markets Rewnsurance experienced strong growth in 2013, as
shightly elevated mortality on traditional hife insurance was offset by good
expenence on the European longevuty reinsurance portfolio and higher
earnings from new structured life reinsurance business

Corporate Social Responsibility
Responsible and ethical management has long been an intrinsic value
of Great-West Life and 1s essential t¢ long-term profitatality and value
creation Inaddition to meeting the ethical standards set out in our Code of
Conduct, Great-West Life strives to
* Suppont and respect the protection of internationally proclaimed
human nights
* Meet1ts responsibilities to mumimize environmental impact, and
* Make a positive contnibution in the communitres where the
Company 15 established

Giving back to our communities

As an orgamzation, we take action to help build stronger communinies by
addressing nauonal and regional 1ssues affecting Canadians We are an
Imagine Caning Company, providing financial and volunteer support to
hundreds of chantable, non-profit and community-based organizations

Key to our approach 15 the engagement of staff and distnbution associates,
who commut their strengths, skills and compassion to local community
prionuies Together we aspire to the highest standards of corporate citzenship

Board of Directors
Organizational Changes

A number of organizational changes were announced at Great-West Life’s
2013 Annual Meeung of Shareholders and Policyholders in May

Jeffrey Orr was appointed Chairman of the Board of the Company Mr Orr
1s Presrdent and Chief Executive Officer of Power Financial Corporation,
a position he has held since May 2005 He has been a member of the
Company’s Board of Directors since July 2002

The Board expressed sirong apprecianon to outgoing Chairman of the Board
Raymond McFeetors for lus outstanding contnbution to Great-West Lifes
growth and evelution dunng his five-year tenure as Chairman of the Board,
and 16-year tenure as President and Chiel Executive Officer Mr McFeetors
conunues as a member of the Company’s Board of Directors The Board of
Directors would like to express theit sincere appreciatton and gratitude to
Mr McFeetors for lus gurdance and leadershuip throughout the years

Paul Mahon, formerly President and Chief Operating Officer, Canada of the
Company and 1ts operating subsidiaries, was appointed President and Chief
Executive Officer and to the Company’s Board of Directors in May 2013
Dave Johnston, formerly Executive Vice-President, Group, was appointed
President and Chief Operating Officer, Canada, to succeed Mr Mahon

Following a distinguished 42 year career as part of the Lifeco group of
companies, including the last five years as President and Chief Executive
Officer, Allen Loney retired The Board of Directors would hike to sincerely
thank Mr Loney for his many years of dedicated service Mr Loney
continues as a member of the Company's Board of Directors

It was announced that Timothy Ryan Jr would retirte Mr Ryan had been
a Director of the Company since May 2010 and was a member of the
Execuuve, Risk, Investment and Compensaton Committees

Through his participation on the Board and various Board Commuttees,
Mr Ryan made a valuable contnibution to the affairs of the Company, and
we ihank him sincerely for his many years of service

David Jackson was elected to the Board of Directors Mr Jackson ts Senior
Counsel in the law firm Blake, Cassels & Graydon LLP in Toronto

Tribute to the Honourable Paul Desmarais, PC,CC,0Q

The Honourable Paul Desmarars passed away on October 8, 2013
Mr Desmarais joined the Board of Great-West Life in July 1977 and served
as a Dhrector untl 2004

The Board of Directors of Great West Lifeco paid special tribute to him
“Mr Desmarais had long and deep ues with our orgamization and he made
anummense contribution to the growth and operations of Great-West Lifeco
and its subsidiares His wisdom and leadership played an instrumental role
in the development and success of our companies ™

Recognition

On behalf of the Board of Directors, 1t 1s our pleasure to recogmze the
professionahsm and continuing dedicauon of the people across our
companies, who serve our clients and distnbution associates worldwide We
also thank our clients and distnbution associates for their continued support

%\@ﬁw

Jeffrey Orr Paul Mahon
Chairman of the Board President and Cheef Executive Officer
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (unaudited)

{in Canadian $ miliions except per share amounts)

As at or for the three months ended

For the twelve months ended

December 31 September 30 December 31 December 31 December 31
2013 2013 20129 2013 w129

Premiums and deposits
Life insurance, guaranteed annuities and mnsured health products $ 499 4044 $ 4,058 $ 12,364 16,235
Self-funded premium equivalents (Administrative services only centracts) 649 620 8717 2,567 2,666
Segregated funds deposits

Individual products 2,657 2,303 1,993 8,041 6,338

Group products 1,078 1,104 1,567 4,689 4,637
Proprietary mutual funds and institutional deposits 2,823 1,630 197 4,840 T2
Total premiums and deposits 12,203 9,701 8,492 37,501 30,588
Fee and other income 604 590 468 2,137 1,782
Paid or credited to policyholders™ 4,809 4,144 4,193 15,074 18,993
Operating earmings — common shareholder® 512 514 481 2,018 1,880
Summary of net earmings (loss) attributable to

Participating account (149) 19 206 (94) 275

Common shareholder® 738 514 34 2,244 1,740
Per common share

Dividends paid 11302 134 46 12991 53979 53267

Book value® 6,780 00 6,130 00 5,833 00

Total assets® $ 265,850 § 252,744 $ 201,389

Proprietary mutual funds net assets 20,728 17,277 3,585

Total assets under management® 286,578 270,021 204,974

Other assets under administration 54,649 50,067 13,291

Total assets under administration™ $ 341,227 $ 320,088 § 218,265
Partuicipating account surplus® $ 2,342 $ 2,483 |3 2,440
Shareholders’ equity®™ 16,064 15,159 12,891
Total equity® $ 18,406 $ 17642 $ 15331

The Company uses operating earnings a ron-intemational Financial Reporting Standards financial measure, which excludes the impact of centan liigation provisions describad in note 32 to the Company's December 31,

2013 consohdated financial statements

(1) Pa:d or creditac to pokcyholders includes the impact of changes in fair values of assets supporting habiliuies

{2) During the year the Company reclassified cenain comparative figures for presentation adjustments

(3) Comparative figures where impacted have been restated for the retrospective impact of new and rewised International Financial Reporting Standards effectve dunng 2013 mast natably 1AS 19R, Employee Benefits

4 The Great West Life Assurance Company Annual Report 2013




FINANCIAL REPORTING RESPONSIBILITY

Il

The conschdated financial statements are the responsibility of management and are prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) for life insurance enterpnses, including the accounung requirements of the Office of the Superintendent
of Financial Institutions Canada The financial information contained elsewhere 1n the annual report 1s consistent with that in the
consolidated financial statements The consohdated financial statements necessanly include amounts that are based on management’s
best estimates These esumates are based on careful judgmenis and have been properlyreflected in the consolhidated financial statements
In the opinion of management, the accounting practices utilized are appropriate 1n the circumstances and the consolidated financial
statements present fairly, in all matenal respects, the financial position of the Company and 1ts segregated funds and the results of its
operations and 1ts cash flows and the changes 1n assets of 1ts segregated funds tn accordance with IFRS, including the requirements of
the Office of the Supenintendent of Financial Institutions Canada

In carrying cut its responsibilities, management maimtains appropnate internal control over financial reporting designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the rehability of financial reporung and the preparation of financial statements 1n accordance with
IFRS, including the requirements of the Office of the Superintendent of Financial Instituttons Canada

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors, which has oversight responsibilities with respect to
financial reporting The Board of Directors carries out this responsibihty principally through the Audit Committee, which comprises
non-management directors The Aud:t Committee 15 charged with, among other things, the responsibihity to

* Rewview the mterim and annual consolidated financial statements and report thereon to the Board of Directors
* Rewview 1nternal control procedures

* Review the independence of the external auditors and the terms of their engagement and recommend the appointment and
compensation of the external auditors to the Board of Directors

* Review other audit, accounting and financial reporting matters as required

In carrying out the above responsibilities, this Committee meets regularly wath management, and with both the Company’s external and
internal auditors to review their respective audit plans and to review their audit findings The Commuttee 1s readily accessible to external
and internal auditors and to the Appointed Actuary

The Board of Directors of the Company, pursuant to the Insurance Companies Acr (Canada), appoints an Actuary who 1s a Fellow of the
Canadian Institute of Actuanes The Actuary

* Ensures that the assumptions and methods used in the valuatnon of policy habilities are 1n accordance with accepted actuanal
practice, applicable legislation and associated regulations and directives

* Provides an opion regarding the appropriateness of the policy habilities at the balance sheet date to meet all pohcyholder obligations
Examination of supporting data for accuracy and completeness and analysis of assets for their ability to support the policy habilities
are important elements of the work required to form this opinion

+ Annually analyzes the financial condition of the Company and prepares a report for the Board of Directors The analysis covers a five
year period, and tests the projected capital adequacy of the Company, under adverse economic and business conditions

Deloitte LLP Chartered Accountants, as the Company's external auditors, have audited the consohdated financial statements The
Auditors’ Report to the Policyholders and Shareholders 1s presented following the consohdated financial statements Their opinion 1s
based upon an examination conducted 1n accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, performing such tests and
other procedures as they consider necessary i order to obtain reasonable assurance that the consohdated financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company and its segregated funds and the results of its operations and its cash
flows and the changes 1n assets of 1ts segregated funds in accordance with IFRS

e

Paul Mahon Willilam W Lovatt
President and Execuuve Vice-President and
Chaef Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

February 13, 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

{in Canadian $ millions)

For the years ended December 31 2013 2012
{notes 3 & 35)
Income
Premium income
Gross premiums written $ 20,641 $ 19,324
Ceded premiums (3,277) {3,089)
Total net premiums 17,364 16,235
Net investment mncome (note 6)
Regqular net investment income 4,401 4,479
Changes in fair value through profit or loss (2,377) 2,218
Total net mvestment income 2,024 6,697
Fee and other income 2,137 1,782
21,525 24,7114
Benefits and expenses
Policyhalder benefits
Insurance and investment contracts
Gross 16,627 16,119
Ceded (2,040) {1,694)
Total net policyholder benefits 14,587 14,425
Policyholder diwidends and experience refunds 1,199 1,265
Changes in insurance and tnvestment contract hiabilities (712) 3,303
Total paid or credited to policyholders 15,074 18,993
Commissions 1,638 1,561
Operating and administrative expenses {note 30} 1,806 1,513
Premium taxes 276 262
Financing charges (note 17) 48 73
Amortization of finite Iife intangible assets 66 55
Restructuring and acquisition expenses (note 19) 104 -
Earnings before income taxes 2,513 2,257
Income taxes (note 29} 363 242
Net earnings 2,150 2,015
Net earnings {loss) — participating account {note 22} (94) 275
Net earnings — common shareholder $ 2244 $ 1,740
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(in Canadian $ mithons}

Far the years ended December 31

2013 2012
{nates 3 & 35)
Net earnings $ 2,150 5 2,015
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to Consolidated Statements of Earnings
Unrealized foreign exchange gains {losses) on translation of foreign operations 567 47
Unrealized gains {losses) on available-for-sale assets (154) 56
Income tax {expense} benefit 33 (14)
Realized losses on available-for-sale assets {49) (105}
Income tax (expense) benefit 9 23
Total itemns that may be reclassified 406 7
Items that will not be reclassified to Consolidated Statements of Earnings
Re-measurements on defined benefit pension and other post-employment benefit plans 479 (171)
income tax (expense) benefit (122} 44
Total items that will not be reclassified 357 (127}
Total ather comprehensive income {loss) 763 (120}
Comprehensive income $ 2,913 $ 1,895
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

{in Canadian $ millions)

December 31 December 31 January 1
2013 2012 2012
(notes 3 & 35} {notes 3 & 35)
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents {note 5) $ 223 § 1632 $ 1,85
Bonds {note 6) 69,684 64,116 60,525
Mortgage loans (note 6) 15,734 15,011 14,849
Stacks (note 6) 8,316 6,770 6,336
Investment praperties (note 6) 4,286 3,568 3,246
Loans to policyholders 2,896 2,864 2,858
103,147 53,981 89,669
Funds held by ceding wnsurers (note 7} 10,832 10,599 9,978
Goodwall (note 12) 5,674 5,267 5,267
Intangible assets (note 12) 1,759 1,518 1,511
Derwvative financial instruments (note 31) 566 947 927
Owner occupied properties {note 13) 448 382 357
Fixed assets (note 13) 165 113 97
Reinsurance assets (note 16} 6,804 3,865 4,046
Premiums in course of callection, accounts and interest recevable 2,359 2,048 1,780
Other assets {note 14) 1,331 896 872
Current income taxes (note 29) 102 87 63
Deferred tax assets {note 29) 52 65 35
Investments on account of segregated fund policyholders (note 15} 132,611 81,623 74,626
Total assets $ 265,850 $ 201,389 $ 189,228
Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities (note 16) $ 107171 $ 98133 $ 94,166
Investment contract habiiities (note 16) 859 698 746
Debentures and other debt instruments {note 18) 693 302 303
Funds held under reinsurance contracts 795 817 630
Derivative financial instruments (note 31) 468 223 73
Accounts payable 941 137 765
Other hiabilities {(note 20} 2,309 2,280 2,063
Current income taxes {note 29) 781 483 370
Deferred tax liabilities (note 29) 653 598 677
Repurchase agreements - - 23
Capital trust debentures (note 21} 163 164 815
Investment and insurance contracts on account of segregated fund policyholders {note 15) 132,611 81,623 74,626
Total liabiltties 247,444 186,058 175,457
Equity
Partrcipating account surplus (note 22) 2,342 2,440 2176
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital {note 23)
Preferred shares - - 1
Common shares 8,488 7,076 6,426
Accumulated surplus 7,047 6,057 5,461
Accumulated other comprehensive income {loss) (note 27) 153 814) {51%)
Contnbuted surplus 376 372 218
Total equaty 18,406 15,331 13,71
Total habilities and equity $ 265,850 $ 201,389 $ 189,228

Approved by the Board

%\@ﬁv—

Durector Bhirector
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

~ .

{in Canadian $ millions)

December 31, 2013

Accumulated
other Total
Share Contributed Accumulated comprehensive shareholders’ Participating Total
capital surplus surplus income (loss) equity account surplus equity
Balance, beginning of year $ 17076 $ 372 $ 6,057 5 €14) % 12,891 $ 2440 $ 15331
Net earnings - - 2,244 - 2,244 (94) 2,150
Other comprehensive income (loss) - - - 767 767 (3] 763
7.076 372 8,301 153 15,902 2,342 18,244
Issue shares to parent company {note 23) 1,412 - - - 1.412 - 1,412
Dividends to common shareholder - - (1,254) - (1.254) - {1,254)
Share-based payments - 4 - - 4 - 4
Balance, end of year $ 8488 $ 376 $  7.047 $ 153 $ 16,064 $ 2,342 $ 18,406
December 31 2012 (note 3}
Accumulated
other Total
Share Contributed Accumulated comprehensive shareholders Parucipating Total i
capital surplus surplus inceme (lossh equity account surplus equity
Balance, begining of year < 6,427 % 218 s 5,461 4 (511) % 11,595 4 2,176 $ 13,17
Net earmings - - 1,740 - 1,740 275 2,015
Other comprehensive loss - - - (103) (103) {17) (120}
6,427 218 7.2 (614) 13,232 2,434 15,666
Redemption of Series Q preferred shares {1 - - - {1} - M
Issue shares to parent company {note 23) 650 - - - 650 - 650
Reallacation from participating account
to shareholder account - - {6) - {&) 6 -
Didends to common shareholder - - (1,138) - {1,138) - {1,138)
Contribution of capital from parent company - 150 - - 150 - 150
Share-based payments - 4 - - 4 - 4
Balance, end of year $ 7.076 $ 372 5 6,057 s (614) $ 12,891 4 2,440 § 15331
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in Canadian $ millrans)

For the years ended December 31 03 2012
{notes 3 & 35)
Operations
Earmings before income taxes $ 2,513 $ 2,257
tncome taxes paid, net of refunds received {275) (270)
Adjustments
Change 1n insurance and investment contract iabilies {1,141) 3,237
Change in funds held by ceding insurers 278 231
Change in funds held under reinsurance contracts (99) 203
Change in deferred acguisition costs 56 @
Change in reinsurance assets 488 115
Changes in fair value through profit or loss 2.3717 (2,218}
Other {181) {117}
4,016 3,436
Financing Activities
Issue of common shares to parent company 1,412 650
Contribution from parent company - 150
Redemption of preferred shares - (1)
Issue of subordinated debentures in subsidiary (76) -
Repayment of debentures and other debt instruments - 1)
Redemption of capstal trust secunties - {650)
Dividends paid on common shares (1,254} (1,138)
82 (990}
Investment Activities
Bond sales and maturities 16,394 14,947
Mortgage foan repayments 1,610 1,899
Stock sales 1,829 1,985
Investment property sales n -
Change in loans to pohicyholders {5) {17}
Acquisition of Insh Life Group Limited, net of cash and cash equivalents acquired {note 4) {1,234) -
Investment in bonds (18,087) (17,105)
Investment In mortgage loans (2,035) {2,048)
Investment in stocks (1,940) (2,099)
Investment In investment properties (244) {210)
(3.681) (2,648)
Effect of changes in exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents 162 n
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 579 (203)
Cash and cash equivalents, begmmming of year 1,652 1,855
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 223 $ 1,652
Supplementary cash flow information
Interest income received $ 3,533 $ 3,736
Interest paid $ 47 s 72
Dividend income received $ 227 $ 199
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{in Canadian $ millions}

1 Corporate Information

The Great-West Life Assurance Company {Great-West Life or the Company) 1s mmcorporated and domiciled 1n Canada The registered
address of the Company 1s 100 Oshorne Street North, Winmipeg, Manitoba, Canada, R3C 1V3 Great-West Life 1s wholly-owned by
Great-West Lifeco Inc (Lifeco)

Great-West Life 1s a leading Canadian insurer, with interests in the life and health insurance, investment, savings and reurement income
and reinsurance businesses, primarily in Canada and Europe through 1ts major subsidianes London Insurance Group Inc (LIG), Canada
Life Financial Corporation (CLFC), GLC Asset Management Group Ltd , and GWL Realty Advisors Inc

The consolidated financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended December 31, 2013 were approved by the Board of
Directors on February 13, 2014

2  Basis of Presentation and Summary of Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements of the Company at December 31, 2013 have been prepared in compliance with International
Financial Reporting Standards, as 1ssued by the International Accounung Standards Board (IASB) The financial statements are prepared
using Internauonal Financial Reporung Standards (IFRS} which became Canadian generally accepted accounung principles for publicly
accountable enterprises and were adoped by the Company for fiscal years beginning on January i, 2011 The Company has implemented
changes in accounting pohicies for the adoption of new and revised acceunting standards as described in note 3

Basts of Consolidation

The conschdated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended December 31,
2013 wath comparatives for December 31, 2012 Subsidianes are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on
which the Company obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases All intra-group balances,
transactions, iIncome and expenses and profits or losses, including dimdends resulting from intra-group transactions, are eliminated on
consolidation

Use of Significant Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

In preparanion of these financial statements, management 1s required to make significant judgments, estimates and assumptons that
affect the reported amounts of assets, habilities, net earnings and related disclosures Although some variability 1s inherent 1n these
Jjudgments and estumates, management believes that the amounts recorded are reasonable Significant judgments have been made
and key sources of estimation uncertainty have been made in certain areas and are discussed throughout the notes n these financial
statements, including

* The actuarnial assumptions, such as mortality and morbidity of policyholders, used in the valuauon of insurance and 1nvestment
contract habilities under the Canadian Asset Liability Method (note 16)

* In the determination of the fair value of financial instruments, the Company’s management exercises judgment n the far value
mnputs, particularly those 1tems categorized within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy (note 9)

* The carrying value of goodwill and intangible assets relies upon the use of forecasts and future results upon minal recognition
Management evaluates the synergies and future benefit for recognition of goodwill and intangible assets (note 12)

+ Cash generating umts for goodwill have been determined by management as the lowest level that the goodwill 1s monitored for
internal reporting purposes (note 12}

* Legal and other provisions are recogmized resulung from a past event which, 1n the Judgment of management, has resulted 1n a
probable outflow of economic resources which would be passed onto a third-party to settle the obligation Management evaluates the
possible outcomes and risks 1n determining the best esumate of the provision at the balance sheet date (note 32}

* The Company operates within various tax junsdictions where significant management judgments and esumates are required when
interpreting the relevant tax laws, regulations and legislation 1n the determination of the Company’s tax provisions and the carrying
amounts of its tax assets and hiabihities (note 29)

* The actuanal assumptions used 1n determuning the expense for the Company’s pension plans and other post-employment benefits
Management reviews previous experience of tts plan members in evaluating the assumptions used in determining the expense for the
current year (note 26)

» Management consohdates all subsidianes and entities in which it 1s determined that the Company controls Control 15 evaluated on
the abihity of the Company to direct the activities of the subsidiary or entity 1o derive vanable returns and management uses judgment
1n determining whether control exists

¢+ Management uses judgmenis and estimates 1n using independent qualified appraisal services adjusted for material changes 1n
property cash flows, capital expenditures or general market conditions in deterrmning the fair value of investment properties (note 6)

» Judgments are used by management in determining whether deferred acquisition costs and deferred mcome reserves can be
recogmized on the Consolidated Balance Sheets Deferred acquisition costs are recognized 1f management determines the costs are
incremental and related to the 1ssuance of the investment contract Deferred iIncome reserves are amortized on a straight-line basis
over the term of the policy {notes 14 and 20}

The Great West Life Assurance Company Annyal Report 2013 11




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Basis of Presentation and Summary of Accounting Policies {cont'd)

= The operating segments of the Company, which are the segments reviewed by the Company’s Chief Executive Officer to assess
performance and allocate resources within the Company {note 34)

The annual results of the Company reflect management'’s judgments regarding the impact of prevailing global credit, equity and foreign

exchange market conditions The esumaton of insurance and investment contract labilities rehes upon investment credit raungs The

Company’s practice is to use third party independent credit ratings where avatlable

The significant accounung policies are as follows

(a)

12

Portfolio Investments

Pottfoliu investments include bonds, mortgage loans, stocks and investment properties Portfolio investments are classified as fair
value through profit ot loss, available-[or-sale, held to maturity, loans and receivables or as non-financial instruments based on
management’s intention relating to the purpose and nature of the instrument or charactenistics of the investment The Company
currently has not classified any investments as held to maturity

Investments 1n bonds and stocks normally actively traded on a public market are either designated or classified as fair value through
prafit or loss or classified as available-for-sale on a trade date basis, based on management’s intention Fair value through profit
or loss investments are recognized at fair value on the Consolidated Balance Sheets with realized and unreahzed gains and losses
reported in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings Available-for-sale investments are recognized at fair value on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets with unreahized gains and losses recorded 1n other comprehensive income Realized gans and losses are reclassified
from other comprehensive income and recorded in the Consohidated Statements of Earnings when the available-for-sale iInvestment
16 sold Interest iIncome earned on both fair value through profit or loss and available-for-sale bonds 1s recorded as net investment
income in the Consolhidated Statements of Earnings

[nvesiments in equity instruments where a fair value cannot be measured rehably are classified as available-for-sale and carnied at
cost Investments in stocks for which the Company exerts sigmficant influence over but does not control are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting Investments in stocks include the Company’s investment tn an affihated company, [GM Financial
Inc (IGM), a member of the Power Financial group of companies, and Allianz Ireland, an unhsted general insurance company
operating n Ireland which the Company owns 30 43%, over which the Company exerts significant influence but does not contral
The investments are accounted for using the equity method of accounting

Investments 1n mortgages and bonds not normally acuvely traded on a pubhc market are classified as loans and receivables and
are carnied at amortized cost net of any allowance for credit losses Interest income earned and realized gams and losses on the
sale of tnvestments classified as loans and receivables are recorded tn the Consolidated Statements of Earnings and included in net
mvestment income

Investment properties are Teal estate held to earn rental income or for capial appreciation Investment properties are mnitrally
measured at cost and subsequently carried at fair value on the Consolidated Balance Sheets All changes in fair value are recorded
as net investment income 1n the Consolidated Statements of Earnings Faur values for investment properties are deterrined using
independent quahfied appraisal services Properties held to earn rental income or for capital appreciation that have an insignificant
portion that 1s owner occupied or where there 1s no intent to occupy on a long-term basis are classified as investment properties
Properties that do not meet these critena are classified as owner occupied properties Property that 1s leased that would otherwise
be classified as investment property if owned by the Company are also included with investment properties

Fair Value Measurement

Financial instrument carrying values necessarily reflect the prevailing market hquidity and the Liquidity premiums embedded
within the market pricing methods the Company rehies upon

The following 1s a description of the methodologies used te value instruments carried at fair value
Bonds - Fair Value Through Profit or Loss and Available-for-Sale

Faur values for bonds classtfied as fair value through profit or loss or available-for-sale are determined with reference to quoted market
bid prices prumarnily provided by third party independent pricing sources Where prices are not quoted i a normally active market,
fair values are determined by valuation models The Company maximizes the use of observable mputs and minumizes the use of
unobservable mnputs when measuring fair value The Company obtains quoted prices 1n active matkets, when available, for identical
assets at the balance sheet date to measure bonds at fair value 1n 1ts fair value through profit or loss and available-for-sale portfohios

The Company estimates the fair value of bonds not traded 1n active markets by referning to actively traded securities with similar
attributes, dealer quotations, matrix pricing methodaology, discounted cash flow analyses and/or internal valuation models This
methodology considers such factors as the 1ssuer’s industry, the security’s rating, term, coupon rate and position in the capatal
structure of the 1ssuer, as well as, yield curves, credit curves, prepayment rates and other relevant factors For bonds that are not
traded 1n active markets, valuations are adjusted to reflect ilhiquidity, and such adjustments generally are based on available market
evidence In the absence of such evidence, management's best estimate 1s used
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(b)

(c)

(d)

Stocks - Fair Value Through Profit or Loss and Available-for-Sale

Fair values for public stocks are generally determined by the last bid price for the security from the exchange where 1t 1s principally
traded Fair values for stocks for which there 15 no acuve market are determined by discounting expected future cash flows The
Company maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimzes the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value The
Company ebtains quoted prices 1n active markets, when available, for idenucal assets at the balance sheet date to measure stocks
at fair value 1n 1ts fair value through profit or loss and available-for-sale portfolos

Mortgages and Bonds — Loans and Recetvables

For disclosure purposes only, fair values for bonds and mortgages classified as loans and receivables are determined by discounting
expected future cash flows using current market rates Valuation inputs typically include benchmark yields and risk-adjusted
spreads based on current lending activities and market acuvity

Investment Properties

Fair values for investment properties are determined using independent qualified appraisal services and include management
adjustments for material changes 1n property cash flows, capital expenditures or general market conditions 1n the interim pertod
between appratsals The determination of the fair value of investment property requires the use of estimates including future cash
flows (such as future leasing assumptions, rental rates, capital and operating expenditures) and discount, reversionary and cverall
capitalization rates applicable to the asset based on current market conditions Investment property under construction 1s valued
at farr value If such values can be rehiably determined otherwise they are recorded at cost

Impairment

Investments are reviewed regularly on an individuat basis to determuine mmpairment status The Company considers various
factors m the impairment evaluation process, including, but not hmited to, the financial condition of the 1ssuer, specific adverse
condinons affecting an industry or region, decline in fair value not related to interest rates, bankruptcy or defaults and delinquency
in payments of interest or principal

Investments are deemed to be impaired when there ts no longer reasonable assurance of umely collection of the full amount of
the principal and interest due The fair value of an investment s not a defimtive indicator of impairment, as 1t may be significantly
influenced by other factors including the remaining term to maturity and hquidity of the asset However market price must be taken
into consideration when evaluating impairment

Forimpaired mortgages and bonds classified as loans and receivables, provisions are established or write-offs made to adjust the
carrying value to the net realizable amount Wherever possible the fair value of collateral underlying the loans or observable market
price 15 used to establish net realizable value For impaired available-for-sale loans, recorded at fair value, the accumulated loss
recorded 1n accumulated other comprehensive income 1s reclassified to net investment income Impairments on available-for-sale
debt instruments are reversed 1f there 1s objective evidence that a permanent recovery has occurred All gains and losses on bonds
classified or designated as fair value through profit or loss are already recorded 1n income, therefore a reduction due to impairment
of these assets will be recorded in Income As well, when deterrmined to be impaired, interest1s no longer accrued and previous
interest accruals are reversed

Fair value movement on the assets supporting insurance contract habilities 15 a major factor in the movement of insurance
contract habihties Changes in the fair value of bonds designated or classtfied as fair value through profit or loss that support
Insurance contract habilities are largely offset by corresponding changes in the fair value of habilities except when the bond has
been deemed impaired

Transaction Costs

Transaction costs are expensed as incurred for financtal instiruments classified as fair value through profit or loss Transaction costs
for financial assets classified as available-for-sale or loans and receivables are added to the value of the instrument at acquisition
and taken nto net earnings using the effecuve mterest rate method Transaction costs for financial labihities classified as other
than fair value through profit or loss are added to the value of the instrument 1ssued and taken into net earnings using the effective
interest rate method

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnises cash, current operaung accounts, overnight bank and term deposits with oniginal maturities
of three months or less, and fixed income securities wath an ongnal term to maturity of three months or less Net payments 1n
transit and overdraft bank balances are included in other habihnes The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates
their fair value

Trading Account Assets

Trading account assets consist of investments 1n open ended 1nvestment companies sponsored trust-units in Europe, which are
carried at fair value based on the net asset value Investmenis in these assets are included n other assets on the Consohdated
Balance Sheets with realized and unrealized gains and losses reported 1n the Consolidated Statements of Earnings
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Basis of Presentation and Summary of Accounting Policies {cont’d}

{e)

M

{g)

14

Debentures and Other Debt Instruments and Capital Trust Securities

Debentures and other debt instruments and capital trust securities are initially recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair
value and subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method with amortizauon expense recorded in
the Consolidated Statements of Earnings These hiabilities are derecognized when the obligation 1s cancelled or redeemed

Other Liabilities

Other Liabilities, which include current income taxes, accounts payable, pension and other post-employment benefits, deferred
income reserve and bank overdraft, are measured at amortized cost

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company uses derivative products as risk management instruments to hedge or manage asset, hability and capital positions,
including revenues The Company's policy guidelines prohibit the use of derivative mmstruments for speculative trading purposes

The Company includes disclosure of the maximum credit nsk, future credit exposure, credit nsk equivalent and risk weighted
equivaient 1n note 31 as prescribed by the Office of the Supenintendent of Financial Institutions Canada

All denvatives including those that are embedded n financial and non-financial contracts that are not closely related to the
host contracts are recorded at fair value on the Consolidated Balance Sheets The method of recognizing unrealized and realized
fair value gains and losses depends on whether the derivanves are designated as hedging instruments For derivatives that are
not designated as hedging instruments, unrealized and realized gains and losses are recorded In net investment income on the
Consolidated Statements of Earmings For derivatives designated as hedging instruments, unrealized and realized gains and losses
are recognized according to the nature of the hedged item

Derivatives are valued using market transactions and other market evidence whenever possible, including market based inputs to
models, broker or dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources with reasonable levels of price transparency When models are
used, the selection of a parucular model to value a denivative depends on the contractual terms of, and specific risks inherent n,
the instrument, as well as the avallability of pricing information in the market The Company generally uses similar models to value
similar instruments Valuation models require a variety of mputs, including contractual terms, market prices and rates, yield curves,
credit curves, measures of volatility, prepayment rates and correlations of such inputs

To qualify for hedge accounting, the relationship between the hedged 1tem and the hedging instrument must meet several strict
conditions on documentation, probability of occurrence, hedge effectiveness and reliability of measurement If these conditions
are not met, the relationship does not qualify for hedge accounting treatment and bath the hedged item and the hedging instrument
are reported independently as if there was no hedging relationship

Where a hedging relationship exists, the Company documents all relationships between hedging instruments and hedged 1tems,
as well as 1ts risk management objectives and strategy for undertaking varncus hedge transactions This process includes hinking
derivatives that are used 1n hedging transactions to specific assets and labiities on the Consohdated Balance Sheets or to specific
firm commutments or forecasted transactions The Company also assesses, both at the hedge’s inception and on an ongoing basis,
whether dervatives that are used in hedging transactions are effective 1n offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged
items Hedge effectiveness 1s reviewed quarterly through correlation testing

Derwvatives not designated as hedges for accounting purposes
For dervative investments not designated as accounting hedges, changes in fair value are recorded in net investment income
Farr value hedges

For fair value hedges, changes 1n fair value of both the hedging instrument and the hedged item are recorded 1n net investment
income and consequently any ineffective portion of the hedge 1s recorded immediately in net investment income

The Company currently uses interest rate swaps designated as fair value hedges

Cash flow hedges

For cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the changes n fair value of the hedging instrument 1s recorded in the same manner
as the hedged item m either net investment income or other comprehensive income while the meffective portion 1s recogmized
ymmediately 1n net investment income Gamns and losses that accumnulate in other comprehensive income are recorded 1n net
investment income 1n the same period the hedged item affects net earnings Gans and losses on cash flow hedges are immediately
reclassified from other comprehensive income to net investment income 1f and when it 1s probable that a forecasted transaction 1s
no longer expected to occur

The Company currently has no derivatives designated as cash flow hedges

Net investment hedges

For net mnvestment hedges the effecuve portion of changes n the fair value of the hedging instrument are recorded n other
comprehensive income while the ineffective portion 1s recognized immediately in net investment income Hedge accounting 1s
discontinued when the hedging no longer qualifies for hedge accounting
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

th)

U]

0

(k)

)]
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Embedded Derivatives

An embedded denivative 1s a component of a host contract that modifies the cash flows of the host contract 1n a manner similar
to a derivative, according to a specified interest rate, financial insttument price, foreign exchange rate, underlying index or other
vanable Embedded derivatives are treated as separate contracts and are recorded at fair value if their economic charactenstics
and risks are not closely related to those of the host contract and the host contract 1s not itself recorded at fair value through the
Consolidated Statements of Earnings Embedded derivatives that meet the defimion of an insurance contract are accounted for
and measured as an insurance contract

Foreign Currency Translation

The Company operates with multiple functional currencies The Company's consolidated financial statements are presented
in Canadian dollars as this presentatton 1s most meanngful to financial statement users For those subsichanes with different
funcuional currencies, exchange rate differences arising from the translation of monetary 1items that form part of the net investment
in the foreign operation are taken to unrealized foreign exchange gains (losses) on translation of foreign operations in accumulated
other comprehensive iIncome

For the purpose of presentuing consohdated financial statements, assets and Liabihities are translated into Canadian dollars at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet dates and all income and expense tems are translated at an average of datly rates
Unrealized foreign currency translation gains and losses on the Company’s net investment 1in 1ts foreign operations are presented
separately, net of the impact of net investment hedges, as a component of other comprehensive income Unrealized gains and
losses will be recognized proportionately in net investment income on the Consolidated Statements of Earnings when there has
been a disposal of the investment 1n the foreign operations Foreign currency translation gains and losses on foreign currency
transactions of the Company are included in net iInvestment income

Loans to Policyholders

Loans to pohcyholders are shown at their unpaid principal batance and are fully secured by the cash surrender values of the policies
Carrying value of loans to polhicyholders approximates their fair value

Reinsurance Contracts

The Company, 1n the normal course of business, 1s both a user and provider of remsurance in order to it the potental for
losses ansing from certain exposures Assumed remnsurance refers to the acceptance of certain insurance risks by the Company
underwntten by another company Ceded reinsurance refers to the transfer of insurance risk, along with the respective premiums,
to one or more remnsurers who will share the risks To the extent that assuming reinsurers are unable to meet their obhigauons,
the Company remains hable to its policyholders for the portion reinsured Consequently, allowances are made for reinsurance
contracts which are deemed uncollectible

Assumed reinsurance premitms, commissions and claim settlements, as well as the retnsurance assets associated with insurance
and mnvestment contracts, are accounted for in accordance with the terms and condintons of the underlying reinsurance contract

Remsurance assets are reviewed for impairment on a regular basis for any events that may tngger impairment The Company
considers various factors in the impairment evaluation process, including but not limited to, collectability of amounts due under
the terms of the contract The carrying amount of a remnsurance asset 1s adjusted through an allowance accountwith any impairment
loss being recorded 1in the Consohdated Statements of Earnings

Any gains or losses on buying reinsurance ate recognized in the Consohdated Statements of Earnings immediately at the date of
purchase and are not amortized

Premiums and claims ceded for reinsurance are deducted from premiums earned and insurance and investment contract benefits
Assets and habihues related to reinsurance are reported on a gross basis in the Consohdated Balance Sheets The amount of
habilities ceded to remsurers is estimated in a manner consistent with the claim hability associated with remnsured risks

Funds Held by Ceding Insurers/Funds Held Under Reinsurance Contracts

Under certain forms of remsurance contracts, 1t 1s customary for the ceding insurer to retain possession of the assets supporting the
habilities ceded The Company records an amount receivable from the ceding insurer or payable to the reinsurer representing the
premium due Investment revenue on these funds withheld is credited by the ceding insurer

Business Combinations, Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method The Company 1denufies and classifies, 1n accordance
with the Company’s accounting policies, all assets acquired and habilities assumed as at the acquisition date Goodwll represents
the excess of purchase consideration over the fair value of net assets of acquired subsidiaries of the Company Following 1mitial
recogmtion, goodwill 1s measured at cost less accumulated unpairment losses

Intangible assets represent fimite life and indefinite life intangible assets of acquired subsidiaries of the Company and software
acquired or internally developed by the Company Finite iife intangibie assets include the value of software, customer contracts,
and distnbution channels, property leases and technology These finite life intangible assets are amortized over their esumated
useful lives, typically ranging between 5 and 30 years

Indefimte life intangible assets include brands and trademarks, customer contracis and the shareholder’s poruon of acquired future
participating account profits Amounts are classified as indefinite hfe intangible assets when based on an analysis of all the relevant
factors, there 1s no foreseeable limit to the pertod over which the asset1s expected to generate net cash inflows for the Company

The Great West Life Assurance Campany annua! Repor, 2013 15




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Basis of Presentation and Summary of Accounting Policres (cont'd)

(n)

(0}

p)

(q)

(r)

16

The 1dentification of indefinite life intangible assets 1s made by reference to relevant factors such as product life cycles, potential
obsolescence, industry stability and competitive position

Impairment Testing

Goodwll and 1ntangible assets are tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events indicate that impairment may have
occurred Intangihle assets that were previously impaired are reviewed at each reporting date for enidence of reversal [n the event
that certain conditions have been met, the Company would be required to reverse the impairment charge or a portion thereof

Goodwill has been allocated to cash generating units, representung the lowest level in which goodwill 1s momitored for internal
reporting purposes Goodwill 1s tested for impairment by comparing carrying value of each cash generating unit’s groups to the
recoverable amount to which the goodwill has been allocated Intangible assets are tested for impairment by comparing the asset’s
caITying amount to its recoverable amount Animpairment loss 1s recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds 1ts recoverable amount

The recoverable amount s the higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use, which 1s calculated using the present
value of estimated future cash flows expected to be generated

Revenue Recognition

Premmums for all types of insurance contracts, and contracts with hmited mortality or morbidity risk, are generally recognized as
revenue when due and collection 1s reasonably assured

Interest income on bonds and mortgages 1s recognized and accrued using the effective yield method

Dividend income 15 recognized when the right to recelve payment 1s estabhished This 1s the ex-dividend date for hsted stocks, and
usually the noufication date or date when the shareholders have approved the dividend for private equity instruments

Investment property income 1ncludes rents earned from tenants under lease agreements and property tax and operatng cost
recoveries Rental income leases with contractual rent increases and rent free periods are recogmzed on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease

Fee and other income primanly includes fees earned from the management of segregated fund assets, proprietary mutual funds
assets, fees earned on admuinistrative services only Group health contracts and fees earned from management services Fee and
other income 15 recognized when services are rendered and the amount can be reasonably estimated

The Company has sub-advisory arrangements where the Company retains the primary obhgation with the chent, as a result, fee Income
earned 1s reported on a gross basis with the corresponding sub-advisor expense recorded 1n operating and adminisirative expenses
Owner Occupied Properties and Filxed Assets

Property held for own use and fixed assets are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairments Depreciation 1s
charged to write-off the cost of assets, over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-hine method, on the following bases

QOwner occupied properties 15 — 20 years
Furniture and fixtures 5- 10 years
Other fixed assets 3-10years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at least annually and adjusted if necessary
Deferred Acquisition Costs

Included 1n other assets are deferred acquisition costs relaung to investment contracts These are recogmized 1f the costs are
incremental and incurred due to the contract being 1ssued

Segregated Funds

Segregated funds assets and habilities arise from contracts where all financial risks associated with the related assets are borne by
pohicyholders and are presented separately in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value Investment income and changes in fair
value of the segregated fund assets are offset by a corresponding change 1n the segregated fund habilities

Insurance and Investment Contract Liabilities

Coniract Classification

The Company's products are classified at contract inception, for accounting purposes, as insurance Contracts or investment
contracts depending on the existence of sigmificant insurance risk Significant insurance risk exists when the Company agrees to

compensate policyholders or beneficiaries of the contract for specified uncertan future events that adversely affect the policyholder
and whose amount and uming 1s unknown

When significant insurance risk exists, the contract 1s accounted for as an insurance contract in accordance with 1IFRS 4, Insurance
Contracts (IFRS 4) Refer to note 16 for a discussien of insurance nsk

In the absence of significant insurance risk, the contract 1s classified as an investment contract Investment coniracts with
discretionary parucipating features are accounted for 1n accordance wath [FRS 4 and investment contracts without discretionary
participating features are accounted for in accordance with 1AS 39, Financial Instruments Recogrition & Measurement The
Company has not classified any contracts as investment contracts with discretionary participating features
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(s}

(t)

(u)

Investment contracts may be reclassified as insurance contracts after inception 1f insurance risk becomes significant A contract
that s ctassified as an insurance contract at contract inception remains as such untl all nights and obligations under the contract
are extingwished or expire

[nvestment contracts are contracts that carry financial risk, which 1s the nisk of a possible future change in one or more of the
following 1nterest rate, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, or credit raung Refer to note 8 for discussion of risk management

Measurement

Insurance contract habilities represent the amounts required, in additton to furture premiums and invesument income, to provide
for future benefit payments, policyholder dinndends, commission and policy administrative expenses for all insurance and annuity
policies 1n force with the Company The Appointed Actuary of the Company 1s responsible for determining the amount of the
habihities to make appropriate provisions for the Company's obligations to policyholders The Appointed Actuary determines
the liabihties for 1nsurance and investment contracts using generally accepted actuarial practices, according to the standards
estabhshed by the Canadian Institute of Actuanes The valuation uses the Canadian Asset Liabiity Method This method involves
the projection of future events in order to determine the amount of assets that must be set aside currently to provide for all future
obligations and involves a significant amount of judgment

Insurance contract lhiabilities are computed wath the result that benefits and expenses are matched with premium income Under
fair value accounting, movement 1n the fair value of the supporung assets 1s a major factor 1n the movement of insurance contract
habihiies Changes in the fair value of assets are largely offset by corresponding changes in the fair value of habalities

Investment contract habiliies are measured at fair value through profit or loss, except for certain annuity products measured at
amortized cost

Deferred Income Reserves

Included 1n other habilities are deferred imcome reserves relating to investment contract hiabilities These are amortized on a
straight-line basis to recognize the imtial policy fees over the policy term, not to exceed 20 years

Participating Account

The shareholder portion of participating earnings represents, as restricted by law, a portion of net earnings before policyholder
dividends of the participating account The actual payment of the shareholder partion of parucipaung earmings s legally determmed
as a percentage of policyholder dividends paid

The Canada Life Assurance Company {Canada Life) participating account 1s compnsed of two main subdivisions The habihues
for parucipating policies 1ssued or assumed by Canada Life prior to demutualization are held in closed block sub-accounts These
habihnies for guaranteed and other non-guaranteed benefits are determined using best estimate assumptions If at any tume the
value of the assets allocated to these policies were, 1n the opinion of the Appointed Actuary, less than the assets required 1n the
long term to support the habilines of these policies and the future reasonable expectations of the policyholders, assets having a
sufficient value to rectify the situation would be transferred first from the addinenal ancillary sub-accounts maintained in the
participating account for this purpose and then, if the deficiency 1s expected to be permanent, from the shareholder account Any
such transfers from the shareholder account would be recorded as a charge to shareholder net earnings

The second main subdivision comprises the open block sub-accounts containing alt hiabilities 1n respect of new participating
policies 1ssued on or after demutuahzation On demutualization, $50 of seed capual was transferred from shareholder surplus to
the participating account The seed capital amount, together with a reasonable rate of return, may be transferred to the shareholder
account1f the seed capital 1s no longer required to support the new parucipating policies Transfers of seed capital to the shareholder
account would be returns of capital and would be recorded as adjustments to sharehclder surplus A reasonable rate of return on
seed capital will be recognized as income 1n the shareholder account and as an expense in the participating account when paid $16
(US 315) of seed capital remains to be repaid

Income Taxes

The income tax expense for the penod represents the sum of current income tax and deferred income tax Income tax 1s recogmzed
as an expense or iIncome 1n profit or loss except to the extent that 1t relates to 1tems that are recognized outside profit or loss (whether
1n other comprehensive income or directly in equity), in which case the income tax 1s also recognized outside profit or loss

Current Income Tax

Current income tax 1s based on taxable income for the year Current income tax habilities (assets) for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from) the taxauon authorities using the tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date Current income tax assets and current income tax liabihities are offset 1if
a legally enforceable right exists to offset the recogmzed amounts and the entity intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize
the assets and settle the labihities simultaneously

A provision for tax uncertainties which meet the probable threshold for recogmuon 1s measured based on the probability weighted
average approach
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(v)

(w)

(x)

(v}
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Deferred Income Tax

Deferred mcome tax 1s the tax expected 1o be payable or recoverable on differences ansing between the carrying amounts of
assets and habilities 1n the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable income and
1s accounted for using the balance sheet hability method Deferred income tax liabihties are generally recognized for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred income tax assets are recognzed to the extent that 1t 1s probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and carryforwards can be utihized

Deferred income tax assets and habilities are measured at the tax rates expected to apply in the year when the asset 1s realized or the
hability 15 settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date Deferred
income tax assets and deferred income tax habilities are offset 1if a legally enforceable right exists to net current Income tax assets
against current income tax habihities and the deferred income taxes relate to the same taxable entity and same taxation authonty

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that 1t 1s no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized
Unrecogmzed deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are recognized to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred income tax asset to be recovered

Deferred income tax habilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences ansing on investments in subsidianes and
assoclates, except where the group controls the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and 1t 15 probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse 1n the foreseeable future

Policyholder Benefits

Policyholder benefits include benefits and claims on life insurance contracts, maturity payments, annuity payments and surrenders
Gross benefits and claims for life insurance contracts include the cost of all claims ansing during the year and settlement of claims
Death claims and surrenders are recorded on the basis of notifications received Maturities and annuity payments are recorded
when due

Repurchase Agreements

The Company enters into repurchase agreements with third-party broker-dealers 1n which the Company sells securnities and agrees
to repurchase substanually similar secunuies at a specified date and price Assubstantally all of the risks and rewards of ownership of
the assets are retained, the Company does not derecognize the assets Such agreements are accounted for as investment financings

Pension Plans and Other Post-Employment Benefits

The Company's subsidiaries maintain contributory and non-contributory defined benefit pension plans for certain employees
and advisors The Company’s subsidianes also provide post-employment health, dental and hfe insurance benefits to ehgtble
employees, advisors and their dependents

The present value of the defined benefit obhganons and the related current service cost 1s determined using the projected unit
credit method (note 26) Assets are determuned using a fair value measurement

For the Company's defined benefit plans, service costs and net 1nterest costs are recogmzed in the Consolidated Statements of
Earnings Service costs include current service cost, administration expenses, past service costs and the impact of curtailments and
setttements To determine the net 1nterest costs (income) recogrzed n the Consohdated Statements of Earmings, the Company
applies a discount rate to the net benefit iability (asset), where the discount rate 1s determined by reference to market yields at the
beginning of the year on high quality corporate bonds

For the Company's defined benefit plans, remeasurements of the net defined benefit lability {(asset) due to asset returns less (greater)
than nterest income, actuarial losses (gains) and changes in the asset ceiling are recogmzed immediately 1n the Consolidated
Statements of Comprehensive Income

The Company's subsidiaries also maintain defined contribution pension plans for certain employees and advisors For the
Company’s defined contribution plans, the current service costs are recogmzed in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings

Share Capital and Surplus

Financal instruments 1ssued by the Company are classified as share capital if they represent a residual interest in the assets of the
Company Preferred share capital 1s classified as equity if 1t 1s non-redeemable, or retractable only at the Company’s option and
any dividends are discretionary Incremental costs that are directly attributable to the 1ssue of share capital are recogmized as a
deduction from equity, net of mcome tax

Contnbuted surplus represents the vesting of share options less share options exercised and contnibutions from the parent company
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) represents the total of the unrealized foreign exchange gawns (losses) on
translanon of foreign operations, the unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale assets, and the unrealized gains {losses) on
cash flow hedges

Participating account surplus represents the proportion of equity attributable to the participating account of the Company and the
Company'’s subsidianes
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(z)

Share-Based Payments

Lifeca has a stock option plan that provides for the granting of options on common shares of Lifeco to certain officers and employees
of Lifeco and 1its affihates The Company follows the fair value based method of accounting for the valuation of compensation
expense for shares and share opuions granted to employees under s stock option plans {note 25) Compensation expense 1s
recognized as an increase to compensation expense In the Consolhidated Statements of Earmings and an increase to contributed
surplus over the vesting period of the granted options

{aa) Leases

Leases that do not transfer substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership are classified as operating leases Payments made
under operating leases, where the Company 1s the lessee, are charged to net earnings over the period of use

Where the Company 1s the lessor under an operating lease for 1ts investment property, the assets subject to the lease arrangement
are presented within the Consolidated Balance Sheets Income from these leases 1s recogmized in the Consohdated Statements of
Earnings on a straight-line basis over the lease term

(ab) Operating Segments

Operating segments have been identified based on internal reports that are regularly reviewed by the Company's Chief Executive
Officer to allocate resources and assess performance of segments The Company’s reportable business segments are the participating
and shareholder operations of the Company Within these segments the major business units are Indivadual Insurance, Wealth
Management, Group Insurance, Europe, Corporate, and Partucipating Reinsurance operations and operations in ali countries other
than Canada and the United States are reported as part of the Europe segment The Corporate segment represents activities and
transactions that are not directly attnibutable to the measurement of the operating segments of the Company

Changes in Accounting Policies

(a)

1AS 19R — Employee Benefits

Effective January 1, 2013, the Company adopted revised [AS 19, Employee Benefits (IAS 19R) In accordance with the required
transitional provisions, the Company retrospecuvely applied the revised standard The 2012 comparative financial information 1n
the financial statements and notes to the financial statements has been restated accordingly The Inish Life pension plan balances
assumed on fuly 18, 2013 reflected the adopuion of IAS 19R

The amendments made to IAS 19R include the ellmination of the corndor approach for actuanal gains and losses whach resulted
in those gans and losses being recognized immediately through other comprehensive income As a result the net pension asset
or liability reflects the funded status (deficit) of the pension plans (less any asset ceillings) on the Consolidated Balance Sheets In
addiuon, all service costs including curtailments and settlements are recognized immediately i profit or loss

Additionally, the expected return on plan assets 1s no longer applied 1o the fair value of the assets to calculate the benefit cost
Under the revised standard, the same discount rate must be apphed to the benefit obligation and the plan assets to determine the
net interest expense (income) This discount rate for the net interest expense (Income) 1s determined by reference to market yields
at the beginning of the year on high quality corporate bonds

Further, the standard includes changes to how the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of the plan assets and the components
of the pension expense are presented and disclosed within the financial statements of an entity including the separation of the
total amount of the pension plans and other post-employment benefits expense between amounts recognized in the Consohidated
Statements of Earnings (service costs and net mterest costs) and in the Consohdated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(re-measurements) Disclosures relating to retirement benefit plans include discussions on the Company's pension plan nsk,
sensitivity analysis, an explanation of items recognized 1n the financial statements and descriptions of the amount, tming and
uncertainty on the Company's future cash flows (note 26)

In accordance with the ransinonal provisions 1n IAS 19R, this change has been applied retrospectively which resulted 1n a decrease
to opening equity at January 1, 2012 of $358 (decrease of $318 to shareholders’ equity and $40 to parucipating account surplus)
with an additional decrease to opemng equity of $133 (decrease of $119 to shareholders’ equity and $14 to participating account
surplus) at January 1, 2013

The financial statement 1tems restated due to IAS 19R include other assets, deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabihties, other
habilities, accumulated surplus, and accurmnulated other comprehensive income presented and disclosed 1n the financial statements
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(b)

(c}

20

Restatement of Prior Periods
A summary of the 1mpact ansing from the adoption of IAS 19R 15 as follows

Share capital, Partiapating  Accumulated other
contributed account comprehensive Accumulated Total
surplus surplus fess surplus equity
Balance at January 1, 2012 previously reported $ 6645 $ 2216 $ {150y § 5.418 $ 14129
Adjustments for retrospective application of 1AS 19R - {40) (361) 43 (358)
Revised equity at January 1, 2012 $ 6,645 $ 2176 $ {511) $ 5,461 $ 13,11
for the year ended December 31, 2012
Other
Net comprehensive  Comprehensive
earnings income {loss) income
Comprehensive income previously reported $ 0 $ 7 § 2,028
Adjustments to comprehensive income
Penston and other post-employment benefits expense (8) an) {179)
Income tax 2 44 46
{6 (127) {133)
Revised comprehensive income $ 2,015 $ (120) $ 1,895

The apphcation of IAS 19R resulted 1n a decrease to assets of $216 and an increase 10 hablities of $142 at January 1, 2012 In
addition, assets increased by $20 and habilities increased by $153 at December 31, 2012 The change 1n net earnings did not have
an impact ¢n the cash flows

IERS 10 - Consolidated Financlal Statements

In accordance with IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements (IFRS 10) the Company has evaluated whether or not to consol:date
an entity based on the defimtion of control The standard has defined control as dependent on the power of the investor to direct
the activities of the investee, the ability of the mvestor to denve variable benefits from its holdings in the investee, and a direct hink
between the power to direct activities and receive benefits

Investment and Insurance Contracts on Account of Segregated Fund Policyholders

The Company assessed the revised defimition of control for the segregated funds for the nisk of policyholders and concluded that
the revised definition of contro! was not significantly impacted The Company will continue to present the segregated funds for the
nisk of pohicyholders as equal and offsetting amounts with assets and habiliies within the Consolidated Balance Sheets and has
expanded disclosure on the nature of these entities and the related risks

In addition, 1n circumstances where the segregated fund 1s invested 1n structured entiies and 15 deemed to control this entity, the
Company has presented the non-controlling ownership interest within the segregated funds for the risk of policyholders as equal
and offsetting amounts with assets and habilities This change did not impact the net earnings and equity of the Company, however
1t resulted 1n an increase to segregated funds for the nsk of policyholders as equal and offsetiing amounts with assets and habihties
of $484 at December 31, 2012 and $403 at January 1, 2012 on the Consohdated Balance Sheets

The application of IFRS 10 for segregated funds for the risk of policyholders may continue to evolve as European nsurers are
required to adopt 1FRS 10 on January 1, 2014 The Company will continue to monitor these and other IFRS 10 developments

See note 15 for additional informanon of the presentation and disclosure of these structures
Capital Trust Securities

Canada Life Capital Trust and Great-West Life Capital Trust {the capital trusts) were consohdated by the Company under 1AS 27,
Consohdated and Separate Financial Statements The capital trusts will no longer be consolidated 1n the Company's Financial
Statements as the Company's investment 1n the capital trusts does not have exposure ta variable returns and therefore does not
meet the revised defimition of control in IFRS 10 The change in consolidaton did not impact the net earnings and equity of the
Company, however the deconsohidanon resulted 1n an increase to bonds of $44 at January 1, 2012 and $45 at December 31, 2012,
both with corresponding increases io the capual trust debenture iability on the Consolidated Balance Sheets

Also as a result of the adoption of IERS 10 the Company reclassified $47 between stocks and investment properties at December 31,
2012 and $48 at January 1, 2012

IFRS 11 — Joint Arrangements

The Company has adopted the guidance n IFRS 11, Jount Arrangements which separates jointly controlled entities between joint
operattons and joint ventures The standard elimuinated the option of using proportionate consolidation of accounting for the
Interests 1n joint ventures, requiring entities to use the equity method of accounting for interests n joint ventures Where the
Company 15 involved in joint operations, 1t recognizes its share of assets, habihties and net earnings The adoption of this standard
has had no impact on the financial statements of the Company
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(d)

(e)

)

(g)

(h)

IFRS 12 — Dnisclosure of Interests in Other Entittes

In conjunction with the adoption of IFRS 10, the Company has adopted the guidance of IFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other
Ennintes The standard requires enhanced disclosure including how control was determuned and any restricuons that might exist
on consolidated assets and habihties presented from subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates, and structured entiies The
adopuion of this standard increased the amount of disclosure concerning the substdiaries and investment 1n associates by the
Company and has not impacted the financial results of the Company (note 15)

IFRS 13 — Fair Value Measurement

The Company has adopted IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement (IFRS 13), effective January 1, 2013 In accordance with the transihional
provisions, IFRS 13 has been apphed prospectively from that date The change had no impact on the measurement of the Company’s
assets and habilnes However, the Company has included new disclosures in the financial statements which are required under
IFRS 13 (note 9

IAS | ~ Presentation of Financial Statements

The Company has adopted the guidance of the amended 1AS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements Under the amended standard,
other comprehensive income 1s classified by nature and grouped between itemns that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss (when specific conditions are met) and those that will not be reclassified This revised standard relates only to presentation and
has not impacted the financial results of the Company

IFRS 7 - Financial Instruments

The Company has adopted the guidance in the amendments to IFRS 7, Financial Instruments which introduces financial instrument
disclosures related to nghts of offset and related arrangements under master netting agreements This revised standard relates only
to disclosure and has not impacted the financial results of the Company (note 10)

Future Accounting Policies

IFRS that may change subsequent to 2013 and could impact the Company are set out in the following table

Revised/New Standard Summary of Future Changes

|AS 32 — financial instruments Presentation Effective January 1 2014 the Company will adopt the guidance in tha amendments to IAS 32, financial Instruments
Presentatron the amended standard clarifies the requirements for offsetting financial assets and finanaial iabihities

The Company has evaluated the impact of this standard and determuned that it will not impact the presentation of its
financial statements

145 36 — Impairment of Assets Effecuve lanuary 1, 2014, the Company will adopt the guidance 1n the amendments 10 %AS 36, imparrment of Assets The
amendment clanfies the disclosure about the recoverable amount, in accordance with IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement, of
impaired assets If that amount 15 based on fair value less costs of dispasal

The Campany 1s evaluating the impact this standard will have of its financial statement disclosures

IFRS 9 — Anancial Instruments The 1AS8 1ssued IFRS 9, Financal Instruments in 2010 to replace 1AS 3% Financral nstruments The 1ASB intends to make
further changes in financial nstruments accounting and has separated 1ts project to amend IFRS 9 into three phases
classification and measurement, impairment methodology and hedge accounting

* The 1ASB released a propesal 10 amend the classificatron and measurement provisions of IFRS 9 with an additonal
limited amendment 1o the standard ntroducing a new category for classification of centan financial assets of fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI} The IASB ntends to release a final IFRS on this phase in the first
half of 2014

* The IASB released a revised exposure draft in March 2013 on the expected loss impairment method to be used for
financial assets The JASB Iintends to release a final IFRS on this phase in the first ha!f of 2014

* The IASS has finalized deliberations on the critena for hedge accounting and measuring effectiveness and released the
final hedge accounting phase in Noverber 2013 The Company i evaluating the impact this standard wall have on the
presentation of its financial statements

The fultimpact of IFRS 9 on the Company will be evaluated after ihe remaining stages of the 1A58's project to replace 1AS
39 In July 2013, the 158 tentatively decided to defer the mandatory sffective date of IFRS 9, which walt not be set until
the finahization of the impairmen: methodology and classification and measurement requirements phasas The Company
continues to actively manitor this standard n conqunction with the developments to IFRS 4

IFRIC 21 - Levies The LASB 1ssued IFRIC 21, Lewes on the accounting for fevies imposed by gavernments effective for annual periods
beginning January 1 2014 The interpretation considered the guidance i 1AS 37, Prowsions, Contingent Liabuhiiies and
Contingent Assets for the recogmtion of a levy hability due 1o an obligating event described tn the Jegislation that brings
about payment of the levy

The Company 1s evaluating the impact this standard will have on the presentation of its finanaial statements
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4  Inish Life Group Limited Acquisition

On July 18, 2013, Lifeco, through Great-West Life’s wholly-owned subsidiary Canada Life Limited, completed the acquisition of all of the
shares of Irish Life Group Limited (Irish Life)

The hife and pension operations of the Company's Insh subsidiary, Canada Life (Ireland), are being combmed with the operations of
Insh Life, retaining the Insh Life brand name Insh Life has a strong brand wath a broad product offering, and wide, multi-channel
distribution network, similar to the Company's operations in Canada

This in-market acquisition will transform the Company’s business 1n Ireland mto a market leader in the hfe msurance, pension and
investment management sectors Irsh Life employs a sumilar and consistent strategy to Lifeco 1n that 1t aims 1o maximize shareholder
returns 1n a low risk and capital efficient manner

Funding for the transaction includes the net proceeds of the February 19, 2013 1ssuance of approximately $1,250 Lifeco subscription
receipts offering which was completed on March 12, 2013 That offering was comprised of a $650 public bought deal offering as well
as concurrent private placements of suhscription recepts to Power Financial Corporation of $550 and to IGM Financial Inc of $50
The subscription receipts were classified as financial habilities unul July 18, 2013 With the closing of the transaction on that date the
subscription receipts were exchanged on a one-for-one basis for 48,660,000 common shares of Lifeco The balance of the funding for the
transaction came from a Lifeco euro-denominated debt 1ssuance (described below) and internal cash resources

On April 18, 2013 Lifeco 1ssued €500 of 10-year bands denomnated mn euros with an annual coupon of 2 50% The bonds are rated A+
by Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services The bonds are listed on the Insh Stock Exchange The Company has also entered into foreign
exchange forward contracts to fix the euro to the British pound rate on approximately €300 of the net investment 1n Irish Life which has
been designated as a hedge

The amounts assigned to the assets acquired, goodwill and habiliuies assumed as at December 31, 2013 are below

Acquision consideration $ 1,788
Assets acquired
Cash and cash equivalents S 554
Invested assets 4,883
Reinsurance assets 2,963
Intangible assets 247
Other assets 508
Investments on account of segregated fund pokcyholders 36,348
Total assets acquired 45,503
Liabilities assumed
Insurance contract habilitres $ 6,160
Investment contract habilities 194
Subordinated debentures and other debt instruments 443
Other labilities 948
fnvestment and insurance contract habihities on account of segregated fund policyholders 36,348
Total habihties assumed 44,093
Net value of assets acquired $ 1410
Goodwill $ 378

During the fourth quarter of 2013, the Company substantially completed 1ts comprehensive evaluauon of the fair value of the net
assets acquired from Insh Life and the purchase price allocation As a result, imtal goodwill of $554 recognized upon the acquisition
of Insh Life on July 18, 2013 1n the Insh Life Group Limited Acquisition note to the September 30, 2013 consolidated interim unaudited
financial statements has been adjusted in the fourth quarter of 2013, as a result of valuations recerved dunng the measurement period
Adjustments were made to the provisional amounts disclosed 1n the September 30, 2013 interim unaudited financial statements for the
recognition and measurement of intangible assets, contingent habilines and other provisions, changes 1n actuanal assumptions used in
determining the fair value for insurance contract habilites, and the related deferred taxes

The following provides the change in the carrying value of the goodwall on the acquisiion of Intsh Life to December 31, 2013

Imtial Irtsh Life goodwill, July 18, 2013, previously reported $ 554
Recognition and measurement of intangible assets (247)
Adjustment to contingent liabilities and other provisions 3¢
Adjustment to insurance contract habilities 15
Deferred tax hability on changes in purchase price allocation 26
Balance, July 18, 2013 (note 12} $ 378

22 The Great West Life Assurance Company Annual Report 2013



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets, representing the synergies or future
economic benefits ansing from other assets acquired that are not individually identified and separately recognized in the acquisition of
Insh Life The goodwill 15 not deductible for tax purposes

The Company will finalize the purchase accounting in the first six months of 2014 Balance sheet items that are Incomplete are insurance
contract habiities The Company 15 completing experience studies on certain insurance contract habilities As a result, the excess of
the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets acquired represenung goodwill could be adjusted for these insurance contract
habilities retrospectively during future reporting pertods 1n the first six months of 2014 The audited financial statements at December 31,
2013 reflect management's best esumate of the purchase price allocation

From date of acquisition to December 31, 2013 Inish Life contributed $526 1n revenue and $85 in net earnings (excludes after-tax
restructuring expenses incurred by Insh Life) These amounts are inciuded wn the Consolidated Statements of Earmngs and
Comprehensive Income for the twelve months ended December 31, 2013

During the twelve months ended December 31, 2013, the Company incurred restructuring and acquisition expenses related to Irish Life
of $94 (note 19)

Supplemental pro-forma revenue and net earnings for the combined entity, as though the acquisiuon date for this business combination
had been as of the beginnming of the annual reporting pertod, has not been included as 1t 1s impracucable as Insh Life had a different
financial reporting basis than the Company

The Company has recogmzed within other habilities $48 of contingent habilities The potential outcome of these matters 1s not yet
determinable

5 Cash and Cash Equivalents

December 31 December 31 January 1
2013 2012 2012
Cash $ 1,662 S 894 $ n3
Short-term deposits 569 758 1,142
Total $ 2231 $ 1,652 $ 1,855

At December 31, 2013 cash of $111 was restricted for use by the Company ($33 at December 31, 2012 and $40 at January 1, 2012) in
respect of cash held in trust for reinsurance agreements or with regulatory authorities, chent monies held by a brokerage and cash held
IN esCIow

6 Portfolio Investments

(a) Carrying values and estimated fair values of portfolio investments are as follows

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012 January 1 2012
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
value value value value value value

Bonds
Designated fair value through profit or loss™ $ 53,582 $ 53,582 § 49,553 § 49,553 $ 47,312 §$ 41,312
Classified far value through profit or loss™ 1,697 1,697 1,750 1,750 1,702 1,702
Available-for-sale 6,680 6,680 5,594 5,594 5.071 5,071
Loans and recewvables 7,725 8,256 1.219 8,258 6,440 7,103
69,684 70,215 64,116 65,155 60,525 61,188

Meortgage loans

Residential 5,609 5,751 5176 5.525 5,252 5,654
Non-residential 10,125 10,377 9,835 10,458 9,597 10,275
15,734 16,128 15,011 15,983 14,849 15,929

Stocks
Designated fair value through profit or loss™ 7,232 7,232 5918 5918 5454 5.454
Available-for-sale 507 507 507 507 544 544
Other 577 743 345 383 338 406
8,316 8,482 6,770 6,808 6,336 6,404
Investment properties 4,286 4,286 3,568 3,568 3,246 3,246
Total $ 98,020 $ 99,111 $ 89,465 $ 91,514 $ 84,95 $ 86,767

{1) Investments can be classified as farr value through profit orloss in enther of two ways designated as {air value through profit or toss at the option of management or dassified as fair value through profit
or loss if they are acively traded for the purpose of earning mvestment income
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6 Portfolia Investments (cont'd)

{b) Carrying value of bonds and mortgages by term to maturity are as follows

{c}

24

December 31, 2013
Term to matunty

1 year Over 1 - Over 5
or less 5 years years Total
Bonds $ 1430 $ 12,744 $ 49,420 $ 69,594
Mortgage loans 1.421 5,925 8,366 15,712
Total $ 83851 $ 18,669 $ 57786 $ 857306
December 31 2012
Term 1o matunty
1 year Over 1-— Qver 5
ar less S years years Total
Bonds ' 6,088 s 1,777 $ 46,159 $ 64,024
Meortgage loans 1181 5.385 8,420 14,986
Total s 7,269 $ 17162 $ 54579 $ 79,010
January ¥ 2012
Term to matunity
1 year Over 1 - Qver 5
or bess 5 years years Total
Bonds b 5,296 $ 11,494 § 43,659 $ 60,449
Mortgage loans 1,484 4,959 8,372 14,815
Total $ 6,780 $ 16,453 $ 520 $ 75264

The above excludes the carrying value of impaired bonds and mortgages, as the ultimate timing of collectability 1s uncertain

Certaln stocks where equity method earnings are computed are discussed below:

(1)

Stocks include the Company's investment n an affihated company, IGM, a member of the Power Financial group of compames,
over which 1t exerts significant influence but does not control The Company's proportionate share of IGM's earnings 1s
recorded 1n net investment mecome in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings The Company owns 9,202,817 shares of iGM
at December 31, 2013 (9,203,061 at December 31, 2012) representing a 3 65% ownership interest {3 62% at December 31, 2012)
The Company uses the equity method to account for 1ts investment 1n IGM as 1t exercises significant influence Significant
influence arises from several factors, including, but not imited to the following common control of IGM by Power Financial,
shared representation on the Boards of Directors of the Company and 1GM, interchange of manageral personnel, and certain
shared strategic allances, significant intercompany transactions and services agreements that influence the financial and
operating policies of both companies

2013 2012
Carrying value, beginning of year $ 345 3 338
Equity method share of IGM earnings 25 26
Dividends recerved {20} {19)
Carrying value, end of year $ 350 $ 345
Share of equity, end of year $ 169 ) 162
Fair value, end of year $ 516 ] 383

The Cempany and IGM both have a year end reporting date of December 31 and as a consequence, the Company reports IGM's
financial information by esimating the amount of income attributable to the Company, based on prior quarter information as
well as consensus expectations, to complete equity method accounting The difference between actual and esumated results
15 reflected 1n the subsequent quarter and 1s generally not material to the Company’s financial statements

IGM’s financial information as at December 31, 2013 can be obtained 1n 1ts publicly available information
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{n) Stocks include the Company’s 30 43% 1nvestment, held through Irish Life, in Alhanz Ireland, an unlisted general insurance
company operating in Ireland

The Company’s share of the net assets of Alhanz Ireland 1s as follows

2013
Carrying value, July 18, 2013 3 197
Equity method share of Alhanz comprehensive income 20
Dividends received (15)
Foreign exchange rate changes 15
| Carrying value, end of year $ 217
Share of equity, end of year $ 161

| The fair value of Allanz Ireland as at December 31, 2013 15 not readily available as 1t 1s not publicly traded
i The Company and Alhanz Ireland both have a year end reporting date of December 31 and as a consequence, the Company
reports Alhanz Ireland’s financial information by estimating the amount of income attnbutable to the Company, based on
prior quarter information, to complete equity method accounting The difference between actual and estimated results 1s
reflected 1n the subsequent quarter and 1s generally net matenal to the Company's financial staterments
(d) Included in portfolio investments are the following:

(1} Carrying amount of impatred investments

. December 31 Decermber 31 January 1
| 2013 02 2012
I Impaired amounts by classification
Fair value through profit or loss $ 75 b " $ 59
Available-for-sale 12 17 19
Loans and receivables 35 43 47
Total $ 122 $ 31 $ 125

The above carrying values for loans and receivables are net of allowances of $22 at December 31, 2013, and $19 at December 31,
2012 and January 1, 2012

() The allowance for credit losses and changes 1n the allowance for credit losses related to investments classified as loans and
receivables are as follows

2013 2012
Mortgage Mortgage
Bonds loans Total Bonds loans Total

Balance, beginning of year 3 - b3 19 $ 19 ' 2 ] 17 3 19

Net provision (recovery) for credit losses = in year - 2 2 - 5 3
Write-offs, net of recoveries - - - () (3} (4} |
Other {including foreign exchange rate changes) - 1 1 (1 - (M |
Balance, end of year $ - $ 22 $ 22 $ - $ 19 s 19

The allowance for credit losses 1s supplemented by the provision for future credit losses included in insurance contract habilities
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6 Partfolio Investments {cont'd)

(e} Netinvestment income comprises the following:

2013
Mortgage Investment
Bonds foans Stocks properties Qther Total
Regular net investment income
Investment income earned $ 2936 728 $ 228 $ 276 269 $ 4437
Net realized gamns
Available-for-sale 49 - - - - 49
Other classifications 20 25 - - - 45
Net allowances for credit losses on loans and receivables - (2) - - - 2)
Other income and expenses - - - (67) (61) (128)
3,005 751 228 209 208 4,401
Changes 1n fair value on fair value through profit or loss assets
Net realizedfunrealized gains {losses)
Classified fair value through profit or loss (52) - - - - (52)
Designated fair value through profit or loss (3.248) - 830 152 {59) (2,325)
{(3.300) - 830 152 (59) (2,377)
Total $ {295) 751 $ 1,058 $ 361 149 $ 2,024
20120
Mortgage Investment
Bonds loans Stocks properties Other Total
Regular net investment income
Investment income earned $ 2,902 754 $ 222 $ 255 335 $ 4468
Net realized gains
Available-for-sale 106 - 1 - - 107
Other classifications 9 22 - - - 3N
Net allowances for credit losses on loans and receivables - {5) - - - 5
Other income and expenses - - - (63) (59) {122}
3.7 m 223 192 276 4,479
Changes in fair value on fair value through profit or loss assets
Net realizedfunrealized gains (losses)
Classified fair value through profit or loss 23 - - - - 23
Designated fair value through profit or loss 1,768 - 377 104 (54) 2,195
1,791 - 3n 104 (54) 2,218
Total $ 4,808 mn $ 600 $ 296 222 M 6,697

{%) During the year, the Company reclassified certain regular net investment income 1¢ fair value through profit or loss for presentation adjustments

Investment income earned comprises income from investments that are classified as available-for-sale, loans and receivables and
classified or designated as fair value through profit or loss Investment income from bonds and mortgages includes interest income
and premium and discount amornzation Income from stocks includes dividends and equity ncome from the imvestment m IGM
and Allianz Ireland Investment properttes income includes rental income earned on investment properties, ground rent mcome
earned on leased and sub-leased land, fee recovenes, lease cancellation income, and interest and other investment income earned

oninvesiment properties
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{f) The carrying value of investment properties and changes in the carrying value of investment properties are as follows:

2013 2012
Balance, beginming of year $ 3,568 $ 3,246
Additions 182 166
Acquisition of frish Life 248 -
Change in fair value through profit or loss 152 104
Disposal (80) -
Foreign exchange rate changes 216 52
Balance, end of year $ 4,286 $ 3568

(g) Transferred Financial Assets

The Company engages in securitles lending to generate addinonal income The Company's securities custodians are used as
lending agents Collateral, which exceeds the market value of the loaned securities, 1s deposited by the borrower wath the Company’s
lending agent and maimntained by the lending agent until the underlying security has been returned The market value of the loaned
securities 15 monitored on a daily basis by the lending agent who obtains or refunds additional collateral as the fair value of the
loaned securtties fluctuates In addition, the securities lending agent indemnifies the Company against borrower risk, meaning that
the lending agent agrees contractually to replace secunties not returned due to a borrower default As at December 31, 2013, the
Company had loaned securities {(which are included 1n invested assets) with a market value of $5,176 ($5,793 at December 31, 2012)

7  Funds Held by Ceding Insurers

Included in funds held by ceding insurers of $10,832 at December 31, 2013 ($10,599 at December 31, 2012 and $9,978 at January 1, 2012}
15 an agreement with Standard Life Assurance Limited (Standard Life) During 2008, Canada Life International Re Limuted (CLIRE), the
Company's indirect wholly-owned Irish reinsurance subsidiary, signed an agreement with Standard Life, a U K based provider of bife,
pension and investment products, to assume by way of indemnity reinsurance, a large block of payout annuities Under the agreement,
CLIRE 1s required to put amounts on deposit with Standard Life and CLIRE has assumed the credit nsk on the portfolio of assets included
i the amounts on deposit These amounts on deposit are included in funds held by ceding insurers on the Consolidated Balance Sheets
Income and expenses ansing from the agreement are included 1in net investment income on the Consohidated Statements of Earnings

At December 31, 2013 CLIRE had amounts on deposit of $9,848 ($9,951 at December 31, 2012 and $9,411 at January 1, 2012) The details
of the funds on deposit and related credit nisk on the funds are as follows

{a) Carrying values and estimated fair values-

December 31, 2013 December 31,2012 lanuary 1, 2012
Carmrymg Fair Carrying Fatr Carrying Fair
value value value value value vafue
Cash and cash equivalents $ 70 $ 70 s 120 b 120 $ 49 s 49
Bonds 9,619 9,619 9,655 9,655 9,182 9,182
Other assets 159 159 176 176 180 180
Total $ 9,848 $ 9848 $ 9,951 $ 9,951 $ 9,41 $ 9,411
Supporting
Reinsurance habihities 9,402 9,402 9,406 9,406 9,082 9,082
Surplus 446 446 545 545 329 329
Total $ 9,848 $ 9,848 5 8,951 s 9,951 $ 941 S 9,411
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7 Funds Held by Ceding Insurers {cont'd)

(b) The following provides details of the carrying value of bonds included in the funds on deposit by Issuer and industry sector

December 31 December 31 January )
2013 2012 2012
Bonds 1ssued or guaranteed by
Canadian federal government $ 75 ] 7 $ -
Provincial, state, and municipal governments 17 16 88
US Treasury and other US agenctes 22 16 -
Other foreign governments 2,097 2,455 3,074
Government related 508 443 369
Supranationals 185 172 128
Asset-backed secunities 249 258 242
Residential mortgage-backed securities 9 a7 13
Banks 1,944 2,070 1,807
Other finanaial insututions 1,033 1,007 747
Basic matenals 70 58 i
Communications 138 224 239
Consumer products 704 617 404
Industnal productsiservices 108 3 26
Natural resources 354 320 220
Real estate 540 475 381
Transpartation 196 145 17
Utilities 1,190 1,119 1,135
Miscellaneous 98 " 111
Total $ 9619 $ 9,655 $ 9182
(¢) Asset quality
December 31 December 31 Januasy 1
Bond Portfolio By Credit Rating 013 2012 2012
AAA $ 2669 $ 3,103 $ 3,520
AA 2,382 2,183 1,819
A 3,666 3,539 3,116
BBB 546 507 468
BB and lower 356 323 259
Total % 9619 § 965 $ 9182

8 Financial Instruments Risk Management

The Company has policies relating to the identification, measurement, momtonng, mitigaung, and controlhing of nisks associated with
financial instruments The key r1sks related to financial instruments are credit nisk, hquichty risk and market risk {currency, interest rate
and equity) The Risk Commuttee of the Board of Directors 15 responsible for the oversight of the Company’s key risks

The Company has also established policies and procedures designed to identify, measure and report all matenal risks Management 15
responsible for establishing capital management procedures for implementng and monitoring the capital plan The Board of Directors
reviews and approves all capital transactions undertaken by management

The following sections describe how the Company manages each of these risks

{a) Credit Risk
Credit nsk 1s the nisk of financial loss resulting from the failure of debtors to make payments when due
The following policies and procedures are in place to manage this risk

« Investment guidelines are in place that requure only the purchase of iInvestment-grade assets and minimize undue concentration
of assets 1n any single geographic area, industry and company

* Investment guidelines specify mmmum and maxsimum hmits for each asset class Credit ratings are determined by recognized
external credit rauing agencies and/or internal credit review
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(1)

Investment guidelines also specify collateral requirements
Portfolios are monttored conunuously, and reviewed regularly with the Risk Committee and the Investment Committee of the
Board of Directors
Credit nsk associated with derivative instruments 1s evaluated quarterly based on conditions that existed at the balance sheet
date, using practices that are at least as conservative as those recommended by regulators
The Company 1s exposed to credit nsk relating to premiums due from pohcyholders during the grace penied specified by the
msurance policy or until the policy 1s paird up or terminated Commuissions paid to agents and brokers are netted against amounts
recelvable, 1f any
Reinsurance 1s placed with counterparties that have a good credit rating and concentration of credit risk 1s managed by following
policy guidelines set each year by the Board of Directors Management continuously momtors and performs an assessment of
creditworthimess of remnsurers

Maximum Exposure to Credit Risk

The following summarizes the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk related to financial instruments The maxumum
credit exposure 1s the carryming value of the asset net of any allowances for losses

December 31 December 31 January 1
2013 012 2012

Cash and cash equivalents $ 223 $ 1,652 ) 1,855
Bonds

Fair vatue through prefit or loss 55,279 51,303 49,014

Available-for-sale 6,680 5,594 5,071

Loans and receivables 7,725 7,219 6,440
Mortgage loans 15,734 15,011 14,849
Loans to policyhelders 2,896 2,864 2,858
Funds held by ceding insurers™ 10,832 10,599 9,978
Reinsurance assets 6,804 3,865 4,046
Interest due and accrued 954 843 854
Accounts receivable 844 723 508
Premium in course of collection 561 480 418
Trading account assets 70 - -
QOther financial assets® 205 166 134
Denvative assets 566 947 927
Total $ 111,381 $ 101,266 $ 96,952

{1} Includes $9,848 (59,951 at December 31, 2012) of funds held by ceding insurers where the Company retains the cradit nsk of the assets supperting the habilities ceded [note 7)
(2} Includes items such as current income taxes recesvable and miscellaneous ather assets of the Company (nate 14)

Credit risk 1s also mitigated by entering into collateral agreements The amount and type of collateral required depends on an
assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty Guidelines are implemented regarding the acceptabihty of types of collateral
and the valuation parameters Management momtors the value of the collateral, requests additional collateral when needed
and performs an impairment valuation when applicable The Company has $19 of collateral received as at December 31, 2013
{$25 of collateral received as at December 31, 2012) relating to denvative assets
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8 Risk Management {cont'd)

(1) Concentration of Credit Risk
Concentrations of credit nisk anse from exposures to a single debtor, a group of related debtors or groups of debtors that have
similar credit nisk charactenstics in that they operate in the same geographic region or 1n sumilar industries The charactenistics
are sumilar 1n that changes in economic or political environments may impact their ability to meet obhigations as they come due

The following provides details of the carrying value of bonds by 1ssuer, industry sector and geographic distnbution
December 31, 2012

Europe/
Canada Resnsurance United States Total
Bonds 1ssued or guaranteed by
Canadran federal government $ 4,276 $ 51 $ 3 $ 4,330
Prowvincial, state, and municipal governments 5,739 52 122 5,913
US Treasury and other US agencies 297 867 378 1,542
Other foreign governments 130 11,216 22 11,368
Government related 2,641 1,553 - 4,194
Supranationals 399 704 5 1,108
Asset-backed secunities 2,677 853 436 3,966
Residential mortgage-backed secunties 26 189 42 257
Banks 2,012 2,846 25 4,883
Other financial institutions 791 2,154 128 3,073
Basic materials 278 268 1 657
Communications 490 603 25 1,118
Consumer products 1,807 1,873 196 3,876
Industrial products/services 919 538 157 1,614
Natural resources 1.056 506 54 1,616
Real estate 1,021 2,249 13 3,283
Transportation 1,726 703 80 2,509
Unlities 4,715 3,427 565 8,707
Miscellaneous 1,314 378 80 1,772
Total long-term bonds 32,314 31,030 2,442 65,786
Short-term bonds ) 2,812 1,083 3 3,898
Total $ 35126 $ 32113 $ 2445 $ 69,684

December 31 2012

Europe/
Canada Reinsurance United States Total
Bonds issued or guaranteed by
Canadian federal government $ 4873 $ 43 $ 3 $§ 4919
Provincial, state, and municipal governments 6,454 61 80 6,595
US Treasury and other US agencies 305 an 417 1,663
Other foreign governments 151 8,044 29 8,224
Government related 2,585 1,205 - 3,790
Supranationals 453 289 " 753
Asset-backed securities 2,587 823 451 3,861
Residential mortgage-backed secunities 16 165 57 238
Banks 2,140 2,317 33 4,490
Other financial insututions 846 1,964 137 2,947
Basic matenals 252 226 92 570
Communications 459 552 21 1,072
Consumer products 1,903 1,855 204 3,962
Industrial products/services 873 323 176 1,372
Natura! resources 1,100 563 65 1,728
Real estate 850 1,739 - 2,589
Transportation 1,747 5938 69 2,414
Utilities 4,257 3,335 531 8,123
Miscellaneous 1,316 301 ag 1,666
Total long-term bonds 33,207 25,344 2,425 60,976
Short-term bonds 2,091 950 99 3,140
Total $ 35298 $ 26294 $ 2524 $ 64,116
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Janvary 1, 212

Europe/
Canada Reinsurance United States Total
Bonds 1ssued or guaranteed by

Canadian federal government $ 4,328 $ 41 $ 2 $ 4,371
Provincial, state, and municipal governments 6,430 53 n 6,554

U S Treasury and other U'S agencies 2N 968 516 1,755
Other foretgn governments 185 8,216 25 8,426
Government related 2,110 955 ~ 3,065
Supranationals 443 211 12 666
Asset-backed securities 2,696 794 478 3,968

. Residential mortgage-backed securities 26 146 9 251
Banks 2,168 1,858 34 4,060
Other finanaal institutions 839 1,615 121 2,635
Basic matenials 233 210 98 541
Communications 508 501 33 1,042
Consumer products 1,848 1,759 203 3,810
Industrial products/services 695 212 170 1,077
Natural resources 1,127 550 n 1,748

Real estate 608 1,610 - 2,218
Transportation 1.72% 624 90 2,435
Unlities 3,792 3,148 470 7,410
Miscellaneous 1,207 266 43 1,516
Tota! long-term bonds 31,295 23,737 2,516 57,548
Short-term bonds 2,386 558 33 2,977
Total $ 338681 § 24,295 ) 2,548 $ 60,525

The following provides details of the carrying value of mortgage loans by geographic location
December 31, 2013

Single family Multi family
residential resrdential Commercial Total
Canada $ 1,758 $ 3,435 $ 6942 $ 12,135
United States - 91 136 227
Europe/Reinsurance - 325 3,047 3,372
Total $ 1,758 $ 3,851 $ 10,125 $ 15734

December 31, 2012

Single family Mult) famely
residential residential Commercial Total
Canada $ 1,676 $ 3,250 $ 6,982 $ 11,908
United States - 63 133 196
Europe/Reinsurance - 187 2,720 2,907
Total s 1,676 s 3,500 b 9,835 $ 15,011

January 1 2012

single family Multe family
residential residenteal Commergial Total
Canada s 1,591 $ 3,407 $ 7,022 §$ 12,020
United States - 67 160 227
Europe/Reinsurance 79 108 2.415 2,602
Total $ 1,670 s 3,582 $ 9,597 $ 14,849
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8 Risk Management (cont'd)

(1) Asset Quality

December 31 December 31 January 1
Bond Portfolio by Credit Rating 2013 2012 2012
AAA $ 24516 $ 23,398 $ 23250
AA 13,034 10,892 10,086
A 20,368 19,833 18,611
BBB 11,233 9,328 8,043
BB and lower 533 665 535
Total $ 69,684 $ 64,116 $ 60,525

December 31 December 31 January 1
Derivative Portfolio by Credit Rating 2013 2012 2012
Over-the-counter contracts (counterparty ratmags)
AA 5 82 ] 100 $ 336
A 484 847 59
Total $ 566 $ 947 $ 927

(v} Loans Past Due, But Not Imparred

Loans that are past due but not considered impaired are loans for which scheduled payments have not been recewved, but
management has reasonable assurance of collection of the full amount of principal and nterest due The following provides

carrying values of the loans past due, but not impaired

Becember 31 December 31 January 1
2013 2012 2012
Less than 30 days $ 6 3 9 $ 3
30 — 90 days - - 1
Greater than 90 days 4 1
Total $ H 13 $ 5

(v} The following outhnes the future asset credit losses provided for 1n insurance and investment contract habihties These

amounts are 1n addition to the allowance for asset losses included with assets

December 31 December 31 January 1
2013 20142 2012
Participating 5 976 $ 867 $ 822
Non-participating 1,499 1,381 1,388
Total $ 2475 $ 2,248 $ 2,210

(b) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk 1s the risk that the Company will not be able to meet all cash outflow obligations as they come due The following

policies and procedures are 1n place to manage this nsk

« The Company closely manages operating hquidity through cash flow matching of assets and habilities and forecasting earned
and required yields, to ensure consistency between policyholder requirements and the yield of assets Approxmately 71%
(approxamately 71% 1n 2012) of mnsurance and mvestment contract labulities are non-cashable prior to maturity or subject to fair

value adjustments

» Management monitors the use of lines of credit on a regular basis, and assesses the ongoing availability of these and alternauve

forms of operating credit

= Management closely monitors the solvency and capital posiuons of its principal subsidianes opposite hquidity requirements at
the holding company Addinonal hquidity 1s available through established lines of credit or the capital markets The Company

maintains a $150 committed hine of credit with a Canadian bank

In the normal course of business the Company enters into contracts that give rise to commutments of future minimum payments
that impact short-term and long-term hiquidity The following summarnzes the principal repayment schedule of certain of the

Company's financial habilities
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(c)

Payments due by period

Over
Total 1year 2 years 3 years 4 years 3 years 5 years
Debentures and other debt instruments $ 670 ] 76 s - s - $ 294 $ - S 300
Capital trust secunties™ 150 - - - - - 150
Purchase obligations 57 34 6 9 8 - -
Pension contnibutions 124 124 - - - - -
Total $ 1.001 $ 234 1 6 $ 9 ) 302 $ - S 45¢

(1) Payments due have not been reduced to reflect that the Company held capital trust secunities of $37 princepal amount ($47 carrying value}

Financial Market Risk

Market nisk s the nisk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market
factors which include three types currency risk, interest rate (including related inflation) risk and equity risk

Caution Related to Risk Sensitivities

These financial statements include estimates of senstitivities and risk exposure measures for certain nisks, such as the sensitivity due
to specific changes in 1nterest rate levels projected and market prices as at the valuanon date Actual results can differ sigmficantly
from these estimates for a variety of reasons including

 Assessment of the circumstances that led to the scenario may lead to changes in (re)investment approaches and interest rate
scenarios considered,

= Changes in actuarial, investment return and future investment activity assumptions,
= Actual experience differing from the assumptions,

* Changes 1n business mux, effective iIncome tax rates and other market factors,

* Interactions among these factors and assumptions when more than one changes, and
* The general imitations of the Company’s internal models

For these reasons, the sensitivities should only be viewed as directional estumates of the underlying sensitivities for the respective
factors based on the assumptions outlined abeve Given the nature of these calculauons, the Company cannot provide assurance
that the actual impact on net earnings attributed to shareholders will be as indicated

(1) Currency Risk

Currency risk relates to the Company operaung and holding financial instruments 1n different currencies For the assets
backing insurance and investment contract liabilities that are not matched by currency, changes in foreign exchange rates can
expose the Company to the risk of foreign exchange losses not offset by liability decreases The Company has net investments
1n foreign operations In addition, the Company’s debt obhgauons are mamly denominated 1n Canadian dollars In accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards, foreign currency translation gains and losses from net investments in
foreign operations, net of related hedging activiuies and tax effects, are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income
Strengthening or weakening of the Canadian dollar spot rate compared to the U S dollar, Brinsh pound and euro spot rates
impacts the Company’s total share capital and surplus Correspondingly, the Company's book value per share and capital ratios
momnitored by rating agencies are also impacted The foilowing policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Cempany’s
exposure to currency risk

* The Company uses financial measures such as constant currency calculations to momitor the effect of currency translation
fluctuations

* Investments are normally made in the same cuirency as the habihities supported by. those investments Segmented
investment Guidelines include maximum tolerances for unhedged currency mismatch exposures

+ Foreign currency assets acquired to back habilities are normally converted back to the currency of the hability using foreign
exchange contracts

* A 10% weakening of the Canadian dollar against foreign currencies would be expected to increase non-participating
msurance and invesiment contract habihties and their supporting assets by approximately the same amount resulting 1n an
immaterial change 10 net earnings A 10% strengtheming of the Canadian dollar against foreign currencies would be expected
to decrease non-participating insurance and investment contract habihines and their supporting assets by approximately
the same amount resulting 1n an immatenal change 1n net earnings
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8 Risk Management (cont'd)
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(1) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk exists 1f asset and hiability cash flows are not closely matched and interest rates change causing a dufference

i value between the asset and hiability The following policies and procedures are in place to miugate the Company’s exposure

to interest rate risk

« The Company utilizes a formal process for managing the matching of assets and habilities This involves grouping general
fund assets and habilities 1nto segments Assets in each segment are managed m relation to the habilities in the segment

« Interest rate risk 1s managed by investing 1n assets that are suitable for the products sold

« Where these products have benefit or expense payments that are dependent on inflation (inflation-indexed annuities,
pensions and disability claims) the Company generally 1nvests 1n real return instruments to hedge 1ts real dollar hability
cash tlows Some protection against changes 1n the inflation index 1s achieved as any related change in the fair value of the
assets will be largely offset by a similar change 1n the fair value of the habilities

« For products with fixed and highly predictable benefit payments, investments are made n fixed income assets or real estate
whose cash flows closely match the lhability product cash flows Where assets are not available to match certain penod
cash flows, such as long-tail cash flows, a portion of these are mnvested in equities and the rest are duration matched
Hedging instruments are employed where necessary when there 15 a lack of suitable permanent investments to minimize
loss exposure to interest rate changes To the extent these cash flows are matched, protection against interest rate change
1s achieved and any change 1n the fair value of the assets will be offset by a sumilar change in the fair value of the habiliues

+ For products with less predictable timing of benefit payments, mnvestments are made 1n fixed income assets with cash flows
of a shorter duration than the anticipated timing of benefit payments, or equities as described below

« The nsk associated with the mismatch in portfolio duration and cash flow, asset prepayment exposure and the pace of asset
acquisition are guantified and reviewed regularly

Projected cash flows from the current assets and habilines are used i the Canadian Asset Liabihty Method to determine
insurance contract hatilities Valuation assumptions have been made regarding rates of returns on supporting assets, fixed
income, equuty and inflaton The valuation assumptions use best esimates of future reinvestment rates and inflation
assumptions with an assumed correlation together with margins for adverse deviation set in accordance with professional
standards These margins are necessary to provide for possibihties of misestimatien and/or future deterioration 1n the best
estimate assumptions and provide reasonable assurance that insurance contract habilities cover a range of possible outcomes
Margtns are reviewed periodically for continued appropnateness

Projected cash flows from fixed income assets used 1n actuarnal calculations are reduced to provide for potential asset default
losses The net effective y1eld rate reduction averaged 0 18% (0 17% 1n 2012) The calculation for future credit losses on assets
15 based on the credit quality of the underlying asset portfolio

Testing under a number of interest rate scenarios (including increasing, decreasing and fluctuating rates) 1s done to assess
reinvestment nisk The total provision for interest rates 15 sufficient to cover a broader or more severe set of risks than the
munumum arising from the current Canadian Insutute of Actuarnes prescribed scenarios

Effectuive January 1, 2013 the Company refined 1ts methodology for estimating interest rate provisions The total provision was

realigned 1into provisions designed to cover shorter term modeling risks and those to cover inherent long-term modeling and

cash flow mismatch risks, with no net impact on total provisions upon reahgnment This realignment, however did have an

impact on the pattern of expected emergence of these provisions into net earnings This reahignment mcreased 2013 annual

net earnings by $87 after-tax compared to 2012 on the prior methodology

The range of interest rates covered by these provisions 1s set in consideranon of long-term histoncal results and 1s monitored

quarterly with a full review annually An immediate 1% paraliel shift in the yield curve would net have a material impact on

the Company’s view of the range of interest rates to be covered by the provisions If sustained however, the parallel shift could

impact the Company’s range of scenarios covered

The total provision for interest rates also considers the impact of the Canadian Institute of Actuaries prescribed scenarios

*» The effect of an immediate 1% parallel increase in the yield curve on the prescribed scenarios would not change the total
provision for interest rates

« The effect of an immediate 1% parallel decrease in the yield curve on the prescribed scenanos would not change the total
provision for interest rates
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Another way of measuring the interest rate risk associated with this assumption 1s to determine the effect on the insurance and
investment contract habiliies impacting the shareholder earnings of the Company of a 1% change 1n the Company's view of
the range of interest rates to be covered by these provisions

* The effect of an timmecdhate 1% 1ncrease in the low and high end of the range of mterest rates recogmized in the provisions
would be to decrease these insurance and investment contract habihties by approximately $33 causing an increase in net
earnings of approximately $12

* The effect of an immediate 1% decrease 1n the low and high end of the range of interest rates recogmzed n the provisions
would be to increase these insurance and investment contract habihties by approximately $286 causing a decrease 1n net
earnings of approximately $195

(1) Equity Risk

Equity nisk 1s the uncertainty associated with the valuaton of assets arising from changes in equity markets To mitgate price
risk, the Company has investment policy guidelines in place that provide for prudent investment in equity markets within
clearly defined hmits The nisks associated wath segregated fund guarantees have been mitigated through a hedging program
for lifetime Guaranteed Mimimum Withdrawal Benefit guarantees using equity futures, currency forwards, and interest rate
denivatives For policies with segregated fund guarantees, the Company generally determines insurance contract habilities at
a conditional tail expectation of 75 (CTE 75) level

Some msurance and investment contract habilities are supported by investment properties, common stocks and private
equities, for example segregated fund products and products with long-tail cash flows Generally these habihties will fluctuate
in Line with equity market values There will be additonal impacts on these habilities as equity market values fluctuate A 10%
mcrease 1n equity markets would be expected to addironally decrease non-participating insurance and investment contract
habilities by approximately $42 causing an increase 1n net earnings of approximately $33 A 10% decrease 1n equity markets
would be expected to additionally imcrease non-participating insurance and investment contract liabilines by approximately
$192 causing a decrease 1n net earnings of approximately $149

The best estimate return assumptions for equities are primarily based on long-term historical averages Changes in the current
market could result in changes to these assumptions and will impact both asset and liability cash flows A 1% increase in the
best estmate assumption would be expected to decrease non-participating insurance contract habilines by approximately
$458 causing an increase in net earnings of approximately $353 A 1% decrease 1n the best estiimate assumption would be
expected to increase non-participating insurance contract liabihities by approximately $514 causing a decrease 1n net earnings
of approximately $392

9 Fair Value Measurement

The Company's assets and labihtes recorded at fair value have been categonzed based upon the following fair value hierarchy

Level 1 Fair value measurements utihize observable, quoted prices (unadjusted) 1n active markets for identical assets or habihties that
the Company has the ability to access Assets and habihities utihizing Level 1 inputs include actively exchange traded equity securities,
exchange traded futures, and mutual and segregated funds which have available prices 1n an active market with no redernption restrictions

Level 2 Fair value measurements utihze inputs other than quoted prices included 1n Level 1 that are observable for the asset or hability,
either directly or indirectly Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similar assets and liabiltties 1n active markets, and inputs other than
quoted prices that are observable for the asset or hability, such as interest rates and yeld curves that are observable at commonly quoted
intervals The fair values for some Level 2 securities were obtained from a pricing service The pricing service inputs include, but are not
limited to, benchmark yields, reported trades, broker/dealer quotes, 1ssuer spreads, two-sided markets, benchmark securities, offers
and reference data Level 2 assets and liabilities include those priced using a matnx which 1s based on credit quality and average Life,
government and agency securities, restricted stock, some private bends and equities, most investment-grade and high-yreld corporate
bonds, most asset-backed securities, most over-the-counter derivatives, and mortgage loans Investment contracts that are measured at
fair value through profit or loss are mostly included in the Level 2 category

Level 3 Fair value measurements utilize one or mere significant inputs that are not based on observable market inputs and include
situations where there 15 hittle, 1f any, market activity for the asset or iability The values of the majority of Level 3 securities were obtained
from single broker quotes, internal pricing models, or external appraisers Assets and habilites utihizing Level 3 inputs generally include
certain bonds, certain asset-backed secunties, some private equities, investments 1n mutual and segregated funds where there are
redempution restrictions, certatn over-the-counter derivatives, and investment properties
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9 Farr Value Measurement {cont'd)

The following presents the Company’s assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurning basis by hierarchy level

2013
Level } Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets measured at fair value
Cash $ 2.2 $ - $ - $ 223
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Bonds - 55,202 77 55,279

Stocks 7,202 6 24 7,232
Tota! finanaial assets at faur value through profit or loss 7,202 55,208 101 62,511
Avallable-for-sale financial assets

Bonds - 6,668 12 6,680

Stocks 6 - 1 7
Total available-for-sale financial assets 6 6,668 13 6,687
Investment properties - - 4,286 4,286
Dernvatives®" - 566 - 566
Reinsurance assets - 181 - 181
Other assets — trading assets 70 - - 70
Total assets measured at fair value $ 9,509 $ 62,623 $ 4,400 $ 76,532
Liabilities measured at fair value
Denvativest? $ 6 ] 462 $ - $ 468
Investment contract liabilities - 829 30 859
Total liabilities measured at fair value $ 6 £ 1,270 $ 30 $ 1,327

(1) Excludes collateral recerved of $19
[2) Excludes collateral pledged of $54

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 1n the penod

The following presents additional information about assets and habiliies measured at fair value on a recurring basis and for which the
Company has utihized Level 3 inputs to determine fair value

2013
Fair value Fair value
through Available- thraugh Available- Total Investment
profit or tor sale profit or loss for sale Investment Level 3 contract
loss bonds bonds stocks® stocks properties assets habilities
Balance, beginning of year $ 22 $ 16 $ 12 3 1 $ 3,568 $ 3619 $ 33
Total gains (losses)
Included in net earnings (1) 3 - - 152 154 -
Included in other comprehensive income!” - 1 - - 216 217 -

Acquisition of Insh Life 120 - 1 - 248 369 -
Purchases - - 20 - 182 202 -
Sales {104) 5 {(10) - {80) {(199) -
Repayments (4 (3) - - - (N -
QOther - - - - - - {3)
Transfers into Level 32 50 - 1 - - 51 -
Transfers out of Level 3% (6) - - - - (6) -
Balance, end of year $ 17 $ 12 $ 24 $ 1 $ 4,286 $ 4,400 $ 30
Total gains (losses) for the year inciuded

In net imvestment Income $ m s 3 $ - $ - $ 152 $ 154 $ -
Change in unrealized gains {losses) for the

year included n net earnings for assets

held at December 31, 2013 $ 7 $ - $ - 5 - $ 152 $ 159 $ -

(1) Amount of other comprehensive income for investment properties represents the unrealized gain on foresgn exchange

{2) Transfers into Level 3 are due pnmarily to decreased ohsarvability of inputs 1n vahuation methodologies. Transfers out of Level 3 are due primanly to increased observabiity of inputs i valation methodologies as
avidencad by corrobaration of market prces with multiple pncing vendors ar the hfting of redemption restrictions on investments in mutual and segregated funds

(3} Includes investmeants in mutua} and segregated funds where there are redempticn restrictons The fair value 1s based on abservable quated prices
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The following sets out information about significant unobservable 1nputs

categonzed as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy

used at period end

In measuring assets and habilities

Type of
asset

Valuation approach

Significant
unobservable input

input value

Inter-relationship between key
unobservable mputs and farr
value measurement

Asset-backed
secunipes
{inctuded
with bonds)

Discounted cash flow

Prepayment speed assumption {estimated %
of collateral that prepays annually)

Constant default rate assumption (estimated
% of defaults in the collateral pool annually)
Adjusted Assei-backed Secunties index (ABX
index) spread assumption {(adjusted for
internally calculated hguidity premium}

8 5% {weighted average}

5 0% {weighted average)

445 bps (weighted average)

The Company does not believe that changing
one or more of the inputs to reasonably alternate
assumptions would change ther far values
significantly

Investment
properties

Investment praperty valuations are generally
determined using property valvation models
based on expected capitalrzation rates and
models that discount expected future net
cash flows The determination of the far
value of investment property requires the
use of esumates such as future cash flows
{such as future leasing assumptions, rental
rates, capital and operating expenditures)
and discount, reversionary and  overall
capitahizanen rates apphcable to the asset
based on current market rates

Biscount rate

REVE[SIOHHI’Y rate

Vacancy rate

Range of 4 0% — 11 0%

Range of 54% -8 3%

Weighted average of 3 1%

A decrease in the discount rate would result in an
ncrease in faie value An inccease in the discount
rate would result 1n a decrease in fair value

A decrease 1n the reversionary rate would result
in an increase in far value An increase in the
reversionary rate woutd result in a decrease tn fair
value

A decrease i the expected vacancy rate would
generally result 10 an Increase in fair value An
increase In the expected vacancy rate would
generally result in a decrease m fair value

The following presents the Company’s assets and liabnhities disclosed at fair value on a recurring basis by hierarchy level

2013
Qther assets/
liabilities not
held at
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 fair value Total
Assets disclosed at farr value
Loans and receivables finanoial assets
Bonds 5 - $ 8,135 $ 121 $ - $ 8,256
Mortgage loans - 16,128 - - 16,128
Total loans and receivables finanaal assets - 24,263 21 - 24,384
Available-for-sale financial assets
Stockst™? - - - 500 500
Other stocks® 517 - - 226 143
Total assets disclosed at fair value $ 517 $ 24,263 $ 121 S 726 $ 25,627
Liabilities disclosed at fair value
Debentures and other debt instruments - 439 75 200 714
Capital trust secunties - 205 - - 205
Total habilities disclosed at fair value $ - $ 644 $ 75 $ 200 $ 919

{1} Fair value cannos be rehably measured 33 these are unique private companies across varous indusiries In addition, the financial data that the Company receives 1s not available on a timely basis to allow accurate
esumates on reperting dates, therefore the investments are held at cost

(2) Other stocks include the Company’s investments in an affiliated company, IGM a member of the Power Financial group of companes, and Allianz treland an unhsted general isurance company operauing in
freland and a joint venture m GloHealth, a health insurance company operating in Ireland over which the Company exerts sigmificant influence but does not control
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10 Enforceable Master Netting Arrangements or Similar Agreements

The following disclosure shows the potential effect on the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheets on financial instruments that
have been shown I a gross position where right of set-off exists under certain arcumstances that de not qualify for netting on the
Conschdated Balance Sheets

The Company enters nto International Swaps and Denvative Assoclation’s master agreements for transacting over-the-counter
dervauves The Company receives and pledges collateral according to the related Internanonal Swaps and Dervative Association’s Credit
Support Annexes The International Swaps and Derwvative Assoclation’s master agreements do not meet the critena for offsetting on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets because they create a night of set-off that 1s enforceable anly 1n the event of default, insolvency, or bankruptcy

For exchange-traded derivatives subject to denvative cleanng agreements with the exchanges and clearinghouses, there 1s no provision
for set-off at default Inmtial margin 1s excluded from the table below as 1t would become part of a pooled settlement process

The Company’s reverse repurchase agreements are alsu subject to night of set-off in the cvent of default These transactions and
agreements include master netung arrangements which provide for the netung of payment obligations between the Company and its
counterparties in the event of default

December 31, 2013

Related amounts aot set off
In the Balance Sheet

Gross amount

of financial
instruments Finanaal
presented in Offsetting collateral
the Balance counterparty {recerved) Net
Sheet position® pledged® exposure
Financtal instruments (assets)
Derivative financial instruments $ 566 $ {209) $ (19) $ 338
Reverse repurchase agreements? 87 - (87) -
Total financial instruments {assets) $ 653 $ {209) $ (106} $ 338
Financial instruments (habilities)
Denvative instruments $ 468 $ (209) $ (46) $ Fak)
Total finanaal instruments (liabilities) $ 468 $ (209} $ (46) $ 213
Detember 31, 2012
Gross amount Related amounts not set off
of financial in the Balance Sheet
Instruments Financial
presented in Offsetting callateral
the Balance counterparty {receved) Net
Sheet position®! pledged® exposure
Financial instruments (assets)
Dervative finanaal instruments $ 947 $ (164) $ (25) $ 758
Reverse repurchase agreements® 97 - {97) -
Total financial instruments (assets) $ 1,044 $ (164) $ (122) $ 758
Finanaial instruments {liabilities)
Dervative instruments $ 223 s {164) $ {42) $ 17
Total financial instruments {habiities) $ 223 $ (164) % 42) 17

{1) Includes counterparty amounts recognized on the Consolidated Balance Sheets where the Company has a patentia! offsetting position (as descnbed above) but does not meet the cntena for offseting on the
balance sheet excluding collateral

{2) Finanaat collateral presented abave excludes overcollateralization and, for exchange iraded denvatives, it margin Finanoal collateral recewved cn reverse repurchase agreements 15 held by a third party Total
finangral collateral including initial margin and overcollatesalization, recewed on denvative assets was $19 ($25 at December 31 2012) recewved on reverse repurchase agreements was $89 (§99 at December 33
2012}, and pledged on derwative liabiliies was $66 {361 at December 31, 2012)

(3} Assets related to reverse repurchase agreements are inctuded in bonds, in the Consolidated Balance Sheets
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1

Invested Assets on Deposit for Reinsurance Agreements

The company has $582 ($606 1n 2012} of invested assets (note 6) maintained on deposit 1n respect of certain remnsurance agreements
The Company retains all rights to the cash flows on thesé assets, however, the investment policies for these assets are governed by the
terms of the remnsurance agreements

12 Goodwill and Intangible Assets

(a) Goodwill
The carrying value of goodwill, all 1n the shareholder segment, 1s tested at the cash generaung unit grouping level The changes in

(b)

the carrying value of goodwill are as follows

Balance, beginning of year
Acquisition of Insh bife (note 4)
Changes in foreign exchange rates

Balance, end of year

2013 012

$ 5267 5 5,267
378 -

29 -

5 5674 ) 5,267

The Company has no accumnulated impairment losses on goodwill at December 31, 2013 and 2012

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets of $1,759 ($1,518 1n 2012) includes indefinite ife and finite ife intangible assets The carrying value and changes

in the carrying value of these mtangible assets are as follows

(m

indefinite hfe intangible assets

2013

Sharehaolders’ portion
of acquired future

Brands and Customer participating

trademarks contract related account profit Total
Balance, beginning of year $ 374 $ 354 5 354 $ 1082
Acquisition of Insh Life 131 - - 131
Changes in foreign exchange rates 21 - - 21
Balance, end of year $ 526 $ 354 $ 354 $ 1,234
Accumulated rmpairment
Balance, beginning of year $ - $ - $ - $ -
Impairment included in restructunng charges (34) - - (34}
Changes in foreign exchange rates (1) - - Mm
Balance, end of year $ (35) $ - $ - $ (35)
Net carrying amgunt $ 491 3 354 s 354 $ 1,199

2072
Shareholders portion
of acquired futute

Brands and Customet participating

trademarks contract retatad account profit Total
Balance, beginning of year $ 372 s 354 $ 354 $ 1,080
Changes in foreign exchange rates 2 - - 2
Balance and net carrying amount, end of year ] 374 S 354 $ 354 $ 1,082
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12 Goodwill and Intangible Assets (cont'd)

(u) Finite life Intangible assets

2013
Customer
contract Distribution
related channels Software Total
Amortization period range 9-20 years 30 years 5-10 years
Weighted average remaining amortization penod 10 years 20 years -
Amortization method Straight-hne Straight-line Straight-ine
Cost
Balance, beginning of year $ 329 $ 103 $ 350 782
Acquusitions 116 - 60 176
Changes in foreign exchange rates " 7 1 19
Balance, end of year $ 456 $ 110 S amn 977
Accumulated amortization and impairment
Balance, beginming of year $ (147) % (39) % (165) (346)
Imparment - - 3 (3)
Changes In foreign exchange rates (1) (n - 2
Amortization (24) 3 (39) (66)
Balance, end of year $ {172) $ (38) $ {207) M
Net carrying amount b 284 $ 72 $ 204 560
2012
Customer
contract Distnibution
related channels Software Total
Amortization penod range 10-20 years 30 years 5-10 years
Weightad average remaining amartization period 10 years 21 years -
Amortization methed Straight line Straight-line Straight-line
Cost
Balance, beginming of year $ 329 S 100 b 293 722
Acquisitions - - 45 45
Changes in foreign exchange rates - 3 - 3
Disposals - - 2 @
Other - - 14 14
Balance, end of year ] 329 $ 103 $ 350 782
Accumulated amortization and impairment
Balance, beginning of year ) {128) $ (29) ) {134} {291)
Amortization (19} {5) (31) (55)
Balance, end of year $ 147y § B4 {165) (346)
Net carrying amount s 182 $ 69 $ 185 436

In the fourth quarter of 2013, the Company conducted 1ts annual impairment testing of goedwnl! and intangible assets which
resulted in impaniment of $37 The Company recogmzed a $34 impairment charge assoclated with the Canada Life brand value
in ireland This write-down reflects discontinued use of the Canada Life brand as a result of the Insh Life acquisiion This
imparrment charge has been recorded n restructuring and acquisition expenses (note 19} within the statement of earmings
in the Europe/Reinsurance busiess unit Also in the fourth quarter of 2013, the Company recognized an impairment $3 of

software assets recorded within operating expenses

(¢} Recoverable Amount

40

Far the purposes of annual impairment testing, the Company allocates goodwll to the cash generating units which are the umts

expected to benefit from the synergies of the business combinauons
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Any potennal impairment of goodwill or intangible assets 1s identified by comparing the recoverable amount to 1ts carrying value The
recoverable amount 1s determined as the higher of fair value less costs to sell or value-in-use Fair valueis determined using a combination
of commonly accepted valuation methodologes, namely comparable trading and transactuon muluples and a discounted cash flow
analysts Comparable trading and transaction muluple methodologies calculate value by applying multiples observed in the market
agamnst historical and projected results approved by managemeni Value-n-use 1s calculated by discounting management's cash flow
projectuions approved by the Board of Directors covering the ininal forecast period of three to five years Value beyond the imimal penod 1s
denved by applying a termunal value multiple to the final year of the initial projection period For a significant poruon of the goodwilland
mtangible assets, the terminal value multiple 1s a funcuon of the discount rate (which ranges from 10% to 12 5%) and the terminal growth
rate (which ranges from 1 5% to 3 0%) The discount rate 1s reflective of the country and preduct specific cash flow risks and the terrinal
growth rate1s estimated as the long-term average growth rate of sales, including inflation of the markets in which the Company operates

13 Owner Occupied Properties and Fixed Assets

The carrying value of owner occupied properties and fixed assets and the changes 1n the carrying value of owner occupied properties

and fixed assets 1s as follows

2013
Owner Qwner

occupied Fixed accuped Fixed

properties assets properties assats
Carrying value, beginming of year 5 403 $ 454 $ 373 S 418
Less accumulated depreciation/impairments (21) (341) (16) (321)
Net carrying value, beginning of year 382 113 357 97
Acqussition of Insh Life 49 30 - -
Other additions 17 58 30 48
Impairments - (3) - -
Disposals - (11) - {12)
Depreciation (6) (28) (S) {27)
Depreciation disposalsfretirement - - - 7
Foreign exchange 6 6 - -
Net carrying value, end of year $ 448 ] 165 ] 382 5 113

The gross carrying value of owner occupied properties and fixed assets 1s $475 and $537 at December 31, 2013 ($403 and $454 at
December 31, 2012) respectively, with accumulated depreciation and impairment of $27 and $372 (321 and $341 at December 31, 2012)

There are no restrictions on the title of the owner occupied properties and fixed assets nor are they pledged as security for debt

14 Other Assets

December 31 December 31 January 1
2013 20120 20122
Prepaid expenses $ 63 $ 74 $ 74
Defined benefit pension asset 408 202 198
Trading account assets™ 70 - -
Deferred acquisition costs 687 541 529
Miscellaneous other assets 103 79 n
Total s 1,331 $ 896 $ 872

{1} Inclhudes stocks of $70 at December 31, 2113
{2} Duning the year, the Company reclassified certain comparatwve figures for presentation adjusiments.

Total other assets of $236 ($153 at December 31, 2012 and $145 at January 1, 2012) are expected to be reahized within 12 months from
the reporting date This amount excludes deferred acquisition costs on investment contracts, the changes in which are noted below

Deferred acquisition costs 2013 2012
Balance, beginning of year $ 541 $ 529
Additions S0 120
Acquisition of Insh Life 152 -
Amortization (59) (69)
Changes in foreign exchange 50 9
Disposals (a7) (48)
Balance, end of year b 687 $ 541
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15 Segregated Funds and Other Structured Entities

The Company offers segregated fund products in Canada and Europe that are referred to as segregated funds and unit-linked funds 1n
the respective region These funds are contracts issued by insurers to segregated fund policyholders where the benefit 1s directly linked
to the performance of the imvestments, the risks or rewards of the market value movements and net investment income 1s realized by
the segregated fund policyholders The segregated fund pohcyholders are required to select the segregated funds that hold a range
of undetlying investments While the Company has legal utle to the investments, there 1s a contractual obligation to pass along the
investments results to the segregated fund policyholder and the Company segregates these investments from those of the Company

In Canada, the segregated fund assets are legally separated from the general assets of the Company under the terms of the
policyholder agreement and cannot be used to settle obligations of the Company In Europe, the assets of the funds are functionally
and constructively segregated from those of the Company As a result of the legal and constructive arrangements of these funds, the
assets and liabihities of these funds are presented as a line 1tem within the Consohdated Balance Sheets titled investments on account
of segregated fund policyholders and with an equal and offsetting Liability utled investment and insurance contracts on account of
segregated fund policyholders

In circumstances where the segregated funds are invested 1n structured entites and are deemed to control the enuty, the Company
has presented the non-controlling ownership interest within the segregated funds for the risk of policyholders as equal and offsetting
amounts in the assets and lrabihties The amounts presented wathin are $772 at December 31, 2013 ($484 at December 31, 2012 and $403
at January 1, 2012)

within the Consolidated Statements of Earnings, all segregated fund policyholders’ income, including market value changes and net
investment mncome, 1s credited to the segregated fund policyholders and reflected n the assets and habilities on account of segregated
fund policyholders within the Consohdated Balance Sheets As these amounts do not directly impact the revenues and expenses of the
Company, these amounts are not included separately 1n the Consohidated Statements of Earmings

Segregated Funds Guarantee Exposure

The Company offers retail segregated fund products and unitized with prefits products that provide for certain guarantees that are tied
to the market values of the investment funds While these products are sunilar to mutual funds, there 15 a key difference from mutual
funds as the segregated funds have certain guarantee features that protect the segregated fund policyholder from market declines in
the underlying investments These guarantees are the Company's primary exposure on these funds The Company accounts for these
guarantees within mmsurance and investment contract habilities within the financial statements In addition to the Company’s exposure
on the guarantees, the fees earned by the Company on these products are impacted by the market value of these funds

In Canada, the Company offers retail segregated fund preducts through Great-West Life, London Life and Canada Life These products
provide guaranteed mimmimum death benefits and guaranteed minimum accumaulation on maturity benefits

In Europe, the Company offers unitized with profits products, which are sumilar to segregated fund products, but with pooling of
policyholders’ funds and minimum credited nterest rates

The Company also offers a guaranteed muinimum withdrawal benefits product in Canada and Europe The guaranteed minimum
withdrawal benefits products offered by the Company offer levels of death and maturnity guarantees At December 31, 2013, the amount
of guaranteed mummum withdrawal benefits preduct 1n-force 1n Canada, Ireland and Germany was $2,437 ($1,985 at December 31,
2012, $1,164 at January 1, 2012}

The Company’s expasure to these guarantees 1s set out as follows
December 31, 2013
Investment deficiency by benefit type

Market value Income Matunity Death Total*
Canada $ 26,779 3 - $ 32 $ 101 $ 101
Europe 8,683 260 16 74 334
Total $ 35,462 $ 260 3 48 $ 175 $ 435

December 31, 2012
Investment deficiency by benefit type

Market value Income Maturity Death Total*
Canada $ 24192 § - 3 29 5 181 $ 181
Europe 3,665 552 40 2l 624
Total $ 27,857 3 552 3 69 5 252 $ 805
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January 1 2012

fnvestment deficiency by benefit type

Market value Incame Marunty Death Total*
Canada $ 22,837 s - $ 39 L) 30 $ 3m
Europe 3,232 641 124 174 817
Total $ 26,089 $ 641 $ 163 3 475 $ 1,118

* A policy can only receive @ payout from one of the three trigger events (income election, matunity or death) Total deficiency measures the point 1n time exposure assuming the most costly trigger event for each
palicy occurred on December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 and January 1, 2012

The investment deficiency measures the point-in-time exposure to a trigger event (1 e income election, matunty, or death) assuming it
occurred on December 31, 2013 The actual cost to the Company will depend on the trigger event having occurred and the market values
at that time The actual claims before tax assocrated with these guarantees was approximately $23 for the year ended December 31, 2013,
with the majority arising 1n the Europe/Reinsurance business unit

The following presents further details of the investments on account of segregated fund policyholders

(a)

(b}

(c)

Investments on account of segregated fund policyholders

December 31 December 31 January 1
2013 2012 2012
Cash and cash equivalents $ 11,324 $ 4,767 $ 5302
Bonds 22,720 12,534 10,356
Mortgage loans 2,427 2,303 2,303
Stocks and units In unit trusts 652,882 35,154 32,651
Mutual funds 25,162 21,541 19,569
Investment properties 8,284 6,149 5,457
132,799 82,448 75,638
Accrued income 334 193 24
Other Lhabilities {1,294) (1,502) (1,656}
Non-controlling mutual fund interest 172 484 403
Total $ 132,611 $ 81,623 $ 74,626
Iinvestment and insurance contracts on account of segregated fund policyholders
2013 2012
Balance, beginning of year $ 81,623 $ 74626
Additions {deductions})
Policyholder deposits 12,730 10,975
Net investment mcome 634 610
Net realized capital gains on investments 2,959 974
Net unrealized capital gains on investments 6,789 3,228
Unreahized gamns due to changes in foreign exchange rates 5476 462
Palicyholder withdrawals (14,136} {9.324)
Acqussition of Insh Life {note 4) 36,348 -
Net transfer from {to) General Fund 65 (©)
Non-controliing mutual fund interest 123 81
Total 50,988 6,997
Balance, end of year $ 132,611 $ 81,623
Investment Income on account of segregated fund policyholders
2013 2012
Net investment income $ 634 S 610
Net realized capital gains on investments 2,959 974
Net unrealized capital gains on nvestments 6,789 3,228
Unrealized gains due to changes in foreign exchange rates 5,476 462
Total 15,858 5.274
Change 10 investment and nsurance contracts hability on account of segregated fund policyholders 15,858 5,274
Net $ - $ -
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15 Segregated Funds and Other Structured Entities (cont'd)

(d)

Investments on account of segregated fund policyholders by fair value hierarchy level (note 9)
December 31, 2013
tevel 3 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Investments on account of segregated fund policyhelders™ $ 90,431 $ 34,281 $ 9,298 $ 133,010

(1) Excludes other habiities, net of other assets of $1,399

During 2013 certain foreign stock holdings valued at $1,780 have been transferred from Level 2 to Level 1, based on the Company’s
ability to utihize observable, quoted prices 1n active markets

Level 2 assets include those assets where fair value 1s not available from normal market pricing sources and where the Company
does not have visibility through to the underlying assets

The following presents additional informaten about the Company’s investments on account of segregated fund pohcyholders for
which the Company has utilized Level 3 inputs to determune fair value

December 31
2013
Balance, beginning of year $ 6,287
Total gains included in segregated fund earnings 694
Acquisition of Insh Life 2,326
Purchases 428
Sales (440)
Transfers into Level 3 4
Transfers out of Level 3 {1
Balance, end of year % 9,298

Transfers into Level 3 are due primanly to decreased observabulity of inputs in valuation methodologies Transfers out of Level 3 are
due primanly to increased observability of inputs 1n valuaton methodologies as evidenced by corroboraton of market prices with
muluple pricing vendors

In addition to the segregated funds, the Company has interests in number of structured unconschdated entities including mutual funds,
open ended investment compames, and unit-trusts These entities are created as investment strategies for 1ts unit-holders based on the
directive of each individual fund

Some of these funds are managed by related parties of the Company and the Company receives management fees related to these
services Management fees can be vaniable due to performance of factors - such as markets or industries - in which the fund invests
Fee income derived 1n connection with the management of investment funds generally increases or decreases in direct relationship
with changes of assets under management which 1s affected by prevailing market conditions, and the inflow and outflow of chent assets

Factors that could cause assets under management and fees to decrease include declines in equaty markets, changes 1n fixed income
markets, changes 1n nterest rates and defaults, redemptions and other withdrawals, pelitical and otpher economuc risks, changing
investment trends and relative investment performance The risk 1s that fees may vary but expenses and recovery of inital expenses are
relatvely fixed, and market conditions may cause a shift 1n asset mix potentially resulting in a change 1n revenue

During 2013, fee and other income earned by the Company resulting from the Company’s interests in these entities was $1,880

Included within other assets (note 14) 1s $70 of investments in stocks of sponsored unit-trusts 1n Europe

During 2013, the Company has not provided any additional sigmficant financial or other support to the structured entities

44

The Great West Life Assurance Company Annual Report 2013




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16

Insurance and Investment Contract Liabilities

(a}

(b)

Insurance and investment contract liabilities

December 31, 2013

Gross Retnsurance
hability assets Net
Insurance contract labilities $ 10711 $ 6,623 $ 100,548
Investment contract habilities 859 181 678
Total $ 108,030 $ 6804 $ 101,226
December 31 2012
Gross Reinsurance
liabilaty assets Net
Insurance contract liabilities $ 98133 S 3,664 $ 94,469
Investment contract habilhittes 698 01 497
Total $ 98,831 $ 3,865 $ 94,966
January 1 2012
Gross Reinsurance
hability assets Net
Insurance contract habilities $ 94,166 $ 3823 $ 90,343
Investment contract liabihities 746 223 523
Total $ 94912 $ 4046 $ 90,866
Composition of insurance and Investment contract liabilities and related supporting assets
(1) The composition of insurance and investment contract habihties 1s as follows
December 31, 2013
Gross Reinsurance
hability assets Net
Participating
Individual tnsurance $ 29,107 $ {132) $ 29,239
Europefreinsurance 1,247 - 1,247
Corporate 2,098 {3) 2,101
Non-Participating
Individual insurance 6,304 433 5,871
Wealth management 12,585 - 12,585
Group 7,008 87 6,921
Europe/reinsurance 47,484 4,908 42,576
Corporate 2,197 1511 686
Total $ 108,030 $ 6,804 $ 101,226
December 31 2012
Gross Reinsurance
lability assets Net
Parucipating
Indmidual nsurance § 27,851 $ (88} $ 27,939
Europefreinsurance 1.24 - 1,241
Corporate 2,087 - 2,087
Non-Participating
indwidual insurance 7.065 652 6,413
Wealth management 13,318 - 13,318
Group 6,900 94 6,806
Europe/reinsurance 38,084 1,618 36,466
Corporate 2,285 1,589 696
Total $ 98,831 $ 3,865 $ 94,966
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16 Insurance and Investment Contract Liabiliuies {cont'd)

46

January 1, 2012

Gross Reinsurance
liability assets Net
Participating
Individual insurance $ 26470 H {49) $ 26,519
Europe/reinsurance 1,230 - 1,230
Corporate 1,580 1,578
Non-Participating
tndwidual insurance 6,609 823 5,786
Wealth management 13,752 - 13,752
Group 6,738 g5 6,643
Europe/reinsurance 35,519 1,432 34,087
Corporate 3,014 1,743 1,271
Total $ 94912 ) 4,046 $ 90,866
(1) The composition of the assets supporting habihties and equity 1s as follows
December 31, 2013
Mortgage Investment
Bonds loans Stocks properties Other Total
Carrying value
Participating habihities
Canada $ 11,908 $ 701 $ 4922 $ 1157 $ 3419 $ 29,107
Europe 852 39 143 35 178 1,247
United States 1,859 66 - - 173 2,098
Non-participating habilities
Individual insurance 4,461 302 1,538 3 - 6,304
Wealth management 7,745 2,114 219 - 2,507 12,585
Group 3,950 1,352 39 - 1,667 7,008
Europefreinsurance 27,199 3,289 225 2,460 14,311 47,484
Corporate 426 153 - - 1,618 2,197
Other 8,970 435 96 87 129,826 139,414
Total equity 2,314 283 1,134 544 14,131 18,406
Total carrying value $ 69,684 $ 15734 $ 8316 $ 4,286 $ 167,830 $ 265,850
Fair value $ 70,215 $ 16,128 $ 8,482 $ 4,286 $ 167,830 $ 266,941
Decernber 31, 2012
Mortgage Investment
Bonds loans Stocks properties Other Total
Carrying value
Participating habilities
Canada $ 12,818 $ 6903 $ 4,221 $ 932 ) 2,977 $ 27,851
Europe 874 a0 115 66 146 1,241
United States 1,682 118 - - 287 2,087
Non-participating liabihties
Indidual insurance 5,438 318 1,306 3 - 7,065
Wealth management 7.885 2,637 215 - 2,581 13,318
Group 4,196 1,473 44 - 1,187 6,900
Europefremnsurance 22,335 2,827 127 2,173 10,622 38,084
Corporate 552 69 - - 1,664 2,285
Other 6,294 320 - 4 80,609 87,227
Total equity 2,042 306 742 390 11,851 15,331
Total carrying value $ 64,116 $ 15,011 $ B700 $ 3568 $ 111,924 $ 201,389
Fair value $ 65,155 $ 15983 $ 63808 $ 3568 $ 111,924 $ 203,438
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(e}

tanuary 1 2012

Martgage Investment
Bonds foans Stocks properties Other Total

Carrying value
Partiipating habilities

Canada $ 11,862 $ 6,686 $ 3.864 $ 507 $ 3551 $ 26470

Europe 855 56 128 70 121 1,230

United States 1,316 79 - - 185 1,58¢
Non-participating hiabiities

Individual insurance 4,485 m 1.062 20 ™m 6,609

Wealth management 8,029 2,932 217 - 2,574 13,752

Group 4,159 1,536 49 - 994 6,738

Europefreinsurance 20,348 2,506 19 2,092 10,454 35,519

Corporate 944 140 - - 1,930 3.014
Other 6,520 328 - 7 73,690 80,545
Total equity 2,007 315 897 550 10,002 13,71
Total carrying value $ 60525 § 14,849 $ 6336 $ 3246 $ 104272 $ 189,228
Fair value $ 61,188 $ 15929 $ 6404 $ 3248 $ 104,272 $ 191,039

Cash flows of assets supporting insurance and 1nvestment contract hlabihities are maiched within reasonable imits Changes in
the fair values of these assets are essentially offset by changes in the fair value of insurance and investment contract liabilities

Changes n the fair values of assets backing capital and surplus, less related income taxes, would result 1n a corresponding
change in surplus over time 1n accordance with investment accounting policies

Change in insurance coniract liabilities

The change in msurance contract habihties during the year was the result of the following business activities and changes 1n

actuarnal estimates

2013
Participating
Gress Remsurance
lrability assets Net
Balance, beginning of year $ 31,148 $ (88) $ 31,236
Impact of new bustness 16 - 16
Normal change in force 1,178 {9) 1,187
Management action and changes in assumptions (108) {38) (70}
Business movement from/to affiliates {s1) - (51)
Impact of foreign exchange rate changes pL Y] - 241
Balance, end of year $ 32424 $ (135) $ 32,559
Hon-participating
Gross Reinsurance
liability assels Net Total Net
Balance, beginning of year $ 66,985 $ 3752 $ 63,233 $ 94,469
Insh Life acquisition 6,160 2,963 3,197 3,197
Impact of new business 3,545 192 3,353 3,369
Normal change in force {4,894) (60} (4.834) (3.647)
Management actton and changes in assumptions (411) (328) {83) {153)
Business movement from/to external parties (455) (234) (221) (221}
Business movement from/to affiliates - - - (51)
impact of foreign exchange rate changes 3,817 473 3,344 3,585
Balance, end of year $ 74,747 £ 6,758 $ 67,989 $ 100,548
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16 Insurance and Investment Contract Liabities (cont'd}
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2012
Particepating

Gross Reinsurance

liability assels MNet
Balance, beginning of year $ 29,244 $ {a7) $ 29291
Impact of new business 12 - 72
Normal change in force 1,592 N 1,599
Management action and changes in assumptions (236} {34) (202)
Business movement from/to affilistes 529 - 52%
Impact of foreign exchange rate changes {53) - {53)
Balance, end of year $ a4 $ (88) § 31,236

Non particpating

Gross Rewtsurance

liabalsty assets Net Total Net
Balance, beginning of year $ 64,922 $ 3870 $ 61,052 $ 90343
Impact of new business 2,622 326 2,296 2,368
MNormal change m force (361) (45) (316) 1,283
Management action and changes 1n assumptions (340} (337) (3) {205)
Business movement from/to external parties (48} {7) {41) (41}
Business movement from/to affiliates (533) - (533) (4}
Impact of foreign exchange rate changes 723 (55} 178 725
Balance, end of year § 66,985 $ 3752 $ 63,233 $ 94,489

Under fair value accounting, movement in the fair value of the supporting assets 1s a major factor in the movement of insurance
contract habilites Changes in the fair value of assets are largely offset by corresponding changes in the fair value of habilines The
change 1n the value of the insurance coniract habilities associated with the change in the value of the supporting assets 15 included
in the normal change in force above

In 2013, the major contributors to the increase in net insurance contract habihittes were the impact of foreign exchange rate changes
($3,585 1ncrease), the impact of new business ($3,369 increase) and the Irish Life acquisition ($3,197 increase) This was partially
offset by the normal change 1n inforce business {$3,647 decrease) which was partly due to the change 1n fair value

Net non-participating insurance contract habiities decreased by $83 1n 2013 due to management actions and changes 1n assumptions

The decrease was prnimarily due to updated base mortality assumptions mainly in Canada ($87 deciease)}, updated morbidity assumptions
($43 decrease), provisions for mnterest and mismatch nisk ($30 decrease), and modeling refinements ($26 decrease) parually offset by
increased provisions for policyholder behavior ($74 increase), updated expenses and taxes ($21 increase), updated longevity assumptions
($4 1increase), updates to other provisions ($3 increase) and updated mortality improvement assumptions in Eurepe ($1 increase)

Net participating msurance contract liabihties decreased by $70 in 2013 due to management actions and assumption changes
The decrease was primanily due to higher investment returns ($631 decrease), modeling refinements ($109 decrease) and updated
expenses and taxes ($68 decrease) partally offset by increases in the provision for future policyholder dividends ($710 increase),

increased provisions for policyholder behavior ($20 increase), improved mortality assumptions ($7 increase) and updated morbidity
assumptions ($1 increase)

In 2012, the major contributors to the increase 1n net insurance contract liabilities were the umpact of new business ($2,368 increase}
and the normal change 1n the 1n force business ($1,283 mcrease) primarily due to the change 1n fair value Business movement to/
from affihates includes the Crown Life Insurance Company amalgamation with 1ts parent Canada Life

Net non-participating isurance contract habilines decreased by $3 1n 2012 due to management actions and changes in assumptions
The decrease was primarily due to updated base longevity assumptions mainly in Europe ($379 decrease), updated life mortahity
assumptions ($1 10 decrease), modeling refinements ($43 decrease), updated expense and taxes ($40 decrease) and updated morbidity
assumptions (36 decrease), almost totally offset by updated longevity improvement assumptions for European business {3348
mncrease), increased provisions for policyholder behavior ($131 increase}, and provisions for asset and mismatch nisk ($88 increase)

Net participating insurance contract habilites decreased by $202 1n 2012 due to management actrons and assumption changes The
decrease was primarily due to decreases in the provision for future pelicyholder dindends (52,078 decrease), improved Individual
Life base mortality {$107 decrease), updated expenses and taxes (392 decrease), improved mortality improvement ($17 decrease)
and modeling refinements ($10 decrease) partially offset by lower investment returns ($2,080 increase), increased provisions for
pohicyholder behavior ($19 increase) and updated morbidity assumptions ($3 increase}

The Great West Life Assurance Company Annual Report 2013




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{d) Change In investment contract liabilities measured at fair value

2013 2012
Gross Rewmnsurance Gross Rewnsurance
Lability assets Net labslsty assets Net
Balance, beginning of year $ 698 $ n $ 497 ] 746 $ 223 3 523
Insh Life acquisttion 194 - 194 - - -
Normal change in force business (97) (42) (55) (87) {23) (64}
Investment expernence 32 8 24 45 8 37
Impact of foreign exchange rate changes 32 14 18 {6} N 1
Balance, end of year $ 859 3 181 % 618 L4 698 $ 201 5 497

The carrying value of investment contract habilities approximates therr fair value

(e} (i} Premium Income

2013 2012
Direct premiums $ 15,708 $ 14124
Assumed reinsurance premiums 4,933 5,200
Total $ 20,641 $ 19324

(i) Policyholder Benefits

2013 20120
Direct $ 11,378 $ 10,642
Assumed reinsurance 5,249 5477
Total $ 16,627 $ 16,119

(1) Duning the year the Company reclassified certain comparatrve figures for presentation adjustments This resulted in an increase n assumed reinsurance premiums of $768 a decrease {0 reinsurance
fee income of $20 offset primarily by an increase i assumed reinsurance policyholder benefits. There was no impact om equity net eamings or cash flows of the Company (note 35)

(f) Actuarial Assumptions
In the computation of insurance contract habilities, valuation assumpuons have been made regarding rates of mortality/morbidity,
investment returns, levels of operating expenses, rates of pohcy termination and rates of utilizanon of elective policy options or
provisions The valuation assumptions use best estimates of future expernience together with a margin for adverse deviation These
margins are necessary to provide for possibihties of misestimation and/or future deterioration 1n the best estimate assumpuons
and provide reasonable assurance that insurance contract habilities cover a range of possible outcomes Margins are reviewed
periodically for continued appropriateness

The methods for arrving at these valuation assumptions are cuthned below
Mortality

A life insurance mortality study 1s camed out annualty for each major block of insurance busmess The results of each study are used to
update the Company’s experience valuation mortality tables for that business When there 15 insufficient data, use 1s made of the latest
mdustry experience to denve an appropriate valuation mortality assumption The actuarial standards were amended to remove the
requirement that, for hife insurance, any reduction i hahilities due to mortahty improvement assumption be offset by an equal amount
of provision for adverse deviation Appropnate provisions have been made for future mortality detenoration on term insurance

Annuitant mortality 1s atso studied regularly and the results used to modify established industry experience annuitant mortality
tables Mortahty improvement has been projected to occur throughout future years for annuitants

Morbid:ty

The Company uses industry developed experience tables modified to reflect emerging Company expenience Both claim incidence
and termination are monitored regularly and emerging expenence 15 factored into the current valuation
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Property and casualty remnsurance

Insurance contract habilities for property and casualty reinsurance written by London Reinsurance Group (LRG), a subsidiary of the
London Life Insurance Company (London Life}, are determined using accepted actuarial practices for property and casualty insurers
in Canada The insurance contract habilities have been estabhished using cash flow valuation techniques including discounting
The insurance contract habilities are based on cession statements provided by ceding compantes In certain mnstances, LRG
management adjusts cession statement amounts to reflect management’s interpretation of the treaty Differences will be resolved
via audits and other loss mitigation activities In addition, tnsurance contract habihties also include an amount for incurred but not
reported losses which may differ sigmificantly from the ultimate loss development The esumates and underlying methodology are
connnually reviewed and updated and adjustments to estimates are reflected in earnings LRG analyzes the emergence of claims
experience against expected assumptions for each reinsurance contract separately and at the portfolio level If necessary, a more in
depth analysis 1s undertaken of the cedant expenence

Investment returns

The assets which correspond to the different hability categories are segmented For each segment, projected cash flows from the
current assets and lhabilities are used 1n the Canadian Asset Liability Method to determine insurance contract habilities Cash
flows from assets are reduced to provide for asset default losses Testing under several interest rate and equity scenarios (including
increasing and decreasing rates) 1s done to provide for remnvestment risk (note 8(c))

Expenses

Contractual policy expenses (e g sales comrmussions) and tax expenses are reflected on a best estimate basis Expense studies
for indirect operating expenses are updated regularly to determine an appropnate estimate of future operating expenses for the
liability type being valued Improvements in unit operating expenses are not projected Aninflation assumption 1s incorporated in
the estimate of future operating expenses consistent with the interest rate scenarios projected under the Canadian Asset Liabihity
Method as inflation 1s assumed to be correlated with new money interest rates

Policy termination

Studies to determine rates of policy termination are updated regularly to form the basis of this esumate Industry data 1s also
avarlable and 15 useful where the Company has no experience with specific types of pohcies or us exposure 1s hmited The Company
has significant exposures n respect of the T-100 and Leve! Cost of Insurance Universal Life products 1n Canada and policy renewal
rates at the end of term for renewable term policies in Canada and Reinsurance Industry expenence has guided the Company's
assumptions for these products as the Company's own experience 1s very limited

Unlization of elective policy options

There are a wide range of elective options embedded n the pohicies 1ssued by the Company Examples include term renewals,
conversion to whole hfe insurance (term insurance), settlement annuity purchase at guaranteed rates {deposit annuities) and
guarantee re-sets (segregated fund maturity guarantees) The assumed rates of utillization are based on Company or industry
experience when 1t exists and when not on judgment considering incentives to utilize the option Generally, whenever 1t 1s clearly
n the best interests of an informed pohcyholder to utilize an option, then 1t 1s assumed to be elected

Policyholder dividends and adjustable policy features

Future policyholder dividends and other adjustable policy features are included n the determunation of insurance contract
Liabilities wath the assumption that policyholder dividends or adjustable benefits will change in the future 1n response to the relevant
expenence The dividend and policy adjustments are determined consistent with pohcyholders’ reasonable expectations, such
expectations being influenced by the participating pohicyholder dividend policies and/or pohicyholder communications, marketing
matenal and past practice It 1s the Company’s expectation that changes will occur 1n policyholder dividend scales or adjustable
benefits for participating or adjustable business respectively, corresponding to changes in the best esimate assumptions, resulting
1n an immatenal net change 1n insurance contract habihties Where underlying guarantees may hrmit the ability to pass all of this
expertence back to the policyhelder, the impact of this non-adjustability impacting shareholder earnings 1s reflected in the umpacts
of changes 1n best estimate assumptions above
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{(g) Risk Management

(1)

(1)

Insurance risk

Insurance risk1s the nisk that the insured event occurs and that there are large deviauons between expected and actual actuanal
assumpuions 1ncluding mortality, persistency, longevity, morbidity, expense vanations and investment returns

As an insurance company, Great-West Life 1s in the business of accepting risk associated with insurance contract habihties
The objective of the Company 1s to mitigate 1ts exposure to nsk ansing from these contracts through product design, product
and geographical diversification, the implementation of the Company’s underwriting strategy guidelines, and through the use
of reinsurance arrangements

The following provides information about the Company's insurance contract habilities sensitivities to management's best
estumate of the approximate impact as a result of changes 1n assumptions used to determine the Company’s hability associated
with these contracts

Increase (decrease) in
net earmings after tax

2013 2012
Mortality — 2% increase 3 (184) % (175)
Annuitant mortality = 2% decrease 5 (266) 5 (268)
Morhidity — 5% adverse change $ (208) % (188}
Investment returns
Parallel shift in yield curvet
1% Iincrease $ - nfa
1% decrease $ - nfa
Change 1n range of interest rates"
1% increase $ 12 nfa
1% decrease 3 (195) nia
Change tn equity markets
10% increase $ 33 S 17
10% decrease $ (14:  § (95)
Change in best esttmate returns for equities
1% increase $ 353 5 342
1% decrease $ {392) $ {376)
Expenses — 5% increase (3 {72) $ (52}
Policy termination and renewal — 10% adverse change $ (408) § (444)

(1} Due to change n wpterest provisson methodology in 2013, 2012 sensitarities are not comparatle to 2013 Please refer to note 8 (c (1)

Concentration risk may arse from geographic regions, accumulation of risks and market risk The concentration of insurance
nisk before and after reinsurance by geographic region 1s described below

December 31, 2013 December 31 2012 January 1 2012
Gross Reinsurance Gross Reinsurance Gross Reinsurance
liabdlity assets Net hability assets Net habalsty assets Net
Canada $ 55004 3 388 $ 54,616 $ 55134 $ 658 $ 54,476 $ 53,569 S 869 § 52,700
Eurgpe 48,731 4,908 43,823 39,324 1,618 31,706 36,749 1,432 35,317
United States 4,295 1,508 2,787 4,373 1,589 2,784 4,594 1,745 2,849
Total $108,030 $ 6,804 $101,226 $ 98831 $  3.865 $ 94,966 § 94,912 $ 4046 $ 90.866

Reinsurance nisk

Maximum limits per insured hfe benefit amount (which vary by line of business) are established for life and health insurance
and reinsurance 1s purchased for amounts 1n excess of those hmits

Reinsurance costs and recovenes as defined by the reinsurance agreement are reflected 1n the valuation with these costs and
recoveries being appropnately calibrated to the direct assumptions

Reinsurance contracts do not relieve the Company from its obligations te policyholders Failure of reinsurers to honour their
obligations could result 1n losses to the Company The Company evaluates the financial condition of 1ts remnsurers to mimmize
11s exposure 1o signtficant losses from reinsurer insolvencies

Certain of the remsurance contracts are on a funds withheld basis where the Company retains the assets supporting the reinsured
insurance contract habilities, thus mmmmzing the exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvency on those contracts
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17 Financaing Charges

Financing charges consist of the following

2013 2
Interest on long-term debentures and other debt instruments $ 25 $ 20
Interest on capital trust debentures i 1
Other 12 12
Total ] 48 5 13
18 Debentures and Other Debt Instruments
December 31, 2013 December 31 2012 January 1, 2012
Carrying Faur Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
value value value value value value
Long term
Operating
Notes payable with interest rate
of 8 0% due May 6, 2014, unsecured $ 1 $ 1 $ 2 $ 2 ] 3 s 3
Capital
Great-West Life
6 74% debentures due November 24, 2036, unsecured 200 200 200 200 200 200
Canada Life
6 40% subordinated debentures
due December 11, 2028, unsecured 100 117 100 17 100 15
5 25% 200 euro subordinated debentures,
mcludes associated fixed to floating swap 317 n - - - -
Mortgage payable with interest rate of 4% changing
to 5% on February 1, 2014, matures April 30, 2014 75 75 - - - -
692 713 300 317 300 315
Total debentures and other debt instruments $ 693 $ 714 S 302 S 319 b 303 $ 318

19 Restructuring and Acquisiteon Expenses

With the acquisition of Irish Life on July 18, 2013, the Company has developed a plan te restructure due to combining the life and
pension operations of Canada Life (Ireland) and Irish Life In addition, the Company incurred other restructunng expenses due to other
restructuring activities in Europe

Restructuring and acquisition expenses by major heading were as follows

2013

Acquisition expenses S 29
Restructuring — Insh Life

Staff costs 17

Information systems 3

Other 1"

3

Impairment of Canada Life Ireland brand value {note 12) 34

Other Europe restructunng 10

Total 3 104

Included 1n the above restructuring expenses are provisions of $31 which are included within other habihiies These provisions are
expected to be realized within 12 months from the reporting date
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20 Other Liabihities

December 31 December 31 January 1

2013 2012 10127
Pension and other post-employment benefits 5 782 $ 1,004 5 807
Deferred income reserve 451 427 406
Bank overdraft 363 444 429
Other 713 405 a1
Total s 2,309 $ 2,280 $ 2,063

(1) Bunng the year the Company rectassified certain comparative figures for presentation adjustments

Total other habilittes of $1,076 ($849 at December 31, 2012 and $850 at January 1, 2012) are expected to be realized within 12 months
from the reporting date This amount excludes deferred income reserve, the changes in which are noted below

Deferred income reserve 2013 w12

Balance, beginning of year $ 427 5 406
Additions 70 103
Amortization (39 {42)
Changes in foreign exchange 38 8
Disposals (45) (48)
Balance, end of year % 451 $ 427

21  Capital Trust Securities

December 31, 2013 Decemnber 31 2012 lanuary 1, 2012
Carrying Far Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
value value value value value value
Capital trust securities
Great-West Life Capital Trust
5 995% due December 31, 2052, unsecured 3 - 3 - ) - $ - $ 350 s 363
Canada Life Capital Trust
6 679% due June 30, 2052, unsecured - - - - 300 307
7 529% due June 30, 2052, unsecured 150 205 150 216 150 197
150 205 150 216 800 867
Acquisition related fair value adjustment 13 - 14 - 15 -
Total $ 163 $ ' 205 $ 164 $ 216 $ 815 $ 867

Canada Life Capital Trust (CLCT), a trust established by Canada Life, redeemed all of 1ts outstanding $300 principal amount Canada Life
Capital Securities — Series A on June 29, 2012 at par

Great-West Life Capital Trust, a trust established by Great-West Life, redeemed all of 1ts outstanding $350 principal amount Great-West
Life Capital Trust Securities — Series A (GREATs) on December 31, 2012 at par

CLCT had 1ssued $150 of Canada Life Capital Securities — Series B (CLICS - Series B), the proceeds of which were used by CLCT to
purchase Canada Life semor debentures in the amount of $150

Distnibutions and interest on the capital trust securities are classified as financing charges on the Consolidated Statements of Earnings
(note 17) The fair value for capital trust secunities 1s determuned by the nd-ask price Refer to note 8 for financial instrument risk
management disclosures

Subject to regulatory approval, CLCT may redeem the CLiCS - Series B, in whole or in part, at any time
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22

Participating Account

The Company contrelled a 100% equity interest 1n London Life and Canada Life at December 31, 2013 and 2012 The partcipating

operations and the parucipating balance sheets are presented as combined or consolidated 1n the operations in the Company's financial
statements

The shareholder portion of parucipaung earnings represents, as restricted by law, a portton of net earnings before pohcyholder ddends
of the participating account, $47 1n 2013 {$46 1n 2012) The actual payment of the shareholder portion of participating earmings is legally
determined as a percentage of policyholder dividends paid $66 of shareholder surplus ($59 in 2012) that has been recogmzed but not
paid 1s dependent on future payment of dividends to parucipating policyholders The fellowing provides additional information related
to the operations and financial position of each entity

{a)

(b)

(c)

54

Net earnings, participating account-

2013 2012

Net earnings attributable to participating account before policyholder dividends

Great-West Life $ 136 3 182

London Life 583 951

Canada Life 320 264

1,039 1,397

Policyholder dividends

Great-West Life (134) (131)

Lendon Life (738) (745)

Canada Life (261) (246)

{1,133) (1,122)

Net earnings (loss) - participating account 5 {94) $ 275

The net earmngs (loss) attnbutable to the participating account before pohicyholder dividends includes the impact of the
Subsequent Event — Participating account legal matter recorded 1n the December 31, 2013 financial statements (note 32) The
December 31, 2012 amounts include the impact of the Ontario Supreme Court of Justice decision on January 24, 2013 (note 32} The
impact to the parnicipating acceunts before policyholder dividends was a decrease of $30 and $196 1n Great-West Life and London
Life respectively in 2013, and an increase of $20 and $120 respectively in 2012

Participating account surplus in subsidiaries.

December 31 December 31 Januany 1
2013 2012 2012

Participating account accumulated surplus

Great-West Life $ 545 $ 543 $ 492

London Life 1,656 1,811 1,599

Canada Life 126 67 49
Total 2,327 24N 2,140
Parvcipating account accumulated other comprehensive income

Great-West Life 4 9 13

London Life 5 1 20

Canada Life 6 {1 3
Accumulated other comprehensive income — participating account 15 19 36
Total $ 2,342 $ 2,440 $ 2,176

During 2012, London Life re-allocated the remaining 11% of its investment in LRG with a carrying value of $89 from its participating
account to its shareholder account The difference of $6 between the carrying value of the investment and the fair value of the
investment of $95 was recorded as a charge to shareholder accumulated surplus and an increase 1n the London Life partucipating
account surplus

Participating account - other comprehensive income (loss}:

2013 2012
Other comprehensive income (foss} attributable to partiopating account
Great-West Life $ 5) § @
London Life (6) {9
Canada Life 7 @)
Total $ 4 3 (17)
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23 Share Capital

Authorized
Unhmited Preferred Shares
Unlimited Common Shares

December 31 2013 December 31 2012 January 1 2012
Carrying Carrying Carrying

Issued and outstanding Number value Number value Number value
Preferred shares
Series Q, 500% Non-Cumulative - - - $ - 40,000 1
Common shares
Balance, beginning of year 2,209,812 7,076 2,117,015 $ 54206 2,117,015 6,426
Issued to parent company 159,657 1,412 92,797 650 - -
Balance, end of year 2,369,469 8,488 2,209,812 § 107 2,117,015 6,426
Total $ 8,488 $ 1.076 6,427
Preferred Shares

The Series Q, 5 00% Non-Cumulatuive Preferred Shares are redeemable at the option of the Company for $25 per share on the later
of December 31, 2007 and the date on which there are no Great-West Life Capital Trust Securities outstanding in GWLCT, subject to

regulatory approval

On December 31, 2012, the Great-West Life Capital Trust securities were redeemed, at which ume the Company also redeemed all of 1ts
outstanding Senes Q, 5 00% Non-Cumulative Preferred Shares at a redemption price of $25 per share

Comimon Shares

On June 25, 2013, the Company 1ssed 85,458 common shares to Lifeco with a value of $734 On July 17, 2013, 1n connection with the Insh
Life acquisition , the Company 1ssued 74,199 common shares to Lifeco with a stated value of $678

On June 29, 2012, the Company 1ssued 38,895 common shares to Lifeco for a value of $300 On December 31, 2012, the Company 1ssued

53,902 common shares to Lifeco for a value of $350

Contributed Surplus

On December 28, 2012, Lifeco contributed $150 of capital to Great-West Life
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24

Capital Management

(a)

(b)

56

Policies and Objectives

Managing capital 1s the continual process of establishing and maintaimng the quantity and quality of captal appropriate for the
Company and ensuring capital 1s deptoyed 1n a manner consistent with the expectations of the Company's stakeholders For these
purposes, the Board considers the key stakeholders to be the Company’s shareholders, policyholders and holders of subordinated
liabihties in addition to the relevant regulators in the various junisdictions where the Company and 1ts subsidiaries operate

The Company manages its capital on both a consolidated basis as well as at the individual operating subsidiary level The primary
objectives of the Company’s capital management strategy are

« to maintain the capitahzation of 1ts regulated operating subsidianes at a level that will exceed the relevant mimmum regulatory
capital requirements in the junisdictions in whach they operate,

* to maintain strong credit and financial strength ratngs of the Company ensuring stable access to capital markets, and

« to provide an efficient capital structure to maximze shareholder value 1n the context of the Company's operational risks and
strategic plans

The Company has established policies and procedures designed to 1dentify, measure and report all matenal nsks Management 1s
responsible for establishing capital management procedures for implementing and monitoring the capital plan

The capital planning process 1s the responsibility of the Company's Chief Financial Officer The capital plan 1s reviewed by the
Executive Commuttee of the Board of Directors and approved by the Company's Board of Directors on an annual basis The Board
of Directors reviews and approves all capital transactions undertaken

The target level of capitalization for the Company and 1ts subsidiaries 1s assessed by considening varnious factors such as the
probability of falling below the mimimum regulatory capital requirements in the relevant operating junisdiction, the views expressed
by various credit rating agencies that provide financial strength and other ratings to the Company, and the desire to hold sufficient
capital to be able to honour all policyholder and other obligations of the Company with a high degree of confidence

Regulatory Capital

In Canada, the Office of the Superintendent of Financial Institutions Canada has established a capital adequacy measurement for
life iInsurance compantes incorporated under the Insurance Companes Act {Canada) and their subsidiaries, known as the Mimimum
Conunuing Capital and Surplus Requirements For this purpose, various addimons or deductions from capital are mandated by the
guidelines 1ssued by the Office of the Superintendent of Financial Institutions Canada The following provides a summary of the
Minimum Continuing Capital and Surplus Requirements information and ranos for Great-West Life

2013 2012
Adjusted Net Tier 1 Capital $ 10,432 $ 8,699
Net Tier 2 Capital 2,236 1,10
Total Capital Available $ 12,668 $ 10,409
Total Capital Required $ 5673 § 5018
Tier 1 Ratio 184% 173%
Total Ratio 223% 207%

In the United Kingdom, Canada Life Limited (CLL) 1s required to sausfy the capital resources requirements set out in the Integrated
Prudential Sourcebook, part of the Prudential Regulatory Authority Handbook The capital requirements are prescribed by a
formulaic capital requirement (Pillar 1) and an individual capital adequacy framework which requires an entity to self-assess an
appropriate amount of capital it should hold, based on the risks encountered from 1ts business acivities At the end of 2013, CLL
complied with the mimimurn capital resource requirements in the United Kingdom

Other foreign operations and foreign subsidianies of the Company are required to comply with local capital or solvency requirements
1n their respective Junisdictions At December 31, 2013 and 2012 the Company maintained capital levels above the mimmum tocal
regulatory requirements 1n each of its other foreign operations
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25 Share-Based Payments

(a) Liafeco has a stock option plan (the Plan) pursuant to which options to subscribe for common shares of Lifeco may be granted to
certain officers and employees of Great-West Life and 1ts affilrates Lifeco’s Compensation Committee (the Committee) admimsters
the Plan and, subject to the specific provisions of the Plan, fixes the terms and conditions upon which options are granted The
exercise price of each option granted under the Plan 1s fixed by the Commiitee, but cannot under any circumstances be less than
the weighted average trading price per Lifeco common share on the Toronto Stock Exchange for the five trading days preceding the
date of the grant Termmnation of employment may, in certain circumstances, result in forfeiture of the options, unless otherwise
determined by the Commttee

Dunng 2013, 1,240,700 options were granted (1,398,500 options were granted during 2012) The weighted average fair value of
aptions granted during 2013 was $4 16 per option {$3 04 per option 1n 2012} The fair value of each optton was estimated using
the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions used for those options granted in 2013

dividend yield 4 53%, expected volatility 23 96%, risk-free interest rate 1 58%, and expected Iife of 8 years

To date, four categones of options have been granted under the Plan The exercise of the options 1n three of these four categories
was subject to the attainment of certain financial targets of the Company which have been satisfied Options vest over a period of
up to eight years All of the options have a maximum exercise period of ten years The maximum number of Lifeco common shares
that may be 1ssued under the Plan 1s currently 65,000,000

The following summarizes the status of, and changes in, options outstanding and the weighted average exercise price

2013 2012

Weighted Weighted

average average
Options exarcise price Options exercse price
Outstanding, beginning of year 10,258,140 $ 2826 9,555,039 s 2855
Granted 1,240,700 27 15 1,398,500 2316
Exeraised (1,604,760) 2181 (478,299) 1933
Forferted/expired (443,640} 3052 (217,100} 2803
Outstanding, end of year 9,450,440 $ 2910 10,258,140 $ 282
Options exercisable at end of year 6,273,367 £ 3012 6,963,330 $ 2848

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of stock options for the year ended December 31, 2013 was $28 68 ($22 97
in 2012)

Compensation expense due to transactions accounted for as equity-settled share-based payments of $5 after-tax in 2013 ($4
after-tax in 2012) ansing from transactions in which the services recerved did not quahfy for recogmtion as an asset, has been
recognized 1n the Consclidated Statements of Earmings

The entity measured the compensation for the Directors’ services based on fair value when measuring the services recerved 1n the
deferred share unit plan

The following summanizes information on the ranges of exercise prices including weighted average remaining contractual hife at
December 31, 2013

Qutstanding Exercisable

weighted

average Weighted Weighted

remaining average average
Exercise price ranges Options contractual hfe exercise price Options exeroise pnce Expiry
$24 37 -326 00 230,000 050 2523 230,000 2523 2014
$29 84 1,425,000 195 2984 1,425,000 2984 2015
$27 1693127 482,000 249 3035 482,000 3035 2016
$2316-33722 1,014,900 320 3665 730,904 36 47 2017
$3127 2,315,000 434 3127 2,103,803 3127 2018
$2565-$2713 459,080 633 2679 288,000 26 80 2020
$27 16 913,620 716 2716 443,880 27 16 2021
$23 16 1,375,540 816 2316 415,380 2316 2022
$2713-9%2836 1,235,300 916 2715 154,400 2713 2023

The Great Wast Life Assurance Company Annual Repert 2013 57



NOQTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25 Share Based Payments {cont'd)

(b) In order to promote a greater alignment of interest between Directors and the policyholders and shareholders of the Company,
the Company has estabhished both a voluntary Deferred Share Umt Plan and a mandatory Deferred Share Unit Plan i which the
Directors of the Company participate Under the Mandatory Deferred Share Umit Plan, each Director who 1s a resident of Canada or
the United States receives $50,000 of his or her annual retamner 1n the form of Deferred Share Units Under the Voluntary Deferred
Share Unit Plan, each Director may elect to receive the balance of his or her annual retainer {(including Board Commuttee fees)
and attendance fees entirely in the form of Deferred Share Units, entirely in cash, or equally in cash and Deferred Share Umits
In both cases the number of Deferred Share Units granted 1s determined by dividing the amount of remuneration payable to the
Director by the weighted average trading price per common share on the Toronto Stock Exchange for the last five trading days of
the preceding fiscal quarter {such weighted average trading price being the “value of a Deferred Share Unit”} Directors receiwve
additional Deferred Share Units in respect of dividends payable on the Common Shares based on the value of a Deferred Share Umit
at that time Deferred Share Units are generally redeemable at the time that an individual ceases to be a Director by a lump sum
cash payment, based on the value of the Deferred Share Units on the date of redernption This amount 1s fully taxable as income in
the year 1n which 1t 1s recerved In 2013, $2 in directors fees were used to acquire Deferred Share Umts ($2 1n 2012)

26 Pension Benefits and Other Post-Employment Benefits

Characteristics, Funding and Risk

The Company and 1ts subsidiaries mamntain contributory and non-contributory defined benefit pension plans for certam employees
and advisors The Company and 1ts subsidianes also maintain defined contribution pension plans for certain employees and adwvisors

The defined benefit pension plans provide pensions based on length of service and final average pay For most plans, active plan
participants share in the cost by making contributions in respect of current service Certain pension payments are indexed either onan
ad hoc basis or a guaranteed basis The determination of the defined benefit obligation reflects pension benefits 1n accordance with the
terms of the plans The assets supporting the funded pension plans are held 1n separate trusteed pension funds The obligations for the
wholly unfunded plans are included in other habilites and are supported by general assets

Subsidiaries of the Company have declared partial windups 1n respect of certain defined benefit pension plans The Company holds
after-tax provisions in the amount of $34 for these plans

Effective January i, 2013, both the Great-West Life Assurance Company Canadian Employees’ Pension Plan and the London Life Staff
Pension Plan added a defined contribution provision to their plans All new hires after this date are eligible only for defined contribution
benefits This change 15 consistent with the benefit provisions of the majority of the Company’s pension plans and will continue to
reduce the Company’s defined benefit plan exposure in future years

The defined contribution pension plans provide pension benefits based on accumulated employee and Company contributions Company
contributions to these plans are a set percentage of employees’ annual income and may be subject to certain vesting requirements

The Company and 1its subsidiaries also provide post-employment health, dental and hife insurance benefits to eligible employees,
advisors and their dependents Retirees share in the cost of benefits through deducubles, co-insurance and caps on benefits These plans
are closed to new hires and were previously amended to limut which employees could become eligible to receive benefits The amount
of some of the posi-employment benefits other than pensions depends on future cost escalation These post-employment benefits are
not pre-funded and the amount of the obhgaton for these benefits 1s included 1n other habihities and 1s supported by general assets

The Company and 1ts subsidiaries have pension and benefit commttees or a trusteed arrangement that provides aversight for the benefit
plans of the Company The benefit plans are monitored on an ongoing basis to assess the benefit, funding and nvestment policies,
financial status, and funding requirements of the Company Significant changes to the Company’s benefit plans require approval from
that Company's Board of Directors

The Company and its subsidianes’ funding pelicy for the funded pension plans 1s to make annual contributions equal to or greater than
those requuired by the applicable regulations and plan provisions that govern the funding of the plans Where funded plans have a net
defined benefit asset, the Company determines if an economic benefit exists in the form of potential reductions 1n future contributions
by the Company and 1n the form of surplus refunds, where permitted by applicable regulation and plan provisions

By their design, the defined benefit plans expose the Company to the typical nsks faced by defined benefit plans such as investment
performance, changes to the discount rates used to value the obligations, longewity of plan members, and future inflation Pension and
benefit nisk 1s managed by regular monitoring of the plans, applicable regulations and other factors that could umpact the expenses and
cash flows of the Company
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(c)

2012
Notonal Amount Total
1 year Over Over 5 estimated
or less 1-5 years years Total fair value
Dervatives not destgnated as accounting hedges
Interest rate contracts
Swaps $ 1,0 $ 625 $ 822 $ 2,478 ] 310
Options purchased 31 73 " 175 46
1,062 698 893 2,653 356
Foreign exchange contracts
Farward contracts 300 - - 300 -
Cross-currency swaps 205 1,947 4,406 6,558 377
505 1,947 4,406 6,858 377
Other denvative contracts
Equity contracts 900 4 - 904 {5}
Futures - long 7 - - 7 -
Futures — short 222 - - 222 {4)
1,129 4 - 1,133 (9
Total Y 2696 $ 2,649 $ 5299 $ 10,644 $ 724

Futures contracts included 1n the above are exchange traded contracts, all other contracis are over-the-counter
Interest Rate Contracts

Interest rate swaps, futures and options are used as part of a portfolio of assets to manage interest rate risk associated with
investment activities and insurance and investment contract Labilities Interest rate swap agreements require the periodic exchange
of payments without the exchange of the notional principal amount on which payments are based Call options grant the Company
the right to enter nto a swap with predetermined fixed-rate payments over a predetermined time pertod on the exercise date Call
options are used to hedge mimimum rate guarantees

Foreign Exchange Contracts

Cross-currency swaps are used in combination with other investments to manage foreign currency risk associated with investment
activities and msurance and investment contract habilities Under these swaps principal amounts and fixed or floating interest
payments may be exchanged in different currencies The Company also enters into certain foreign exchange forward contracts to
hedge certain product hiabilities

Other Dertvative Contracts

Equity index swaps, futures and options are used to hedge certaun product habilittes Equity index swaps are also used as substitutes
for cash instruments and are used to periodically hedge the market nsk associated with certain fee tncome Equity put options are
used to manage potential credit nisk impact of sigmificant declines 1n certain equity markets
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32 Legal Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, and Subsequent Event

The Company and 1ts subsidiaries are from tume to ume subject to legal actions, including arbitrations and class actions, ansing 1n the
normal course of business [t is inherently difficult to predict the outcome of any of these proceedings with certainty, and 1t 15 possible
that an adverse resolution could have a matenal adverse effect on the consolidated financial position of the Company However, based
on information presently known, it 1s not expected that any of the existing legal actions, erther individually or in the aggregate, will have
a material adverse effect on the consolhdated financial position of the Company

A subsidiary of the Company, Canada Life, has declared a partial windup in respect of an Ontario defined benefit pension plan which
will not likely be completed for some time The parual windup could involve the distnibution of the amount of actuanal surplus, if any,
attributable to the wound up portion of the plan In addition to the regulatory proceedings involving this partial windup, a related class
action proceeding has been commenced 1n Ontario related to the partial windup and three potential partial windups under the plan
The class action also challenges the vahdity of charging expenses to the plan The provisions for certain Canadian retirement plans n
the amounts of $97 after-tax established by the Company and its subsidiary 1n the third quarter, 2007 were reduced to $34 after-tax i
the fourth quarter of 2012 Actual results could differ from these estimates

The Company and its substdiary London Life are defendants 1n class proceedings in Ontario regarding the parttcipation of the London
Life and Great-West Life participating accounts 1n the financing of the acquisition of London Insurance Group Inc (LIG) in 1997 by
Great-West Life

The Ontario Superior Court of Justice released 1ts trial decision on Qctober 1, 2010 The Company and London Life appealed and the
Court of Appeal for Ontario released 1ts decision on November 3, 2011 The Court of Appeal ordered that there be adjustments to the
October 1, 2010 tnial judgment regarding the amounts to be reallocated to the participating accounts and directed the parties back to
the trial judge to determine these amounts and address the remaiming 1ssues On May 24, 2012, the Supreme Court of Canada dismussed
the plainuffs’ application for leave to appeal the Court of Appeal decision

The parties returned to the trial judge and on January 24, 2013 the Ontario Supernior Court of Justice released a decision ordenng that
$298 be reallocated to the parucipating account surplus The Company established an incremental provision in the December 31, 2012
financial staterents of $140 after-tax in the common shareholders account to hold $290 1n after-tax provisions for these proceedings

During the first quarter of 2013 the Company and London Life reallocated an amount of $298 to the participating account surplus in
accordance with the January 24, 2013 decision and the Company therefore reduced the hitigation provision 1n the common shareholders
account The monies reallocated to the parucipating accounts are to be dealt with in accordance with the Companes’ participating
policyholder dividend policies in the ordinary course of business No awards are to be paid out to individual class members

The Company and London Life appealed the January 24, 2013 decision and the appeal was heard September 4, 2013 The Court of Appeal
for Ontario reserved 1ts decision
Subsequent Event - Participating Account Legal Matter

The Court of Appeal for Ontano released a decision on February 3, 2014 overturming the January 24, 2013 decision of the Ontario
Supernior Court of Justice and reducing the amount to be reallocated te the participating account surplus to $52, which positively
impacted common shareholders net earnings by $226 after-tax There will not be any impact on the capital position of the Company or
on participating policy contract terms and conditions

33 Commitments

(a) Letters of Credit

Letters of credit are written commitments provided by a bank The total amount of letters of credit facihties are U S $1 7 ballion
(US %1 7 billion 1in 2012) of which U S $1 4 billion (U S $1 5 ballion in 2012) are currently issued
The Reinsurance operation from time to time uses letters of credit provided mainly as collateral under certain remsurance contracts
for on balance sheet policy liabilities

{b} Investment Commitments
Commitments of investment transactions made in the normal course of operauons in accordance with policies and guidelines that
are to be disbursed upon fulfillment of certain contract conditions were $257 as at December 31, 2013 ($390 as at December 31,
2012) At December 31, 2013, $257 mature within 1 year ($344 at December 31, 2012) and ml mature in 1 — 2 years ($46 at
December 31, 2012) and no commitments mature over 2 years (no commuttments over 2 years at December 31, 2012)

(c) Lease Obligations
The Company enters into operating leases for office space and certain equipment used In the normal course of operations Lease
payments are charged to operations over the period of use The future mimmum lease payments in aggregate and by year are

as follows
2019 and
204 2015 2016 W17 2018 thereatter Total
Future lease payments $ 68 60 49 38 27 47 $ 289
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34 Segmented Information

The major reportable segments of the Company are the parucipatng and shareholder operauons The Cempany operates through
Great-West Life and 1ts wholly owned subsidianes LIG and CLFC Within these segments the major business units are Individual
Insurance, Wealth Management, Group Insurance, Europe/Remnsurance, and Corporate These business units reflect the Company's
management structure and internal financial reporting Each of these segments operates 1n the financial services industry and the
revenues from these business units are derived principally from life, health and disability insurance, annuity products, and hife, property
and casualty, accident and health and annuity reinsurance Business actrvities and operations that are not associated with the specific
bustness units are attributed to Corporate

(a) Consolidated Net Earnings

2013
Shareholder Participating
Individual Wealth Group Europe/ Jotal
nsurance management Insurance reinsurance™ Corporate Total Total Company
Income
Premium income $ 1,244 $ 1,069 $ 4936 $ 67 $ 385 $ 14,365 $ 2,999 $ 17,364
Net investment
Income
Regular net
investment
Income 229 625 267 1,740 73 2,934 1,467 4,401
Changes in fair
value through
profit or loss (796) (374) (145) (1,105) (4) (2,424} 47 {2,377)
Total net investment
income (567} 251 122 635 69 510 1,514 2,024
Fee and other mncome - 1,075 146 862 54 2,137 - 2,137
Total iIncome 677 2,395 5,204 8,228 508 17,012 4,513 21,525
Benefits and expenses
Paid or credited to
policyholders (85) 1,119 3,780 6,300 385 11,499 3,575 15,074
Other 369 736 868 917 (186) 2,704 1,016 3,720
Financing charges - - - 16 32 48 - 43
Amortization of finite
Iife intangible
assets 3 14 15 16 15 63 3 66
Restructuring and
acquisition
expenses - - - 104 - 104 - 104
Earnings before
Income taxes 390 526 541 875 262 2,594 (81) 2,513
Income taxes 73 128 105 118 (74) 350 13 363
Net earntngs 317 398 436 757 336 2,244 {94) 2,150
Net earnings -
participating
policyholder - - - - - - (94) (94}
Net earmings -
common shareholder $ 317 $ 398 $ 436 3 757 $ 336 $ 2,244 $ - $ 2,244

(1) The Company completed the acquisition of Insh Life on July 18 2013 The Europe/Rainsurance business umit inchudes the results of Irtsh Life from July 19 2013 to December 31 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Policyholders and Shareholder,
The Great-West Life Assurance Company

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of The Great-West Life Assurance Company, which comprise
the consolidated balance sheets as at December 31, 2013, December 31, 2012 and January 1, 2012 and the consolidated statements of
earnings, consohdated statements of comprehensive income, consohdated statements of changes in equuty and conschidated statements
of cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, and the notes to the consohdated financial statements

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management 15 responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements 1n accordance with

international Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management deterrmines 1s necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from maternal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility 1s to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits We conducted our audits 1in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtam audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 1n the consolidated financial
statements The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the nsks of matenal misstatement
of the consohdated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentaticn of the consolidated financial statements 1n order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate 1n the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opimon on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting esiimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements

We believe thart the audit evidence we have obtained 1n our audits 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion

Opinion

In our opinion, the consohdated financial statements present fairly, in all matenal respects, the financial position of The Great-West Life
Assurance Company as at December 31, 2013, December 31, 2012 and January 1, 2012 and 1ts financial performance and its cash flows
for the years ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 1n accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards

Delotlc 447

Chartered Accountants

Winnipeg, Manitoba
February 13, 2014

APPOINTED ACTUARY'S REPORT

To the Policyholders, Shareholder and Directors of
The Great-West Life Assurance Company

I have valued the pohicy liabilities of The Great-West Life Assurance Company for 1ts consohdated balance sheet at December 31, 2013
and their change 1n its summary of consolidated operauons for the year then ended in accordance with accepted actuarial practice,
including selection of appropnate assumptions and methods

In my opinion, the amount of policy habilities makes appropnate provision for all pohcyholder obhigations and the consolhidated
financial statements fairly present the result of the valuation

e Bl

Tyrone G. Faulds

Fellow, Canadian Institute of Actuanes

Winnipeg, Mamitoba
February 13 2014
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PARTICIPATING POLICYHOLDER DIVIDEND POLICY

Thas polhicyhoelder dividend policy has been established by the Board of Directors and apphes to all participating insurance policies 1ssued
or assumed by Great-West The Board of Directors may amend this policy from tume to ume at 1ts discretion The factors most likely to
be considered in deciding whether to amend this policy include changes 1n applicable legal or regulatory requirements, professional
guidelines, industry practices or significant business changes

Earnings are generated 1n the participatnng account when the expenience in the participating account for factors such as investment
income, asset defaults, mortality, lapses, expenses and taxes 1s collectively more favourable than the assumptions for these factors used
when establishing the guaranteed values associated with participating 1nsurance policies Great-West may distribute a portion of the
earnings as declared at the discretion of the Board of Directors in accordance with this policy

Paricipating insurance policies are ehigible for peniodic policyholder dividends The amount to be distnbuted from the parucipating
account as policyholder dividends 1s determined at least annually following a review of the actual and expected experience of the
participating account, taking into account significant changes 1n factors such as investment incotne, asset defaults, mortality, lapses,
expenses and taxes The amount distributed 1n any year will vary up or down depending on the actual and expected experience The
amount distributed 1s also influenced by considerations such as the need to retain earnings as surplus and reducing short-term volatility
in dividends

The amount distributed as policyholder dividends is divided among classes of pohicies by setting the policyholder dividend scale These
dividend classes are groupings of participating policies with certain product and pohcy attributes in common

Great-West follows the contribution principle when setting the policyholder dividend scale This means the amount distributed as
pohcyholder dividends 1s divided among dividend classes over the long term n proporuon to their contribution to earnings A
contribution to earnings will be made from a particular dividend class 1o the extent the expenence for that parucular class 1s different
from the assumptions used when establishing the guaranteed values for that class When applying the contribution principle, attention
1s paid to achieving reasonable equity between dividend classes and between generations of policies, taking mto account practical
considerations and hmits, legal and regulatory requirements, professional guidelines and industry practices For certain blocks of
policies, the policyholder dividend scale may be determined using methods designed to approxtmate the contribution to earnings of
those blocks

The policyholder dividends are credited according to the terms of each policy A change made by a policyholder to a policy after 1t1s
1ssued may, 1n some cases, result in a change to the policy’s dividend class and thus a change to the amount of policyholder dividends
credited thereafter

Termination dividends are not payable under any participaung policies 1ssued by Great-West

Prior to the declaration of policyholder dividends by the Beard, the Appointed Actuary reports to the Board of Directors with his opinion
on the fairness to participating pohcyholders of the proposed policyholder dividends and on their comphance with this policy, applicable
legislative and regulatory requirements and applicable professional practice standards Policy illustrations will reflect changes to the
policyholder dividend scale as soon as practical

PARTICIPATING ACCOUNT FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

(in Canadhan $ millions)

Participating

Account Accounting ttem 2013 2012

Canada Opening surplus and accumulated other comprehensive income (0CI) $ 552 S 505
Net earnings (including OCI) before distributions 135 182
Amounts transferred to shareholders under s 461 of the ICA 3 3
Other transfers or accruals under s 462 of the ICA 1 1
Net earmings {including OCI) before payment of poltcyholder dividends 131 178
Policyholder dividends distributed duning the year 134 13
Closing surplus and accumulated other comprehensive income {OCI) 549 552
Total assets at year end 4111 3,888
Section 461 transfer as a % of total distributions 25% 25%
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PARTICIPATING ACCOUNT MANAGEMENT POLICY

This participating account management policy has been established by the Board of Directors and may be amended by the Board frem
nme to time at 1ts ciscreuon The factors most likely to be considered 1n deciding whether to amend this policy include changes in
applicable legal or regulatory requirements, professional guidelines, industry practices or sigmficant business changes

As required by the Insurance Compantes Act, the Company maintains acceunts for 1ts participaung insurance policies separately from
those mamntained in respect of other policies This facilitates the measurement of the earmings attributable to the participating account

The participating account 1s maintained 1n Tespect of participaung hife insurance policies and a small block of participating annuities
that have been issued or assumed by the Company The participating account remains open to new participating policies 1ssued or
assumed by the Company

Assets of the Comnpany held withtn 1ts general funds are allocated to the participating account and non-participating account segments
for the purpose of determining investment income for each account Assets are allocated 1o each segment according to the investment
guidelines established for the segments These guidelines outline criteria for asset mix, hquidity, currency nsk and interest rate nsk These
guidelines are intended to recognmize considerations such as the business objectives, habihity charactenstics, hquidity requirements, tax
considerations and nterest rate risk tolerance of each segment Assets allocated to a segment may from time to time be reallocated to
another segment within the same account or another account provided the assets exchanged comply with the investment pelicy of the
respective segments Any such exchanges are effected at fair value

On an annual basis the Board of Directors reviews and approves investment policies and guidelines which govern investment acuvities
The investment policies outhne a number of principles for invesung n assets, including risk tolerance and the approach to managing
investment risk Investment nisk 1s managed through underwnting standards, exposure hmits and specific gudelines govermng asset
classes and mvestment operations The investment policies establish limits for the concentration of assets 1n single geographic areas,
industries, companies and types of businesses as part of the risk management process

A large portion of the participating account assets are invested 1n fixed-1incoime assets to support long-term stable growth and the core
guarantees within participating policies The Company employs cash-flow-matching techmques so that asset cash flows are sufficient to
meet obligations and to help control exposure to interest rate fluctuations In addinhon, a portion of the portfolio 1s reinvested each year
so returns reflect the trend in interest rates The Company may use denvative products as risk management instruments to hedge asset
and habihity positions, or as substitutes for cash instruments within specified guideline himits

Investment income 1s allocated to the participating account in accordance with the Company's investment mcome allocation pohicy
Generally, investment income results are atlocated directly to a segment based on the assets allocated to the segment Each year the
Appointed Actuary reviews the method used for allocating investment income to the parucipaung account and reports to the Board of
Directors on 1ts fairness and equitableness

Expenses and taxes incurred by the Company are allocated to the participating account mn accordance with the Company’s expense
allocatton and tax allocation pohcies

Expenses are allocated by the area incurnng the expense to the appropnate company and line of business As a general principle,
expenses are allocated to a line of business in accordance with 1ts business activities In addition, from time to ume Great-West Life
and/or its subsidiaries make significant expenditures/investments outside of regular business activities which may include but are not
limited to transactions such as acquisitions, restructurings, and caputal expenditures (e g major IT systems), the intent and effect of
which 1s to reduce future expenses The governing principle for fair and equitable treatment of such expenditures/investments 1s that
expenses will be allocated to the lines of business recogmzing both the benefit derived by the hne of business from that expenditure/
investment and the contribution made by the hine of business te that expenditure/investment

In general, expenses that are exclusively related to participating business are allocated directly to the part:cipating account Expenses
related to both participating and non-participating business are allocated based on business statistics when the expenses vary based on
those statistics, based on managers’ esumates supported by time studies or other assessments, or 1n proportion to the total expenses
allocated using all of the methods previously mentioned

For unusual items, management will determine and report to the Appointed Actuary the resulting allocation of expenses to each line of
business, including the basis and justification for it

Taxes are allocated to the participating account using the charactensucs of the partucipating and non-participating accounts that are
determinative of the relevant tax costs

Each year the Appointed Actuary reviews the method used for allocating expenses and taxes to the participating account and reports to
the Board of Directors on its fairness and equitableness

The participating account surplus 1s managed 1n accordance with the Company's capital management policy and participaung
account surplus policy and with regard to regulatory requirements The surplus position 1s reviewed annually to assess 1ts continuing
appropriateness, having regard for the specific circumsiances of the participating account Surplus may be used for 2 number of
purposes including to help ensure the Company can meet 1ts obligations to parucipating pohicyholders, help ensure financial strength
and stability, finance new business growth and acquisitions which may benefit the participating account, provide for transitions
during periods of major change, and smooth the reflection of experience fluctuations mn dividends, subject to items such as practical
considerations and himits, legal and regulatory requirements, and industry pracuces

As permutted by the [nsurance Companies Act, the Company may distribute to the shareholders a percentage of the amount distributed
to policyholders in respect of a financial year Prior to any such distribution, the Appotnted Actuary will confirm to the Board of
Directors that the proposed distribution 1s permetted under the terms of the Insurance Companies Act The proportion distnibuted 1o the
shareholders will not exceed the prescribed amount as determined under section 461 of the Insurance Companies Act Any distribution
made to the shareholders will be published 1n the Company’s annual report
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SOURCES OF EARNINGS

The following s provided in accordance with the OSFI guideline requining Sources of Earnings (SOE) disclosure SOE1snotan International
Financial Reporung Standards (IFRS) measure There 15 no standard SOE methodology The calculation of SOE 1s dependent on and
sensittve to the methodology, estimates and assumptions used
SOE 1dennfies various sources of IFRS net earnings It provides an analysis of the difference between actual net income and expected
net income based on assumpuons made at the beginning of the reporung pertod The terminology used in the discussion of sources of

earnings 1s described below

Expected Profit on In-Force Business

This component represents the portion of the consolidated net income on business in-force at the start of the reporting period
that was expected to be reahized based on the achievement of the best-estimate assumputions It includes releases of provisions for
adverse deviations, expected net earnings ot deposits, and expected net management fees

Impact of New Business

This component represents the point-of-sale impact on net income of writing new business dunng the reporting period This 1s
the difference between the premium receved and the sum of the expenses incurred as a result of the sale and the new liabilities

established at the point of sale
Experience Gains and Losses

This component represents gains and losses that are due to differences between the actual experience dunng the reporting period
and the best-estimate assumptions at the start of the reporting period

Management Actions and Changes in Assumptions

This compenent represents the impact on net income resulting from management actions, changes 1n actuarial assumptions or
methodology, changes 1n margins for adverse deviations, and correction of errors

Other

This component represents the amounts not included 1n any other line of the sources of earnings

Earnings on Surplus

This component represents the earnings on the Company's surplus funds

Great-West Life’s sources of earnings are shown below for 2013 and 2012

Sources of Earnings
(in Canadian $ millions}

Shareholder net earnings

Group indwvidual Wealth Europe/

For year to date at December 31, 2013 insurance Insurance Manag t R ce Corporate Total
Expected profit on in-force bustness $ 492 $ 220 $ 41 $ 681 $ 23 $ 1,827
Impact of new business - {16} 30 12 - 26
Experience gams and losses 27 9N 80 229 (55) 372
Management actions and changes in assumptions 22 95 5 (44) 4 82
Other - - - (104) - (104)
Earnings on surplus - - - 101 64 165
Net earnings before tax 541 390 526 875 36 2,368
Taxes {105) (73) (128) {118) 14 (350)
Net earnings befare non-controlling interests 436 317 398 157 110 2,018
Non-controlling interests - - - - - -
Net earnings — shareholder 436 317 398 157 110 2,018
Preferred share dividends - - - - - -
Net earmings — common shareholder before adjustments 436 317 398 757 110 2,018
Adjustments after-tax - - - - 226 226
Net earntngs — common shareholder % 436 $ 317 $ 398 $ 757 $ 336 $ 2,244
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SOURCES OF EARNINGS (CONT'D)

Sources of Earmings
(in Canadian $ millions)
Shareholder net earmngs

Group Indnidual Wealth Eurgpe/

For year to date at December 31 2012 Insurance Insurance Management Reinsurance Corporate Total
Expected profit on in-force busmess S 476 S 179 $ 333 s 459 $ 11 $ 1,458
Impact of new business - (89) 32 33 - (24)
Experience gains and losses 54 66 40 232 46 438
Management actions and changes in assumptions 49 83 15 (128) {7 12
Other - - - - - -
Earnings on surplus - - - 154 110 264
Net earnings before tax 579 239 420 750 160 2,148
Taxes (124) {31} (105) {89 81 (268)
Net earnings before non-controlling interests 455 208 315 661 24 1,880
Non-controiling interests - - - - - -
Net earnings — shareholder 455 208 315 661 241 1,880
Preferred share dividends - - - - - -
Net earnings — common shareholder before adjustments 455 208 315 661 241 1,880
Adjustments after-tax - - - - (140) (140)
Net earnings — common shareholder $ 455 5 208 b 315 H 661 ) 1m s 1,740
Analysis of Results

Expected profit on in-force business is the major driver of earmings and accounted for 77% of pre-tax earnings in 2013 The expected profit
on m-force business of $1,827 1n 2013 was $369 higher than 2012 The improvement year-over-year 1s primarily due to the acquisition
of Insh Life, an increase 1n the expected release of interest rate margins, a higher fund level starting point for fee based businesses and
stronger expected Group Life and Health margins

The new business gan of $26 in 2013 was $50 higher than 2012, pnmarily due to improvements in Canada as a result of repricing activities for
Individual Insurance and Wealth Management to reflect the lower interest environment coupled with the recent upward movement n long
term nterest rates The decrease in Europe was largely due to new business strain for Irish Life partially offset by higher annuity sales in the U K
Experience gains of $372 1n 2013 including a $20 contribution from Irish Life and strong gains across all operating segments, were $66
lower than 2012 The gains 1n 2013 were primarily due to investment experience (tincluding yield enhancements) and hife mortahty
expertence 1n Canada and Europe These gains were parually offset by policyholder behavior, morbidity resuits in Group Canada and hfe
mortality results in the U § Experience gains 1n 2012 were primarily due to investment, mortality and longevity experience i Canada
and Europe, parnally offset by policyholder behavior experience in Canada

Management actions and changes 1n assumptions contributed $82 to pre-tax earnings 1n 2013 compared to $12 in 2012 The most
significant contributors to assumption changes and management actnons were $86 due to updated life mortahty, $43 due to 1mproved
morbidity, $30 due to improved interest mismatch, $26 due to modeling refinement updates, partially offset by $74 due to strengthened
policyholder behavior assumptions and $21 due to strengthened expenses and taxes

Other of $(104) 1n 2013 was a result of restructuring and acquisition costs related to the Insh Life acquisiion

Pre-tax earnings on surplus decreased by $99 1n 2013 compared to 2012 with the largest impacts coming from lower realized OCI gains
on asset sales and mark-to-market gains on real estate, partially offset by the redemption of Great-West Life Trust Secunnes

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE GREAT-WEST LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANY"

Name Principal Carrying value® Voting share
office address ~ {in Canadian § milions}  ownership

Canada Life Financial Corporation Toronto, Ontario 12,400 100%

The Canada Life Assurance Company Toronto, Ontario 7,970 100%

Canada Life Capital Corporation Inc Toronto, Ontario 6,336 100%

The Canada Life Group (UK Limited) Potters Bar, Hertfordshire, Engiand 3,376 100%

Canada Life Limited Potters Bar, Hertfordshire, England 4,087 100%

Irish Life Group Limited Dublin, Ireland 2,011 100%

London Insurance Group Inc London, Ontaro 4,199 100%

London Life Insurance Company London, Ontario 1,958 100%

Quadrus !nvestment Services Lid Londen, Ontario 56 100%

London Reinsurance Group Inc London, Ontano 638 100%

GWL Realty Adwisors Inc Winnipeg, Manitoba 1 100%

GLC Asset Management Group Ltd Winnipeg, Manitoba 25 100%

{1) The table above depicts the matenal and certan other subsidianes of the Company at Decernber 31, 2013
{2) The carrying value represents the Company s equity In 1ts subsidiaries
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FIVEYEAR SUMMARY

{in Canadian § milhons except per share amounts) 2013 01w 20 2010 20092
At December 31
Total assets under administration $ 341,227 $ 218,265 $ 203,820 $ 197,290 $ 182,715
For the Year Ended December 31
Premiums and deposits
Life insurance, guaranteed annuities and tnsured health products $ 17,364 $ 16,235 $ 14173 $ 14,550 $ 15,085
Self funded premium equivalents (Administrative services only contracts) 2,567 2,666 2,645 2,575 2,499
Segregated funds deposits
Individual products 8,041 6,338 7,146 6,643 5,765
Group products 4,689 4,637 3,615 3,744 4,231
Propnietary mutual funds deposits 4,840 M2 724 616 565
Total premiums and deposits $ 37,501 $ 30588 $ 28,303 $ 28128 $ 28,145
Condensed Statements of Earnings
Income
Premium Income $ 17,364 $ 15,235 $ 14173 § 14,550 $ 15085
Net investment income
Regular net investment income 4,401 4,479 4,352 4,511 4,807
Changes In fair value through profit or loss (2,377} 2,218 3,795 3,197 2,637
Total net imvestment income 2,024 6,697 8,147 7,708 7,444
Fee and other income 2,137 1,782 1,673 1,575 1,599
Total income 21,525 24,714 23,993 23,833 24,128
Benefits and expenses
Paid or credited to policyholders 15,074 18,993 18,962 18,862 19,226
Other 3,768 3,409 2,568 3,389 2,800
Amortization of finite hfe intangible assets 66 55 54 47 38
Restructuring and acguisition expenses 104 - - - -
Earnings before tncome taxes 2,513 2,257 2,409 1,535 2,064
Income taxes 363 242 343 185 289
Net earnings before nan-controlling interests 2,150 2,015 2,066 1.350 1,775
Non-controlling interests - - - 7 7
Net earnings 2,150 2,015 2,066 1,343 1,768
Net earnings (loss) — participating account (94} 275 17 {10) 24
Net earnings — shareholders 2,244 1,740 1,949 1,353 1,744
Preferred share dividends - - - 7 9
Net earmings — common shareholder $ 2,244 $ 1,740 $ 1949 $ 1,346 $ 1,735
Book value per common share $6,780 00 $ 583300 $ 562700 $ 5,18400 $ 532000
Dwvidends to common shareholder — per share $ 53979 $ 53267 $ 54046 $ 41544 $ 61378

(1) Comparatwe figures, where impacted, have been restated for the retrospective impact of new and rewised International Financial Reporting Standards effective dunng 2013 mast notably IAS 19R, Employee Benefis

and IFRS 10 Consohdated Financial Statements
{2) The Compaay reclassified certain comparatrve figures for presentation adustments
{3) 2009 1s presented on a previoys CGAAP basis
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President Emernitus,
The Canadian Institute for Advanced Research

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Paul A. Mahon
President and Chief Executive Officer

Arshil Jamal
President and Chief Operating Officer,
Europe

I. Dave Johnston
President and Chief Operating Officer,
Canada

Brian R. Allison
Executive Vice-President and
Chief Investment Officer
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Power Financial Corporation
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Saguenay Strathmaore Capital, LLC
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POLICYHOLDER AND SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Head Office
100 Osborne Street North, Winnipeg, Manitoba, Canada R3C 1V3

Financial Information

For financial information about Great-West Life, please contact the Semior Vice-President and Chief Financial Officer, Canada at
204-946-8396

For copies of the annual reports, please contact the Corporate Secretary’s Office at 204-946-4388 or visit www.greatwesthife.com

Trademarks contained in this report ate owned by The Great West Life Assurance Company or a member of the Power Financial Corporation group of companes. Trademarks nat owned by The Great West Life
Assurance Company are used with permission
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Conserving for our future

Great-West Life recognizes the importance of environmental responsibility and takes a balanced and
sustainable approach to conducting business
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www greatwestlife com

Domtar EarthChoice® papers earn Forest Stewardship Council™ (FSC®) certification and the Ranforest
Allance Certified™ seaf

MIX

Paper from
L

FSsC

reaponale
wemem FSC*C103113

E987{13LFE}-3/14



